

ではた

Technical Report 86 EXPLOSIONS IN SNOW

by Cliffion W. Livingston

MAY 1968

U.S. ARMY MATERIAL CON MAND COLD REGIONS RESEARCH & ENGINEERING LABORATORY NANOVEL, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Borodynemics Inc.



JUL 28 1963

4D672056

Technica' Report 86 EXPLOSIONS IN SNOW

by Clifton W. Livingston

MAY 1968

U.S. ARMY MATERIEL COMMAND COLD REGIONS RESEARCH & ENGINEERING LABORATORY HANOVER, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Barodynamics Inc. Contract DA-11-190-ENG-33

This document has been approved for public release and sale, its distribution is unlimited.

Best Available Copy

PREFACE

The investigation reported herein was performed during the summer of 1958 under contract DA-11-190-Eng-33 with Barodynamics, Inc. The purpose of the investigation was to acquire information for the development of criteria for the destruction and protection of structures in or on snow.

Design and planning of the project were accomplished under the direction of W. K. Boyd, then Chief, Frozen Ground Applied Research Branch, Snow, .ce and Permafrost Research Establishment* (now Chief Engineer, U.S. Army Cold Regions Research and Engineering Laboratory). Cratering aspects of the work were performed by USA SIPRE under the direction of Robert Benert; instrumentation was performed by U.S. Army Waterways Experiment Station under the direction of Francis Hanes; and supervision and analysis were performed by Barodynamics, Inc.

The report was written by Clifton W. Livingston with the assistance of H.L. Waldron, C.E. Knapp, and R.W. Livingston.

USA CRREL is an Army Materiel Command laboratory.

*Combined in 1961 with the Arctic Construction and Frost Effects Laboratory, Corps of Engineers, U.S. Army to form the U.S. Army Cold Regions Research and Engineering Laboratory.

CONTENTS

t

4

	Page
Prelace	11
Summary	V1
Symbols	viii
Equations	xi
General plan of the tests	1
The problem	1
Description of the tests	1
Test site	2
Field procedure on uninstrumented shots	2
Instrumentation	tō
Evaluation of the data	18
Crater and cavity nomenclature	18
Variation in crater shape with charge depth	23
Typical undersnow pressure records	23
Typical acceleration records	23
Typical seismic records	23
The failure process	28
Mechanics of viscous-damping failure	33
Constant quantities and energy utilization	35
Introduction	35
Evaluating the strain-energy factor	36
Determining the depth ratio at optimum depth	37
Evaluating the materials-behavior index	39
The energy-utilization number A	30
Crater evaluation	• 44
Annarent crater	44
Evaluating dimensions within limits of complete runture	45
The N-scaled crater depth Ki	40
The complete-runture shape factor K	77
The N-secolod complete support no matting radius K	47 50
A completion of complete numbers and extreme surfaces $h_{\rm r}$	50
A correlation of complete-rupture and extreme-rupture limi	ts 50
Dimensions of the cavity	50
Ranges of similar behavior in snow	57
The effect of materials type upon the relation A vs Δ	58
Conclusions and recommendations	58
Literature cited	59

ILLUSTRATIONS

Figur	re	
Ĭ.	Surface blasts, Atlas 60%	3
2.	Surface blasts, military explosive C-4	3
3,	Surface blasts, Coalite 7S	4
4.	Trench blasts, Atlas 60%	4
5.	french blasts, Ccalite 7S	Ĩ,
6.	Air blasts and contact blasts, Arlas 60%	5
7.	Air blasts and contact blasts, military explosive C-4	6
8.	Air blasts and contact blasts, Coalite 75	6
9.	Test site	7
10.	Weather data	7
11.	Density profile, undisturbed snow	8

iii

÷

ł

:

۰,

•,

.

CONTENTS (Cont'd)

Page

Figure		
12.	Recording fracture pattern and displacement of colored	
	columns	11
13.	Snow texture along crater cross section as revealed using	• •
	smudge technique	11
14	Drilling and recovering cores along density-sample profile	
	lines	12
15	Miller recording unit-	12
16	Pencil gage	13
17	Baffle and water-shock gages -	13
18	Statham accelerometer	14
19	VibraShock accelerometer	14
20.	Standard gage layout, depth of charge = 3.0	16
21	Standard gage layout, depth of charge = 1,00,	16
22	Standard gage layout, contact burst	17
23.	Standard gage layout, height of charge = $2, 5\lambda$	17
24	Standard gage layout, height of charge = 1.0λ	18
25.	Crater limits and column displacement	21
26.	Crater nomenclature	21
27.	Cavity fracture limits and column displacement	22
28.	Cavity nomenclature	22
29.	Apparent- and true-crater shapes at increasing depth ratios	24
30.	Complete and extreme rupture limits at increasing depth	
	ratios	24
31,	Typical variation of undersnow pressure with distance	25
32.	Comparison of void pressure and undersnow pressure	25
. 33.	Typical undersnow-acceleration records	26
34.	Typical seismic records, longitudinal component	26
35.	Typical seismic records, vertical component	27
36.	Typical seismic records, transverse component	27
57.	Viscous-damping failure	29
38.	Shearing failure in J. 45 g/cm ³ density trench snow	29
39.	Sequence of events at the explosion cavity	31
40.	Implosion and related events	32
41.	Vortex and scouring action	54
42.	Energy-utilization no., surface snow, Atlas 60	41
43.	Energy-utilization no., surface snow, C-4	41
44.	Energy-utilization no., surface show, Coalite (S	41
45.	Energy-utilization nos, trench snow, Atlas 60	41
40.	Energy-utilization no., trench show, Coalite 75	42
47.	Apparent crater V/W vs Δ , surface show, Atlas 60	40
40.	Apparent crater V/W vs Δ , surface show, C-4	40
47. FO	Apparent crater v/w vs Δ , surface snow, coante (S	-110 -12
5U. El	N-scaled apparent-crater depth, surface snow, Atlas 60	-10
E) 21 (N-scaled apparent-crater depth, surface snow, C-4	-10
52.	N-scaled apparent-crater radius surface snow, Coante 15	-110 -17
5J. 54	N-scaled apparent-crater radius, surface show, Allas ou	37
55	N-scaled apparent-crater radius, surface enow, Castito 79	17
56	N-scaled complete-runture denth surface enow Atlas 40	37
57	N-scaled complete rupture depth, surface snow, Allas 00	18
58.	N-scaled complete-rupture depth, surface show, Coalite 7S	-48
	r r r r r r r r r r r r r r r r r r r	

1 V

CONTENTS (Cont'd)

.

1

•

FIGURE		8-
59.	N-scaled complete-rupture depth, trench snow, Atlas 60	48
60.	N-scaled complete-rupture depth, trench snow, C7S	48
61.	Crater-shape factor. surface snow. Atlas 60	51
62	Crater-shape factor, surface snow, C-4	51
63	Crater-shape factor, surface snow Coalite 75	51
64	Crater-shape factor, trench snow, Atlas 60	51
65	Crater-shape factor, trench snow, Analy Coalite 75	32
66	K. vs A surface spow Atlas 60	52
67	K ve A curface snow Codessenting	52
68	K vs A surface snow, Coalite 75	52
69	K ve A trench enow Atlas 60	53
70	K vs A trench snow, Coalite 75	53
71	C/W vs λ_{s} surface show Atlas 60 complete runture	54
72	C / W vs kc, surface snow, Atlas 60, complete rupture	54
72	C/\sqrt{W} vs λ_c , surface show, Atlas 60, extreme rupture -	54
74	C/W vs λ_c , surface show, C-4, complete rupture-	54
75	C_{e}/\sqrt{W} vs λ_{c} , surface snow, Coalite 75, complete runture	55
76	$C_{\rm c}/\sqrt{W}$ vs $\lambda_{\rm c}$, surface snow, Coalite 75, extreme rupture	5
77.	C_{-}/\sqrt{W} vs λ_{c} , trench snow. Atlas 60, complete rupture -	55
78.	C_{-}/\sqrt{W} vs λ_{c} , trench snow. Atlas 60, extreme rupture	55
79.	$C_{\rm w}/\sqrt{W}$ vs $\lambda_{\rm w}$, trench snow, Coalite 7S, complete rupture	56
80.	$C_o^{r}/\sqrt[3]{W}$ vs λ_o , trench snow. Coalite 7S, extreme rupture	56
81.	Ranges of similar behavior in 1958 surface snow	57
82.	Energy-utilization number A vs Δ in snow, ice, frozen	
	ground	58

TABLES

Table		
I.	Variation in density, incompressibility, and rigidity with	
	depth below the 1954 snow surface	9
п.	Properties of the test explosives	9
III.	Dimensions of explosive spheres	9
IV.	Horizontal- and vertical-compressional-wave velocity	15
V .	Suggested test conditions for analysis of undersnow shock	15
VI.	Constants for charges of spherical shape	38

v

1

÷.

Page

•

SUMMARY

Studies were made to establish means of predicting and optimizing the results of blasts in snow of the Greenland Ice Cap. A total of 141 test blasts were fired above and at various depths below the snow surface using three types of explosives. Seismic measurements were taken of all shots, and 32 were instrumented for measurement of airblast and/or undersnow shock pressure.

Vertical holes were drilled in a plane through the charge center, and adjacent holes were filled with snow dyed different colors. The explosive charge was detonated electrically. During the blast, motion pictures recorded flyrock travel, surface movements and displacement.

Following the blast, crews excavated snow to expose a vertical wall through the blast center. Crater cross sections were then mapped to beyond the limits of complete rupture. The change in texture of the snow was studied by a technique of smudging the exposed wall. Density samples of the disturbed and undisturbed snow were taken in a regular pattern using core-sample augers.

The failure process in snow differs from that in glacier ice, frozen ground, rock, and certain types of soil. Characteristic (eatures of this failure (referred to here as "viscous-damping failure") are: 1) damping of the disturbance during the rise to peak pressure, and 2) substantial recovery of stored potential energy during unloading. Both features result because air in substantial quantity is trapped within the voids in snow. The sequence of a blast in snow has been determined by applying the theory of relative behavior of materials, wherein a change that is accomplished in time is analogous to a change in energy density as measured by the depth ratio. Earlier events begin at a high value of the depth ratio and these may be traced to their conclusion by observing the end product of a blast at lower values of the depth ratio. Thus "early" may refer here to deep, and "late" to shallow.

The snow is first compacted and driven outward as the gas bubble expands, and a primary cavity is formed. Melting at the cavity wall converts the skin of the compacted, fractured, and expanding zone to ice. The next event is implosion and disturbance of the original cavity. The walls of the primary cavity are displaced inward, and both the zone of skin-surface melting and the zone of compaction are destroyed. A sensitively balanced transition condition appears to exist at critical depth. The balance determines under what conditions fractures during the rise of pressure and the outward expansion of the gas bubble predominate over fractures formed as a result of implosion. Implosion is closely followed by a vortex motion within the snow and scouring action as the gas bubble emerges from the rising column defined by the vortex. This scouring motion largely determines the final shape of the apparent crater.

Viscous-damping failure differs markedly from shock-type failure, which is characteristic of brittle materials, and from shear-type failure, hich is characteristic of more plastic materials. During loading of the snow, a substantial proportion of the energy of the explosion is expended to compact and deform the material; during unloading, much of the energy expended to compress air in the voids is recovered and re-expended in both fracture and flow.

V1

SUMMARY (Cont'd)

Tables, curves, equations, and example problems presented in the report make it possible, within the range of the experiments, to accurately predict any desired dimensions of the limit of complete rupture. Limits of complete rupture and limits of extreme rupture in snow arc correlated empirically using cube-root scaling as a first approximation. Ranges of similar behavior and transition limits between ranges for blasts with small HE charges in 1958 surface snow are discussed. At charge depths greater than critical depth, more of the energy of the explosion is required for seismic effects and for deformation of the snow without loss of cohesion. At charge depth less than that at which maximum scouring occurs, more of the energy of the explosion is expended in the atmosphere and less is available to the snow. An apparent crater, as defined in the report, occurs in the air-blast range and the secondary zone of the fragmentation range. The volume of apparent crater per pound of explosive is maximum at the transition limit between the two ranges, where scouring is maximum. The energy-utilization number depends upon the explosive and the material and, where V/W of the apparent crater in snow is maximum, varies from 0.4 to 0.7. Dimensions of the apparent crater are neither predictable with accuracy using conventional cube-root scaling nor usable as a basis for predicting undersnow damage because 1) the energy-utilization number is a relative measure of the proportion of the energy of the explosive partitioned to loading the snow, and 2) the apparent crater in snow occurs subsequent to loading and is the result of the scouring action of the vented gas bubble. The effect of the type of material upon the relation of energy utilization number A and depth ratio Δ is summarized for snow, ice, and Irozen ground. In extrapolations beyond the range of the experiments; 1) the observed variation in the strain-energy factor E with physical properties of the snow and with the type of explosive, 2) the observed variation of the materialsbehavior index B with the weight of the charge, and 3) the interdependence of physical properties of the material and the energy-utilization number should prove useful.

vii

SYMBOLS

Energy-utilization number: a dimensionless ratio of volumes determined by the limits of complete rupture. A, which stands for available, is a variable function of the depth ratio Δ and reaches a maximum of 1.0 at optimum depth.

$$A = \frac{V}{V_0}$$

B Materials-behavior index: a constant for a given explosive, a given material, and a given weight of charge, it is a dimensionless number that may be thought of as a ratio of volumes at two different energy levels. B stands for behavior.

$$B = \frac{V_0}{N^3}.$$

- C Stress-distribution number: a dimensionless ratio of energy levels in single-shot or multiple-shot blasting. C stands for charge shape, one of the principal factors affecting stress distribution. The stress geometry was so controlled that C equalled 1.0 in the tests described herein.
- C_A Slant distance of apparent crater, feet, from the center of gravity of the explosive charge to the limit of the apparent crater at the surface.
- C_r Slant distance, ft, from the center of gravity of the explosive charge to the limit of complete rupture at the surface.
- d Depth of charge: depth, ft, from the surface to the center of gravity of the explosive charge.
- d₀ Optimum depth of charge: depth of charge at which a given weight of explosive breaks a maximum volume of material per pound of explosive (at which V/W is a maximum).
- E Strain-energy factor: a variable factor dependent upon the explosive and the material (dimensionless when cube-root scaling is assumed). It is defined by the equation

 $N = E \sqrt[3]{W}$.

- h or h_r Depth of crater, ft, from the surface to the limits of complete rupture (see Fig. 26, 28).
- h Depth of apparent crater, ft, from the surface to the bottom of the apparent crater.
- K N-scaled crater volume, dimensionless:

 $K = \frac{V}{N^3}.$

It can also be shown that

 $K = ABC = \pi K_s (K_r)^2 K_{h^{\circ}}$

viii

A

SYMBOLS (Cont'd)

K_n N-scaled crater depth to the limits of complete rupture, dimensionless:

$$K_h = \frac{h}{N}$$
.

K_h¹ N-scaled depth of the apparent crater, dimensionless:

$$K_h^{l} = \frac{h}{N}.$$

K N-scaled crater radius to the limits of complete rupture, dimensionless:

$$K_r = \frac{r}{N}$$
.

 K_r^{-1} N-scaled radius of the apparent crater, dimensionless:

$$K_r^i = \frac{r_a}{N}$$
.

K Complete rupture shape factor, $K = V/\pi r^2 h$.

- N Critical depth: the minimum depth, ft, at which displacement of the surface above an explosive charge of spherical shape does not exceed a specified limit on a blast with a given type and weight of explosive in a given homogeneous material beneath a horizontal surface of semi-infinite lateral extent. The limiting displacement is that at which fracture begins.
- r or r Average radius, ft, to the limits of complete rupture as measured at the surface (see Fig. 26, 28).
- r_a Average radius of apparent crater, ft, as measured at the surface,
- R Gage slant distance from the center of gravity of the charge.
- Vor V. Volume, ft³, within the limits of complete rupture (see Fig. 26, 2^{\prime}).
- V_a Volume, ft³, of the apparent crater.
- V_0 Optimum volume: the volume, ft³, within limits of complete rupture at d_0 .
- V_{px} Volume of the crater under prototype conditions: the volume in cubic feet within the limits of complete rupture at any given depth ratio Δ_x relative to the horizontal free surface. Geometry, detonation conditions, and charge shape as for prototype conditions,
- V_x Volume, ft³, of the crater to the limits of complete rupture at a depth ratio Δ_x relative to the nearest free face. Geometry, detonation conditions, and charge shape as in practice.

SYMBOLS (Cont'd)

W, w Weight, ib, of the explosive charge.

- x Gage distance: horizontal distance, ft, from the center of gravity of the charge to the gage position.
- Z Gage depth: depth, ft, from the horizontal surface to the gage position.

Δ Depth ratio: ratio of depth of charge to critical depth of charge,

$$\Delta = \frac{\alpha_c}{N}.$$

 Δ_0 Optimum depth ratio: d_0/N .

 λ Cube root of charge weight: a distance in feet equal to the cube root of the charge weight in pounds.

Note concerning subscripts: the following subscripts may be used with any given crater dimension. For example, if r is the crater radius, r_a is the radius of the apparent crater. If no subscript is used, the dimension concerns the limit of complete-rupture; in other words r and r_r have identical meanings (see Fig. 26, 28).

- a apparent crater
- e extreme-rupture limit
- r complete-rupture limit (absence of any subscript also indicates the dimension is to the limit of complete-rupture)

1

t true crater.

x

EQUATIONS

Breakage-process equation

$$\dot{\mathbf{W}} = \mathbf{E}^{\mathbf{Y}} \mathbf{A} \mathbf{B} \mathbf{C}$$

Strain-energy equation

N = E ₩

General equation

Children and

$$d_0 = \Delta_0 \in \sqrt[3]{W}$$

Optimum-depth-ratio equation

$$\Delta_0 = \frac{d_0}{N}$$

Materials-behavior-index equation

$$B = \frac{V_0}{N^3}$$

Energy-utilization-number equation

$$A = \frac{V}{V_0}$$

Equation of interdependence of linear and volume dimensions

$$K = ABC = \pi K_g (K_r)^2 K_h$$

Crater-volume equations

$$V = K_{g} \pi r^{2} h$$
$$V = KN^{3}$$

Stress-distribution-number equation

(Livingstón, 1960a)

Page 19

36

37

37

39

49

45

49

State of the state

xi

 $C = \frac{V_x}{V_{px}}$

Clifton W. Livingston

GENERAL PLAN OF THE TESTS

The problem

A CONTRACTOR OF THE OWNER

The investigation of the effects of explosions upon snow, ice, and frozen ground began with small-scale cratering studies in shallow frozen ground and later was extended to include deep frozen ground. The work was continued using small-scale cratering blasts in ice aided by a moderate instrumentation program. As a result of these studies, evidence bearing upon failure criteria was accumulated and a theory known as the theory of relative behavior of materials evolved.

By the time of completion of "Explosions in Ice" (Livingston, 1960b), it appeared that the shock wave-reflection theory, which is generally regarded as explaining the mechanism of failure in blasting, was not applicable to a'.l materials. Shock failure is characteristic of brittle substances, but, as the ductility of the material increases, the failure gradually changes to a shearing type. In blasts of glacier ice, shearing failure predominates over shock failure.

Snow that falls in the interior of Greenland eventually metamorphoses to ice, changing from a cohesionless substance to one possessing snear strength. Butkovich (1956) has shown that strength properties are related to the density of the snow, and that when the density approaches 0.37 g/cm^3 , snow possesses measurable strength in shear. Hence, during blasts in snow the failure process can be expected to approach as a limit the shearing-type failure observed when blasting in glacier ice. Accordingly, the fi and work was planned to allow observation of the effect upon the failure process as the shear strength of snow increases with depth.

This report describes the field work, presents the compiled data, and deals with cratering aspects of the problem. The instrumentation data are referred to here only in connection with the mechanics of the breakage process.

Description of the tests

The 1958 explosion tests in snow were conducted during the period 25 June to 16 August at Camp Fistclench on the interior of the Greenland Ice Cap. Three test explosives were used: Atlas 60-percent straight gelatin, military explosive C-4, and Atlas Coalite 7S. The blast charges weighed from 1 to 40 lb, and most were spherical in shape. In addition to the charges of spherical shape, three instrumented, 160-lb, cylindrical charges (one of each type of explosive) were detonated in 14-in. -diam boreholes.

Fifteen blasts were fired a short distance above, or in contact with, the snow surface. Ninety-one were fired at various depths below the 1958 snow surface, and 28 were fired in snow having a density of 0.4 g/cm^3 or greater. The high-density snow blasts, referred to here as trench blasts, were fired in wide, 12-ft-deep trenches excavated with a Peter plow.

Seven preliminary shots were fired either to zero-in the shock gages or to investigate some feature of the shock-gage instrumentation. Thirty-two of the total of 141 shots were instrumented so as to measure the air-blast and/or undersnow shock pressure. Positive-displacement seismic measurements

were taken at three different standard scaled distances on all except the preliminary instrumentation shots. Acceleration was measured at one gage position and at a constant scaled slant distance from each undersnow instrumented shot.

Figures 1 through 8 give the test geometry, type of explosive and charge weight. For some shots, only seismic measurements were taken: for others both shock and seismic measurements were taken.

Test site

ちちち いちい く い

2

The test site (Fig. 9) was located at Camp Fistclench about 220 miles east of Thule, Greenland, near 78° N latitude and at an elevation of approximately 7000 ft above sea level. The temperature during the test season ranged from -5F to 32F. The daily average velocity of the wind ranged from 4 to 20 knots. Weather data recorded at the test site are summarized in Figure 10.

Many of the physical and elastic properties of the snow have been found to be a function of the density. Although the correlation between physical properties and blast effects is beyond the scope of the present work, density profiles were measured throughout the test season so that such correlation could be made later. The density of undisturbed snow before blasting and of the disturbed snow after blasting was determined. Density samples were taken at various positions relative to the walls of the crater and to the walls of the explosion cavity.

Figure 11 summarizes the variation in density with depth below the 1958 surface. The variation does not differ greatly from that found earlier with respect to the 1954 surface (Table I). However, a substantial dispersion in density occurs at any given depth. When Figure 11 is used in connection with Figures 1-5, the approximate mean density of the undisturbed snow at the charge elevation may be estimated for any blast.

Table I summarizes (using data from Bentley, Pomeroy, and Dorman, 1957) the variation in density with depth below the 1954 snow surface as measured at the walls of the SIPRE test shaft. The table also records the relation between density, incompressibility, and rigidity.

Field procedure on uninstrumented shots

Those shots not instrumented for air-blast or undersnow shock are referred to as uninstrumented. However, both seismic measurements and motion pictures were taken of flyrock and ground motion. The uninstrumented shots were fired both before preparing the snow surface and after excavating and preparing a smooth trench bottom in high-density snow with the Peter plow. Because of the texture of the snow, the snow surface was not greatly damaged by equipment or men (see Fig. 9).

<u>Placement of colored columns and auger drilling</u>. The colored-column technique was used to determine the limits of the true crater, complete rupture, and extreme rupture. An A-rod was forced into the snow using the pull-down feed mechanism of a track-mounted drill rig. Holes spaced at a distance in feet equal to the cube root of the charge weight in pounds were punched to a depth exceeding the depth of complete rupture for the specified weight of charge. Holes were then backfilled with snow mixed with dyes of different colors. Charge holes of either 5, 7, 9, 11 or 13 in. diam were then augered to the proper depth.









3

1. 1. N. 1.

à

and the state of the second second second

ŝ

4



Figure 4. Trench blasts, Atlas 60%.

ат., з



No. of the second s

5

President



100 C 10 D 10 D 10

6

÷ý

212**22**2737



Figure 9. Test site.



Figure 10. Weather data.

7

2.0.2



Figure 11. Density profile, undisturbed snow.

Explosives. Explosives were molded into plastic spheres and detonated using electric blasting caps. A booster sleeve was placed over the cap to insure proper detonation of the C-4. Halves of the plastic spheres were taped together with electrician's tape, and a copper wire was wrapped around the outside of the sphere to lower the charge into the hole and to serve as a means of determining the instant of detonation. After the charge had been placed and its depth measured, the hole was filled with snow, which was compacted with a bamboo loading stick as the hole was being filled. Contact bursts were placed so that the plastic sphere was half buried in the snow, and the center of gravity of the charge was at the surface. Air bursts were suspended at the proper distance above the surface using a tripod. Properties of the test explosives are summarized in Table II, and the dimensions of the explosive spheres are summarized in Table III.

Table I. Variation in density, incompressibility, and rigidity with depthbelow the 1954 snow surface.

Depth (m)	Density (g/cm ³)	Incompressibility (10 ⁶ dynes/m ²)	Rigidity (10 ⁶ dynes/m ²)
0	0.35	0	0
5	0.47	0.72	0.31
10	0.53	1.52	0.69
15	0.57	2.12	1.02
20	0.60	2.52	1.28
25	0.63	3.00	1.43
30	0.65	3.43	1.62
35	0.67	3.83	1.78
40	0.70	4.28	1.93

Table II. Properties of the test explosives.

Explosive	Classifi- cation	Energy (cal/g)	Explosion pressure (psi)	Detonation velocity* (ft/sec)	Specific volume† (in. ³ /lb)
C-4	Military	1235		24,000	16.9
Atlas 60	Straight gelatin	1249	13,018	20,000	16.5
Coalite 7S	Àmmonia p er missible	916	14,913	10,000	25.0

*confined

†packed in spheres

Table III. Dimensions of explosive spheres.

Inside radius (ft)

Explosive	1.0-1b	2.5-1b	5.0-lb	10.0-1b	20.0-1b	<u>40.0-1b</u>
C-4		0.179	0.240	0.291	0.375	0.458
Atlas 60 Coalite 7S	0.135	0.179	0.240 0.276	0.291 0.326	0.375 0.436	0.458 0.542

Flyrock travel and preliminary measurements. Before a shot was fired, stakes were placed along the extension of the lines of colored columns to guide the plows during excavation. Flags were placed to serve as a ground scale for motion pictures, and camera and seismograph positions were specified, spotted, and prepared. At the time of the blast, a preliminary estimate of flyrock travel was made visually using the view finder and the ground scale. The approximate depth and diameter of the apparent crater were recorded, as also were the cracking radius at the surface, the magnitude of uplift or doming of the snow surface, and the range of sizes and predominant size of particles.

Excavation, field analysis, and crater surveys. Depending upon space limitations and the availability of equipment, either the Peter plow, the clamshell, or the dragline excavator was used to expose a wall parallel to and within one foot of the vertical plane containing the charge and the row of

colored columns. Hand tools such as saws, axes, and sharpened shovels were used to expose a vertical cross section through the axes of the colored columns to a depth greater than the limit of extreme rupture. Crater cross sections were then constructed to record the fracture pattern and the displacement of the colored columns (Fig. 12). The measurements were supplemented by black-and-white and color photography. After the colored columns had served their purpose, a smudging technique was used to determine the true crater. This technique brought out in sharp contrast the difference between the texture of snow in the walls beyond the crater and that in the region of elastic rebound and in the region of fall-!ack (Fig. 13). Standard density-sampling profiles were established for various types of shots (Fig. 25, 27). The samples were taken with a core-sample auger (Fig. 14). Throughout the period of field work, an analysis was carried forward daily to test various concepts suggested by evidence being accumulated. The field analysis served to direct the field work so as either to support or disprove the concept.

Seismic measurements. Three seismographs were available for the tests: a Leet 50-magnification positive-displacement meter, a Sprengnether 100magnification seismograph, and a Sprengnether 200-magnification seismograph. All three instruments measure the three components of vibration, but because of slow camera speed are not intended for extremely accurate measurements of seismic velocity. Table IV summarizes the observed variation in horizontal and vertical compressional-wave velocity with depth below the 1954 snow surface in the vicinity of the SIPRE test pit. Because of the high shock-damping capacity of snow it was found possible to place the seismographs much closer to the charge in snow than in ice. The position of the nearest seismograph depended upon the depth of the charge and the type of snow. If the depth of the charge exceeded the critical depth, displacement was measured with a remotely controlled Leet seismograph placed at a scaled distance as close as 12 λ (λ = cube root of the charge weight, 1b). The normal range of scaled distances was from 12 to 100λ . Because it is difficult to level a seismograph on soft snow, the procedure finally adopted was to excavate pits 2 ft deep by 4 ft square at each seismograph position.

Instrumentation

Gage signals were recorded using a Miller recording unit (Fig. 15) containing eight dual-beam cathode-ray oscilloscopes and a rotating-drum camera. One of the 16 channels was used for zero-time, another to measure the time of ground rise, and the remaining one to measure either undersnow pressure or pressure in the air. Three types of gage were used. Pencil gages (Fig. 16) containing barium titanate elements were used to measure pressures in the range 0.4 to 6 psi. "Baffle" gages with tourmaline-crystal elements 1-5/8 or 2-1/4 in. in diam (Fig. 17, left) were used to measure pressures in the range 5 to 30 psi; and water-shock gages with tourmaline gage elements 1/4, 3/8, or 1/2 in. in diam (Fig. 17, right) were used to measure pressures in the range 30 to 3000 psi. Statham accelerometers (Fig. 18) were used to measure acceleration in the range 0 to 20 G; and VibraShock accelerometers (Fig. 19) were used to measure acceleration in the range 20G to 2000G. The shock-damping capacity of the snow when charge and gage were at a shallow depth below the 1958 snow surface was found to be such that the water gages were capable of recording pressures within the ranges $1 \lambda < R < 10 \lambda$. The baffle gages were used in the range $1.5\lambda < R < 5\lambda$, and the pencil gages were used in the range $2\lambda < R < 10\lambda$. The shock-damping capacity of the trench snow proved lower than that of the 1958 surface snow, but the difference was not great enough to affect the choice or layout of the gages.



Figure 12. Recording fracture pattern and displacement of colored columns.



Figure 13. Snow texture along crater cross section as revealed using smudge technique.

11

1

える意味は言語は思想にいない。

1.4. . Mar



Figure 14. Drilling and recovering cores along density-sample profile lines.



Figure 15. Miller recording unit.



Figure 16. Fencil gage.



Fir .re 17. Baffle and water-shock gages.

13

ANTIN AND AND

Constantine Street of the

ŧ



Figure 18. Statham accelerometer.



Figure 19. VibraShock accelerometer.

Table IV. Horizontal- and vertical-compressional-wave velocity.(From Bentley, et al., 1957).

Depth (m)	Horizontal compressional- wave velocity (m/sec)		Vertical compressional- wave velocity (m/sec)	Density (g/cm ³)
0	700		700	0.35
5			1600	0.47
10	1400		2150	0.53
15	e e		2400	0.57
20	2700		2650	0.60
25			2800	0.63
30	••		2900	0.65
40	3150	•		0.70
60	3400			
80	3600			
100	3700			
120	3800		• •	
140	3850		••	
200	3865 (max)		- +	.

Standard gage layouts were planned so as to maintain geometric similarity, and were independent of the type of explosive and of physical properties of the material. The cube root of the charge weight was used as a scaling parameter. Figures 20 and 21 illustrate standard gage layouts for charges detonated at 3.0λ and 1.0λ below the surface. Figures 22, 23, and 24 illustrate standard gage layouts for contact and air bursts above the 1958 snow surface. Because of time limitations it was not possible to fire similar shots in contact with and above the higher-density, trench-bottom snow.

Because 1) the physical properties of the snow change as the density changes, and 2) the explosive and the material are not separate and independent variables, it seems desirable when analyzing the shock data to consider separately for each type of explosive the test conditions enumerated in Table V.

Table V. Suggested test conditions for analysis of undersnow shock.

Tes	t condition	Scaled charge depth	Scaled gage depth
Case I	(Undersnow)	-1λ	1λ
Case II	(Undersnow)	- 3λ	1.5λ
Case III	(Undersnow)	- 3λ	3λ
Case IV	(Contact burst)	0	2.3 to 4.5λ
Case V	(Air burst)	+0.5λ	1.8 to 3.2λ
Case VI	(Air burst)	+1.0λ	1.3 to 2.7λ

Compilation of data

The crater data gathered during this investigation are summarized in the Appendix. Shock, design, charge, camera and seismic data have not been published but are compiled in USA CRREL Internal Report 37, which





Figure 20. Standard gage layout, depth of charge = 3.0λ .



Figure 21. Standard gage layout, depth of charge = 1.0λ .

is on file at the U.S. Army Cold Regions Research and Engineering Laboratory, Hanover, New Hampshire. Also included in Internal Report 37 are 114 crater cross sections (similar to Fig. 25 and 27) with overlays showing displacement of the colored columns (see p. 2).

16

ì

1000







Figure 23. Standard gage layout, height of charge = 0.5λ .







EVALUATION OF THE DATA

Crater and cavity nomenclature

Snow does not occur as a homogeneous mass, but accumulates and metamorphoses as a layered system (See Fig. 13). It may be thought of as a composite substance that consists of a brittle-acting elastic solid and air. Within the range of charge depths covered by the experiments, the snow is both porous and permeable, but its physical properties (Bader et al, 1939; Butkovich, 1956) change gradually with depth below the surface. In the test blasts, several factors contributed to the variable behavior of snow. Both the air within the voids and the solid matrix affect the failure process, and the proportions of these two varied. Even if proportions had remained constant, behavior of the snow would have changed with changes in texture and permeability. Certain of the blasts were fired in near-surface snow with little cohesion; others were fired in deeper snow with greater cohesion and with shear strength. The geometry varied from blast to blast.

Although the effect of the air in the voids is much more apparent during blasts in snow than in noncohesive, porous soils, the effect observed probably exists in porous and permeable soils to a lesser degree. The air within the voids is affected during both rise to and decline from peak pressure, but the effect occurring during the decline may be apparent in low-density, highporosity materials. The failure process resulting from blasts in snow differs

from that in most rocks and in cohesive soils. Because of its air-filled voids, snow that is permeable and highly porous behaves quite differently than glacier ice; the faiture of such snow is here classified as viscous damping. In snow, this viscous-damping failure changes with increasing depth so as to approach the shear failure observed in glacier ice. A distinction, therefore, is made here between failure processes 1) in brittle-acting solids, 2) in more plasticacting materials such as loess, clay, and ice, and 3) in composite substances such as snow in which the air-filled voids affect the stress-strain relations during both loading and unloading.

In the attempt to fix various limits of the crater and of the camouflet using terminology generally employed for blasts in soils, and on a somewhat modified basis for blasts in rocks, a conflict arises that is difficult to resolve. It is due in part to the fact that heretofore only one type of failure in blasting has been generally recognized, and in part to the fact that present terminology is an outgrowth of experiments conducted within a specific and limited range of charge depths. The colored-column technique, which made the differentiation between limits possible, has been applied primarily in soils, and is less practical (because of difficulties during excavation) to apply to rocks, frozen ground and ice. The definition of the true crater as generally applied to craters in rocks and as recently applied to frozen ground and to ice appears to coincide with the limit of complete rupture as applied to soils.

The generally held definition of the true crater is the excavation as it would appear to an observer after removing material that has been lifted from its original position by the force of the blast, but has fallen back into the excavation. The definition implies a separation and removal of material from its surroundings. The limit of the true crater is a surface between material that has been isolated and material that remains attached. The limit visualizes the failure process occurring during loading by fracture rather than as in snow during both loading and unloading by a complex combination of compaction, scouring, flowage, slumping, and rebound. Because of the complexity of the failure process and because the experiments of this report include test conditions ranging from air-burst to deep undersnow shots, the true-crater limit in snow is difficult to find and has little meaning relative to failure.

Although limits of the true crater are marked on the snow-crater cross sections and all data necessary to a conventional analysis have been summarized in the data sheets, the complete-rupture limit and the extremerupture limit more accurately describe the failure process. The parameters of the breakage-process equation:

$$\frac{V}{W} = E^3 ABC$$

VILLA DA

27.05

are determined by the limits of complete supture and extreme rupture. They describe: 1) the beginning, and 2) the completion of failure by fracture.

The following definition of the term "apparent crater" is adopted here: The excavation as it appears to an observer immediately after a blast at a depth sufficiently shallow so that a crater is formed and is not filled with flyrock beyond the level of the original ground surface. The term does not apply to charges that dome up rather than break the surface. An apparent crater ccases to exist as the depth of the charge increases so as to approach the optimum depth, Δ_0 . Inasmuch as an apparent crater does not exist in the range where the energy of the explosion is partitioned exclusively to loading the material, the dimensions of the apparent crater bear little direct relationship to the parameters of the breakage-process equation.

Limits of significance to the primary fracture process in snow are:

l) the limit of compaction, flowage, and fracture that determines the size and shape of the cavity caused by an explosion

2) the limit of complete rupture

3) the limit of extreme rupture.

The limit of complete rupture coincides with the limits of the camouflet as the charge depth increases from that at which a crater is formed to that at which a camouflet is formed. Although the zone between the limit of complete rupture and the limit of extreme rupture is fractured, it is not isolated and, in snow, both the original bedding and texture are retained.

The following definitions of the limits of complete rupture and of extreme rupture are proposed and have been adopted here.

The limit of complete rupture is a surface which divides material isolated from its surroundings and material not isolated from its surroundings.

The limit of extreme rupture is a surface running through the ends of fractures farthest from the center of the explosion. The extreme-rupture surface is always beyond the complete-rupture surface. The limit of extreme rupture exists both when a crater is formed and when a camouflet is formed.

Figure 25 illustrates the open-void fracture pattern and column displacement that is typical of failure resulting from blasts in surface and nearsurface snow of the Greenland Ice Cap and the various crater limits according to terminology used here.

The texture of the snow within the true crater (see Fig. 13) differs from that beyond it, but the difference is not readily apparent before use of the smudge technique. A zone of open voids lies between the true-crater limit and the limit of complete rupture. Between the complete-rupture limit and the extreme-rupture limit the original bedding is retained, but fractures caused by the explosion are present. The observed relations suggest that the fractures were formed before the open cavities were formed and during the interval of time when the undersnow pressure rose to its peak at any given position. The limit of the true crater is difficult to determine, and has been placed with least certainty. The uncertainty is not due to definition or observation alone, but arises because various complex phenomena occur, to an extent which differs depending upon the depth ratio.

Figure 26 illustrates crater nomenclature and identifies dimensions and symbols relating to each of the crater limits. The letters h, d, Z, x, R, r, and C refer to crater depth, charge depth, gage depth, gage distance, gage slant distance, crater radius, and crater slant distance respectively. The subscripts a, t, r, and e define respectively the apparent-, true- complete-, and extreme-rupture limits.

Figure 27 illustrates the pattern of fracturing and the displacement of colored columns typical of a specific phase of cavity growth in snow. The limit of extreme rupture marks the terminus of fractures which occurred during pressure rise and outward displacement of the snow. The limit defined for a camouflet is identical to that defined for a crater. Figure 28 illustrates cavity nomenclature and designations.



Figure 25. Crater limits and column displacement.





21



Figure 27. Cavity fracture limits and column displacement.



Figure 28. Cavity nomenclature.

Variation in crater shape with charge depth

CHINA STREET

Figures 29 and 30 illustrate the effect of charge depth upon size and shape of crater in 1958 surface snow. The drawings were constructed using the cube root of the charge weight as a scaling factor (λ equals the cube root of the charge weight in pounds).

Each limit increases to a maximum then decreases as the depth of the charge increases. Within the range illustrated (-0, $08 < \Delta < 0, 98$) each of the limits except that of extreme rupture ceases to exist as the depth ratio increases, disappearing in this order: 1) the apparent crater, 2) the true crater, 3) complete rupture.

Typical undersnow pressure records

Figure 31 illustrates the typical variation in shape of the undersnowpressure record with distance. In both instances the gages were placed at a depth equal to the depth of the charge, and the same type of gage was used.

The form of the pressure record differs substantially from that for water or air. The peak pressure is lower than in ice at the same scaled distance. The pressure at the front of the disturbance is small compared to the peak pressure, which at distances as small as 1.5λ arrives later. The surface of ground vertically above the charge rises after the arrival of peak pressure, which is substantially after the arrival of the disturbance. The form and the magnitude of the pressure record are affected both by the depth of the charge and the distance to the gage.

In an experiment to determine whether or not the passage of the disturbance causes an appreciable rise of pressure within the voids, the sensing element of the pencil gage (Fig. 16) was suspended in a 2-in. -diam by 2-in. high cavity at a distance of 4 λ from a 5-lb charge 2 λ below the surface. The gage distance was beyond the complete-rupture limit. A baffle gage and a second pencil gage were placed in a conventional manner to measure the undersnow shock pressure at the same gage distance and at the same charge depth. After the experiment, the gage was carefully excavated, and it was found that the cavity had not been closed by the explosion.

Records from the experiment are presented in Figure 32. The form of the undersnow shock record (Fig. 32b) for the baffle gage differs somewhat from that (Fig. 32c) for the pencil gage, but both reach the same peak pressure. The air pressure within the void (Fig. 32a) rises more slowly than the undersnow pressure (Fig. 32c), but ultimately reaches a peak nearly equal to the undersnow shock pressure.

Typical acceleration records

Figure 33 illustrates typical undersnow acceleration records, for the same blasts used to illustrate the pressure record (Fig. 31). The slant distance to the accelerometers is the same for both blasts (see standard gage layouts, Fig. 20, 21), but the gage depth could not be held constant because of practical limitations. Placing an accelerometer at a substantial depth below the surface without disturbing the snow in contact with it is difficult.

Typical seismic records

The effect of the depth of the charge upon the magnitude of the displacement and upon the three components of vibration in snow is illustrated in Figures 34, 35, and 36. The direct undersnow shock is damped more rapidly
• •

.







Figure 30. Complete and extreme rupture limits at increasing depth ratios.

24

The second



Figure 31. Typical variation of undersnow pressure with distance.



Figure 32. Comparison of void pressure and undersnow pressure.

25

A service and the service of the



Figure 33. Typical undersnow-acceleration records.



Figure 34. Typical seismic records, longitudinal component.

1

CT-CHANNEN



Figure 35. Typical seismic records, vertical component.



Figure 36. Typical seismic records, transverse component.

27

÷

in low-density near-surface snow than in snow at greater depth. The vertical and transverse components of the air-induced undersnow shock at 100λ exceed those of the direct undersnow shock for both air bursts and contact bursts. At a charge depth of 2λ the air-induced shock is of minor consequence. As the depth of the charge increases, more of the energy of the explosion is partitioned to the material, and the displacement due to the direct shock (as measured 2 ft below the surface) increases further. The frequency of each of the three components of vibration differs, but does not vary greatly with the depth of the charge. The frequency as measured 100λ from the charge position decreases in the order:

- a) transverse
- b) vertical
- c) longitudinal.

The damping capacity of near-surface snow is greater than that of the higher-density snow at depth. Similarly, the damping capacity of the trench snow is greater than that of glacier ice. Because of the high damping capacity of the snow, it was practical to record displacement with a Leet 50-magnification instrument at a scaled distance as small as 12λ .

The failure process

The effect observed when blasting in snow depends upon the depth ratio of the shot and upon the time and place of observation, with respect to the rise and decline of stress within the material. The "time" refers to a particular instant during the action. The "place" denotes a specific position at a given instant relative to the energy source, the disturbance, and the 1958 snow surface.

A cross section through a crater caused by an air burst reveals phenomena substantially different than those revealed by the crater of a blast at nearoptimum depth. Similarly, the size and shape of the undersnow cavity, and details of fracturing beyond the cavity walls, differ depending upon the depth ratio of the blast. The behavior of the material is not independent of the scale of the experiment. At some depth below the surface, snow of the Greenland Ice Cap acquires properties of glacier ice, and failure approaches shearing failure as a limit. When blasts were in the bottom of wide, 12-ft-deep trenches, certain phenomena were observed that are indicative of the transition.

Figure 37 illustrates the type of failure referred to here as "viscousdamping." The photograph records the effect of the release of stored potential energy from the snow after venting of the gas bubble and the decline of pressure within the explosion cavity. At the stage illustrated, displacement of the columns is inward and symmetrical about the charge position. The effect illustrated in Figure 38 occurs at an earlier stage while the snow is being loaded and the stress is increasing. Shearing failure does not occur in snow that is noncohesive, but begins as the density becomes greater than 0.35 g/cm^3 (Butkovich, 1956) Figures 37 and 38 illustrate effects in 0.45 g/cm³ density trench snow.

The cratering result viewed by an observer after an explosion is the end product of a series of events that took place during an interval measurable in milliseconds. Observation of earlier events requires suppression of later ones. Although it is beyond the power of an observer greatly to modify the duration of the action, "later" events can be suppressed by increasing the ratio of the volume of material within which the transfer is accomplished to

411



Figure 37. Viscous-damping failure.



Figure 38. Shearing failure in 0.45 g/cm^3 density trench snow.

the quantity of energy to be transferred in a given interval of time. The depth ratio is a dimensionless quantity related to the failure process by definition and describing an energy-mass-time relationship fixed by the energy of the explosion, the depth of the charge, and physical properties of the material. The determination of the sequence of events during blasts in snow is made possible by applying the theory of relative behavior of materials (Livingston, 1960a) wherein a change that is accomplished in time becomes analogous to an energy-density change and is measurable by the depth ratio.

<u>Cavity growth</u>. Figure 39 illustrates the sequence of events at the explosion cavity when a deeply buried explosives charge is detonated in snow possessing shear strength. The snow is compacted and driven radially outward as the gas bubble expands. The displacement of the snow is greater parallel to than across the snow layers (Fig. 39a). As the snow is displaced outwardly, it is compacted. Compaction apparently does not proceed beyond some critical density, which is in the range of 0.50 to 0.60 g/cm³. The thickness of the compacted zone in snow of a given density depends upon the shape and volume of the cavity. The walls of the explosion cavity are fractured (Fig. 39b) by stretching in a tangential direction as the cavity expands radially. Melting occurs at the cavity wall, and converts the skin of the compacted, fractured and expanding zone into ice.

Figure 39c illustrates the shape of the explosion cavity at that depth ratio where expansion ceases and fracturing begins. The roof and floor are dome-shaped, but surface uplift has proceeded sufficiently to weaken the chamber at a horizontal plane through the spring line. Weak2ning preferentially accelerates horizontal displacement within the zone of stretching at the charge elevation.

Cavity deformation such as illustrated is indicative of the stress distribution within the cavity during doming. Either the uplift-horizontalstretching type of cavity deformation or the shearing illustrated in Figure 38 may occur. Which type occurs depends upon both physical properties of the material and the scale of the experiment. In either instance, failure begins at critical depth ($\Delta = 1.0$) and fracturing proceeds outwardly from the walls of the explosion cavity.

The next event (Fig. 39d) destroys the explosion cavity, and is referred to here as implosion. The walls fall inward, and both the zone of skinsurface melting and the zone of compaction are destroyed. Failure extends to a zone surrounding the collapsed opening. Limits of a zone of arching failure are shown in the figure. A transition condition and a most sensitive balance mark the beginning of implosion and the beginning of fracturing. The balance determining the extent of fracturing (shear) during the pressure rise and the extent of fracturing during the pressure decline is most delicate. The observed sensitivity is not inconsistent with variation in the form of the pressure record with charge depth and with distance such as illustrated in Figure 31.

Implosion and related events. Implosion represents a stage of failure during unloading of the material, as the undersnow pressure declines from peak pressure. Both loading and unloading depend in a complex manner upon the air within the voids and upon the texture of the snow. Implosion has an upper limit that coincides with the beginning of fracture. Whether or not it ceases at some lower limit is uncertain. The phenomenon was observed over a broader range of depth ratios in trench snow than in 1958 surface snow. The limits within which it occurs apparently depend upon the quantity of stored potential energy that is recoverable. The sequence of events leading to implosion and preliminary to venting of the gas bubble is illustrated in Figure 40.



Withment & the a start and a

(a) Blast 59.5 $\Delta = 1.31$, 20 lb C7S



(b) Blast 74 $\Delta = 0.97, 2.5$ lb A60, Trench



(c) Blast 46 $\Delta = 0.98$, 40 lb C-4



(d) Blast 54B $\Delta = 0.90, 2.5 \text{ lb C-4}$



Permanent displacement of the snow during pressure rise and the variation of the displacement with distance are illustrated in Figure 40a. The columns in the figure were spaced 1λ (3.42 ft) apart. The secondary cavity shown in Figure 40a resulted from collapse of snow possessing shear strength. It differs from the primary cavity both in shape and position. The column immediately to the right is displaced in a zigzag manner by doming and sliding along the bedding planes. The ice lens at the bottom of the photograph indicates the extent of the doming. Permanent displacement decreases with distance from the primary cavity, as is evident in the photograph. The pattern of the permanent displacement is determined to a greater extent by expansion of the gas bubble than by the preceding disturbance.

Figure 40b records that stage of implosion where the once-melted skin of the original explosion cavity explodes inward and the fragments strike each other as if they were part of the lining of a shaped charge of nearhemispherical shape. As a result of implosion, the floor below the cavity bulges upward. The bulging is greater at the centerline of the primary cavity than near the ribs. The magnitude of the bulging is indicated by the stretching of the colored column at the bottom center of the photograph. 31

いたいであるとうないないです。



(a) Blast 26 $\Delta = 0.82, 40 \text{ lb A60}$



(b) Blast E



(c) Blast C

(d) Blast 34 $\Delta = 0.71, 2.5 \text{ lb C4}$

Figure 40c illustrates the effect of implosion upon the wall of the cavity. The implode and collapsed cavity is to the lower left in the photograph. Displacement towards the explosion cavity leaves an open void at some distance (1.4 λ in Fig. 40c), depending upon the explosive, the material, and the geometry. The void may be thought of as a tension fracture. Material beyond the void appears little affected by the implosion. A zone of voids (Fig. 25) marks the limits of the zone within which energy stored during loading is released during unloading. The entire process of implosion in snow appears analogous to elastic rebound. More energy may be recoverable from a composite of solid and air than from simple solid substances, because a lesser proportion of available energy is lost during loading and a greater proportion of the stored energy is recovered during unloading.

 $\mathcal{R}_{\mathbf{k}}$

Figure 40. Implosion and related events.

STATES TO A

Figure 40d illustrates a situation after implosion and prior to venting, when shear fractures such as in Figure 38 have partly developed, but die out in the lower-density 1958 surface snow. Gases from the explosion cavity have permeated outward along the incipient shear zone, and implosion has occurred without venting of the gas bubble. A cauldron-type roof collapse such as occurs in certain large geologic structures followed implosion, and the once-domed-up snow fell back into the void that was created by compaction.

Figure 39d demonstrates that energy may be stored in and released from the roof of the explosion cavity. Because loading does not continue long after fracture or displacement begins, implosion of the roof probably diminishes as the depth of the charge decreases. The available evidence suggests that the top of the explosion cavity is isolated by a fracture process (see Fig. 38) that is accompanied by doming (see Fig. 40a). The action is in extreme contrast to that of shock-wave reflection in brittle-acting solids.

Vortex and scouring motions. As the depth of the charge decreases, a condition is reached at which loading ceases and the gas bubble vents to the atmosphere. Closely associated with implosion, a vortex motion within the snow is followed by venting, which in turn is accompanied by a scouring action caused by the motion of high-velocity gases in the air above the surface. If the energy is in excess of that transferable to the snow, events during the decline from peak pressure occur in a natural sequence (Fig. 41a-d). Since they are placed in order of decreasing depth ratio, the pholographs of Figure 41 may be thought of as illustrating the motion of snow at various stages of a given blast.

Figure 41a illustrates the beginning of the vortex motion of the snow following implosion. Soot, formed by incomplete combustion of C-4, marks the path of the snow into the throat of the vortex. The displacement of the colored columns illustrates limits of the motion.

Figure 41b illustrates the upward migration of what was once the shell of the explosion cavity into the vortex. The situation occurs an instant later than that illustrated in Figure 41a. The fracture and flowage are caused by release of potential energy stored in a zone surrounding the primary cavity but within the limit of complete rupture.

Figure 41c outlines the shape of the throat an instant later and illustrates, through displacement of the one remaining colored column, the downward slumping at the crater rim that is a part of the vortex motion of the snow.

Figure 41d illustrates what is left of the roots of the vortex at the stage where scouring action predominates over the vortex action.

The vortex and scouring actions represent a sequence of events during the decline from peak pressure. The apparent crater is caused by the vortex and scouring actions, and reaches its maximum volume per pound of explosive when the scouring effect of the high-velocity gases upon the snow is maximum. Maximum velocity occurs as a result of complete conversion of the pressure head within the gas bubble to velocity head, and maximum scouring occurs at the transition depth between the fragmentation range and the airbiast range.

Mechanics of viscous-damping failure

A comprehensive analysis of the mechanics of viscous-damping failure in snow is beyond the scope of this report. The following discussion refers to the general case and does not take into account variations due to the explosive and the material. Such variations are believed consistent with and explainable by the theory of relative behavior of materials (Livingston, 1960a).



(a) Blast 211 $\Delta = 0.48$, 10 lb C-4



Blast 201 **(b)** $\Delta = 0.41$, 10 lb Atlas 60



 $\Delta = 0.16$, 10 lb C-4



The term "viscous damping" arises from a concept of the motion of the air within the communicating voids of the snow as the material is first loaded by the force of the explosion, then unloaded. A shell of compacted snow forms as the cavity expands, and air is displaced beyond the expanding shell into the surrounding zone. The zone may be thought of as a cellular dash pot offering resistance to fluid flow. The motion of the vibrating mass is restrained by a damping force proportional to the velocity, and the action is analogous to viscous resistance in a fluid medium.

Figure 32 provides evidence of the pressure rise and of the motion of the air within the voids. Figures 39-41 provide evidence that the volume change causes motion both of the air and of the solid particles. The pressure record (Fig. 31) demonstrates that the pressure peak does not occur at the front of the disturbance, but reaches a maximum later.

The effect of the explosion upon the snow during loading depends upon the depth of the charge, the place of observation relative to the surface, and the distance to the place of observation. The loading cycle is of long duratio both because of the relatively slow propagation of the disturbance, and because

throughout the range measured the propagation velocity is greater through the solid particles than through the air in the communicating passages of the snow. The extent to which the loading cycle develops depends both upon the strength of the material and upon the depth of the charge. The extent to which it is registered depends upon the gage position. Physical properties of the snow vary with depth below the surface; but the material and the explosive are not separate and independent variables. During the loading, a substantial proportion of the energy of the explosion is required for compacting and deforming the material. Additional energy is lost to seismic effects and to fluid flow. Energy also compresses the air and stresses the solid particles.

The action differs substantially from shock failure, which is characteristic of brittle-acting substances. Failure in snow begins at the explosion cavity and proceeds outward into the material. (See Fig. 38 and 40a). Doming occurs above the charge and is accompanied by failure on radial planes which begin at the collar of the borehole and proceed outward and downward into the material. Shear displacement occurs along the bedding planes, and, as the action proceeds, the beds are domed up into concentric shells such as those observed when blasting in frozen dredge-fill silt (Livingston, 1956: p. 42-46, Fig. 53-54).

During unloading, much of the energy expended to compress air in the voids and passages of the snow is recovered and re-expended in both fracture and flow. It appears likely that a part of the energy stored in the solid snow particles also may be recovered (Livingston, 1960b, Fig. 21).

The phenomenon of implosion and the vortex and scouring actions observed in these tests relate fracture and flowage not only to loading, but also to unloading. The vortex action follows implosion, which begins at critical depth. Because more of the energy partitions to the atmosphere, effects dependent upon loading and unloading of the snow become less predominant as the depth of charge decreases. As depth decreases further to the point of transition from the fragmentation range to the air-blest range, a substantial part of the energy of explosion is partitioned to the atmosphere; at this point events dependent upon partitioning of energy to the snow become less apparent than the vortex action that begins with unloading.

CONSTANT QUANTITIES AND ENERGY UTILIZATION

Introduction

Although it is impractical to take it completely into account, the variation in physical properties of the snow with depth below the surface may be taken partly into account by treating blasts with each weight of explosive in the 195t surface snow separately from those below the bottom of the wide, 12-ft-deep trenches.

For a given material, a given weight of charge, a given explosive, and a given set of detonation conditions, the parameters E, B and C of the Livingston crater equations (Livingston, 1960a, p. 7-21) are constants.

Within limits of accuracy determined largely by variations in physical properties which could not be evaluated, it can be shown that, at any given depth ratio Δ :

a) the volume of snow excavation within the limits of complete rupture for a given weight and type of explosive is a constant quantity (WE^3B) times the energy utilization number A

35

のなどをきしたいとう

b) the volume per pound of explosive within limits of complete rupture for a given weight and type of explosive is another constant quantity $(E^3 B)$ times the energy utilization number

c) the N-scaled volume of complete rupture for a given weight and type of explosive is a third constant quantity (B) times the energy-utilization number.

The materials-behavior index B appears in all three of the constant quantities and can be determined with certainty. The strain-energy factor E appears in two of the three constant quantities; it describes the beginning of fracturing and also can be determined with certainty. As E and B are measurable and W is known, the energy-utilization number A (which is a function of the depth ratio) can be evaluated to the same degree of accuracy as E or B.

Evaluating the strain-energy factor

The strain-energy equation

 $N = E \sqrt[4]{W}$

where

N is the critical depth (determination described below)

E is the strain-energy factor, a factor that relates to the effect of the explosive on the material

W is the charge weight in pounds

describes in relative units an energy-mass-time relationship at the beginning of fracture. The relationship is that existing within the volume of material bounded by the disturbance at the instant of failure. As the effect at each element depends upon the loading and unloading conditions and varies with the radial distance from the charge, it is convenient to evaluate the average condition within the material rather than the specific condition at the element. Although the volume of material bounded by the disturbance at the instant of fracture is not known accurately, it is assumed that the material is homogeneous and that the surface of the disturbance is spherical.

Two methods of evaluating E are possible. Both assume that the disturbance at the instant of fracture is at a radial distance from the center of the charge equal to the critical depth N, and both depend upon determining the critical depth N experimentally. The first method is the maximumradius-of-rupture method; in it the critical depth is taken as the charge depth which maximizes radial distance from charge center to limit of extreme rupture. The second method is the method of direct observation and pinpointing; in it the critical depth is defined as the depth at which fracturing begins. The depth at which fracturing begins can be distinguished from the limit to which fracturing proceeds; the difference between the two depends on the explosive and the material.

In an ideal brittle material, the disturbance is communicated to the surface at infinite velocity; and at the surface above the charge, the fracture begins when the vertical displacement is zero. In less-brittle materials, the disturbance is communicated to the surface at finite velocity, and surface uplift at failure is substantial. As the material is domed up, the maximum slant distance from the charge to the surface at the limit of extreme rupture becomes greater than the vertical distance. Shock-type failure becomes less frequent as the material becomes less brittle and as deformation without loss of cohesion occurs.

Although both methods were used here, the method of direct observation and pinpointing is more consistent with definitions and terminology adopted here, and makes possible a correlation between the limits of complete and extreme rupture. It also provides a means whereby the beginning of fracture and the beginning of doming may be related to the critical distance.

The critical depth is first approximated between some known depth at which fractures do appear at the surface and a greater depth at which they do not. The difference between the two is then reduced successively as the work proceeds. The limiting total vertical deformation at which fracturing of the snow begins is estimated visually with the aid of motion pictures and a ground scale. The permanent displacement corresponding to the total displacement is similarly noted. A correlation between pattern of fracture and permanent displacement is established during excavation.

Figure 3 indicates the manner in which information obtained using 1.0-lb test shots at 1.0-ft increments of depth was extrapolated to larger charges and at the same time the distance between shots straddling critical depth was successively reduced. The 2.5-, 10- and 40-lb shots are routine shots in which the test geometry was held constant in an attempt to correlate instrumentation and breakage effects using the cube root of the charge weight as a scaling factor.

Table VI summarizes values of the strain-energy factor as determined by the method of direct observation and pinpointing and later supplemented by use of motion pictures and the crater cross sections.

Determining the depth ratio at optimum depth

The charge depth at which fracturing proceeds to completion, but no further, is the optimum depth d_0 , and the general equation applied to this situation is

$d_0 = \Delta_0 \in \sqrt[4]{W}$

where Δ_0 is the optimum depth ratio and equals $\frac{\alpha_0}{N}$.

Optimum depth d_0 and optimum Δ_0 may be determined in either of two ways. One employs an office technique in which V/W within limits of complete rupture is plotted against the depth ratio Δ to determine the specific value Δ_0 , where V/W is maximum. The other combines field and office techniques as in the method of direct observation and pinpointing to determine critical depth. At depth d_0 the energy-utilization number A is unity, and the maximum proportion of the total energy of the explosion is expended in: 1) fractures formed during the rise to peak pressure, and 2) fractures formed during implosion or elastic rebound by release of potential energy stored during loading.

Experience has shown that breakthrough of the gas bubble occurs if the depth ratio is slightly less than Δ_0 , and that V/W within limits of complete rupture reaches a maximum just before venting occurs. Experience also has shown that the noise level changes substantially when the gas bubble breaks through, and that breakthrough occurs in materials such as ice and snow immediately after the material is domed to near-hemispherical shape.

The method of direct observation and pinpointing consists of approximating d_0 between a charge that is too deep and does not dome the surface to near-hemispherical shape, and one that is too shallow and domes the surface beyond the hemispherical shape so that plumes begin (Cole, 1948), the

ME3 BC		;	350.3	662.5	1239.3		4042.0		345.0	1739.8			199.0	951.1
E3 BC	C-4 1958 Surface $\Delta_0 = 0.58$:	140.1	132.5	123.9	1	101.0	= 0.63	138.0	174.0		= 71	79 6	95.1
BC			0.59	0.56	0.52	•	0.42	usts Δ_0	0.58	0.73		lasts ∆ ₀	0 72	0.86
E3		238.3	238.3	238.3	238.3	238.3	238.3	ench Ble	238.3	238.3	c .0c 2	lite 7S Trench B	110.5	110.5
Strain energy factor E		6.2	6.2	6.2	6.2	6.2	6.2	s 60 Tre	6.2	6, 2			8,4	4.8
Materials behavior B xəbni		;	0.59	0.56	0.52	!	0.42	Atla	0.58	0.73		Coal	0.72	0.86
Charge Weight 16 W		1.0	2.5	5.0	10.0	20.0	40.0		2.5	10.0			2.5	10.0
ME3 BC		;	593.2	988.1	1649.4	1 1	4792.8		95.0	297.5		1060.6	;	3680, 8
E3 BC	Atlas 60 1958 Surface $\Delta_0 = 0.58$	ł	237.3	197.6	164.9	;	119.8	$\Delta_0 = 0.57$	95.0	119.0	;	106.0	1	92.0
вс		1	0.61	0.51	0.42	!	0.31	te 7S 1958 Surface	0.44	0.55	1	0.49	•	0.43
E3		389	389	389	389	389	389		216	216	216	216	216	216
Strain energy factor E		7.3	7.3	7.3	7.3	7.3	7.3		6.0	6.0	6.0	6.0	6.0	6.0
alaiteriala behavior B xəbni		1	0.61	0.51	0.42	1	0.31	Coali	0.44	0.55	1	0.49	1	0.43
Darge Veight Vaight		1.0	5.2	0.0	19.0	20.0	40.0		1.0	2.5	5.0	10.0	20.0	40 0

日本日本市地区におきたないで

Table VI. Constants for charges of spherical shape.

noise level increases abruptly, and fragmentation of the flyrock increases so as to begin to obliterate the primary fracture pattern. Motion pictures record a ground scale, the displacement of the uplifted snow, and venting phenomena. The range of particle sizes is observed, and the shape of the fragments noted.

Figures 1-5 indicate the method of pinpointing and the straddling procedure used in the field to determine Δ_0 in first approximation. Through use of the above method, the 1958 snow-surface data were extrapolated to 160-lb charges as accurately as the charges could be positioned with respect to the pressure gages.

The office procedure (in which field data available at the time of the blast are supplemented by all of the available data to determine d_0 and Δ_0 more accurately) is essentially the same as the office procedure to determine critical depth.

Values of Δ_0 thus determined are summarized in Table VI. In 1958 surface snow and trench snow, both E and Δ_0 were found to be independent of charge weight (in glacier ice, however, they were found to be dependent) (Livingston, 1960b).

Evaluating the materials-behavior index

The materials-behavior index B is a constant for a given type of explosive and weight of charge in a given material. Variation in B is due to: 1) an increase or decrease in lateral confinement depending upon the depth of charge, or 2) an increase or decrease in the failure stress depending both upon the lateral confinement and the loading rate (which in turn depends upon both the material and the explosive).

Evaluation is based upon the equation:

 $B = \frac{V_0}{N^3}$

where V_0 is the volume within limits of complete rupture at optimum depth, and N is the critical depth.

The materials-behavior index equals a constant of proportionality times a dimensionless ratio of lengths to the third power. The length defined by V_0 is that at which the average energy density within the material is sufficient to complete the failure process. The length defined by N is that at which fracturing begins. Experience has shown that B decreases as energy requirements for deformation without loss of cohesion or for flowage increase. High values of B are indicative of brittle failure, and low values of B are indicative of a more ductile type. A decrease in B is indicative of: 1) an increase in energy density, 2) a change from brittle-acting to more-plastic-acting material, or 3) a decrease in loading rate.

Table VI summarizes the constant quantities B, E^3B , and WE^3B for various weights of each of the test explosives.

The energy-utilization number A

The energy-utilization number is a dimensionless ratio of volumes (one the extent to which the failure occurs at any depth, the other the extent to which failure occurs where the maximum proportion of the energy of the explosion is utilized in loading the material).

It is difficult to measure energy partitioning or to describe it in absolute units. For the present it is most practical to relate energy to charge weight and to relate energy partitioning to a prototype situation in which the maximum proportion of the energy of the explosion is partitioned to loading the material. By use of the theory of relative behavior of materials, it is possible to predict that the proportion of the total energy of the explosion partitioned to loading the material i. variable rather than constant, and that the variation depends upon: 1) the loading rate, 2) the relative brittleness or ductility of the material, and 3) the failure stress (which depends upon the average energy density required to complete the primary fracture process).

The method chosen here to describe energy partitioning is one in which geometric similarity is extended to the failure process. The energyutilization number is assigned a value of unity w¹ en primary fractures caused by loading and unloading proceed to completion, but little energy is lost to the atmosphere and little is used to accelerate the flyrock; the volume of snow within limits of complete rupture is maximum; and the depth of the charge equals optimum depth. At charge depths less than optimum depth d₀, energy is left in the gas bubble or is available to and valized for requirements other than the primary fractures. At charge depths greater than d₀, the quantity of energy available to the fracture process is less than that required (in a given mass of material affected by the disturbance) to extend the fractures to completion. At depths either greater than or less than d₀, <u>A</u> is less than 1.0 and V/W within limits of complete rupture is less than the maximum.

The energy-utilization number may be evaluated using the breakageprocess equation and the family of curves obtained by plotting V/W within limits of complete rupture against the depth ratio Δ . Transition points, which mark the limits between the various ranges of behavior in cratering, describe maxima, minima, and points of inflection on both the <u>A</u> and the V/W vs Δ curves. The use of the transition points as an aid in curve sketching is analogous to use of maxima, minima, and points of inflection determined by differentiating known equations.

The curves of Figures 42-46 were obtained by dividing V/W at any given value of Δ by the constant quantity E³ B listed in Table VI for the appropriate type of explosive, weight of charge, and type of snow. The points of the figures are based upon the equation:

$$A = \frac{V}{V_0}$$

where V is the volume within limits of complete rupture, and V_0 is the same volume at optimum depth.

Use of the energy-utilization curves is illustrated by the following example problems.

Example problem 1. A 40-lb spherical charge of C-4 is detonated 8.0 ft below the surface of the Greenland Ice Cap. What is the volume of snow within the limits of complete rupture?

Solution:
$$\Delta = \frac{d_c}{N}$$





1...







41

and the second second with the

٤

SAL THE R



Figure 46. Energy-utilization no., trench snow, Coalite 7S.

and using the strain-energy equation and E from Table VI

N = E
$$\sqrt[3]{W}$$
 = 6.2 $\sqrt[3]{40}$ = 21.2 ft
 $\Delta = \frac{8.0}{21.2}$ = 0.38.

The breakage-process equation

$$\mathbf{W} = ABCE^3$$

can be rewritten as

 $V \approx (A) (WE^3 B)$

if the charge is of spherical shape (and hence C = 1.0). From Figure 43 at $\Delta = 0.38$, A = 0.92: and from Table VI, WE³B = 4042; so

 $V = (0.92) (4042) = 3719 \text{ ft}^3$.

Example problem 2. A 10-1b spherical charge of Coalite 7S is set off at a depth of 6.0 ft in 1958 surface snow: another 10-1b spherical charge is set off at the same depth in trench snow: compare the two volumes broken (volumes within limits of complete rupture) per pound of explosive.

Solution for first charge, 1958 surface snow: From Table VI,

> E = 6.0 N = E $\sqrt[3]{W}$ = 6.0 $\sqrt[3]{10}$ = 12.92 $\Delta = \frac{d_c}{N} = \frac{6.0}{12.92} = 0.46$ $\frac{V}{W}$ = (E³ B) · A

 $E^{3}B = 106.06$.

From Figure 44 at

$$\Delta = 0.46$$
, A = 0.965
 $\frac{V}{W} = 102.3 \text{ ft}^3/\text{lb}$.

Solution for second charge, trench snow: From Table VI

> E = 4.8 N = E $\sqrt[4]{W}$ = 4.8 $\sqrt[4]{10}$ = 10.34 $\Delta = \frac{d_c}{N} = \frac{6.0}{10.34} = 0.58$ $\frac{V}{W}$ = (E³ B) · A E³ B = 95.11.

From Figure 46 at

$$\Delta = 0.58, A = 0.92$$

 $\frac{V}{W} = 87.5 \text{ ft}^3/1\text{b}.$

Example problem 3. In blasts of glacier ice with 40-lb charges of C-4 at various depths, the maximum volume broken (within limits of complete rupture) is 1600 ft³, and the corresponding optimum depth is 10.9 ft. If the same charge is used, what volume of Greenland Ice Cap 1958 surface snow would be broken, and at what depth should the charge be placed?

Solution: $V = WE^3ABC$

C = 1.0 for spherical charge

A = 1.0 at optimum depth.

43

3

مىلىدىن ، مەمەمە - مەرە ئولىقى مەرىپە كەيلەقلىقى بولۇلىغانىرى بىرىغا بىرىكى بىرىكى بىرىكى بىرىكى بىرىكى

From Table VI, right column, for a 40-1b charge of C-4,

WE³ BC = 4042 V = (A) (WE³ BC) = (1.0) (4042) = 4042 ft³ Δ_0 = 0.58 and E = 6.2 N = E $\sqrt[3]{W}$ = 6.2 $\sqrt[3]{40}$ = 21.2 ft d₀ = Δ_0 N = 0.58 x 21.2 = 12.3 ft.

CRATER EVALUATION

Apparent crater

An apparent crater may be formed by an air burst, a contact burst or an undersnow burst, and the volume of any of these apparent craters will vary with the charge position. A part of the energy of the explosion causes snow to move into the vortex (Fig. 41b); a second part causes scouring of the surface (Fig. 41d); but the relative amount of energy in these parts varies greatly in air bursts, contact bursts, and undersnow bursts. If one relates dimensions of the apparent crater to those of the limits of complete rupture and extreme rupture, the question arises: "After implosion, what proportion of the total energy of the explosion is available to cause an apparent crater to form?" In convention adopted here, the volume of the apparent crater is maximum at the transition from the air-blast range to the secondaryfragmentation range where the maximum volume of apparent crater per pound of explosive occurs and the maximum proportion of the energy of the explosion is available near the snow surface as velocity head.

Figures 47-49 summarize the variation in V/W of the apparent crater with the depth ratio. A depth ratio of zero represents a contact burst, and a negative depth ratio represents an air burst. The volume of the apparent crater varies with the depth ratio, the weight of the charge, and the type of explosive. Inspection of the figures shows that V/W of the apparent crater reaches a maximum in the range $0.15 < \Delta < 0.20$. As the weight of the charge and the scale of the experiment increase, V/W of the apparent crater decreases. The decrease is inconsistent with conventional cube root scaling. The result, however, is predictable from the energy-utilization curves (Fig. 42-44).

In the region where V/W of the apparent crater is maximum, the energyutilization number ranges from 0.4 to 0.7, depending upon the explosive and the material. The energy-utilization number for a contact burst in 1958 surface snow varies from 0.1 to 0.4 depending upon the explosive, the material, and the weight of the charge. Because the energy-utilization number is a relative measure of the proportion of the energy of the explosive that is partitioned to loading the material, it follows from the relations of Figures 47-49 that the dimensions of the apparent crater in snow (which are determined primarily by events subsequent to loading) are neither predictable with accuracy nor usable as a basis for accurately predicting undersnow damage.

Figures 50-52 summarize the variation in the N-scaled depth of the apparent crater in 1958 surface snow with the depth ratio, and Figures 53-55 summarize the variations in the N-scaled apparent-crater radius with the depth ratio. Both sets of curves are designated preliminary because the evaluation has been empirical. A comprehensive analysis which applies the







theory of relative behavior of materials to the apparent crater and which correlates the apparent crater with the limits of complete rupture and with airblast and underground shock effects in snow is beyond the scope of this report.

Evaluating dimensions within limits of complete rupture

To establish geometric similarity, in the system employed here, length and volume measurements are divided by the critical depth, which results in a ratio analogous to the depth ratio.

The interdependence of the N-scaled measurements and the parameters \underline{A} , \underline{B} , and \underline{C} is:

$$\pi K_{a} (K_{u})^{2} K_{b} = K = A \cdot B \cdot C$$

where

 K_{g} is the crater-shape factor

K_r is the N-scaled crater radius

K_h is the N-scaled crater depth

K is the N-scaled crater volume

- A is the energy-utilization number
- B is the materials-behavior index
- C is the stress-distribution number.

45

あき、私たい



Figure 49. Apparent crater V/W vs Δ, surface snow, Coalite 7S.



Figure 51. N-scaled apparent-crater depth, surface snow, C-4.



1000

DB- 689-893

Figure 50. N-scaled apparent-crater depth, surface snow, Atlas 60.







1997 Contractor



Figure 53. N-scaled apparent-crater radius, surface snow, Atlas 60.





Figure 54. N-scaled apparent-crater radius, surface snow, C-4.



Figure 56. N-scaled complete-rupture depth, surface snow, Atlas 60.

47







Figure 59. N-scaled complete-rupture depth, trench snow, Atlas 60.



Figure 58. N-scaled complete-rupture depth, surface snow, Coalite 7S.



Figure 60. N-scaled complete-rupture depth, trench snow, Coalite 7S.

In blasts with a given weight, type, and shape of explosive under conditions such as employed in the snow tests, the materials-behavior index and stressdistribution number are constants and the N-scaled crater volume, K, is a function of the energy-utilization number. Inasmuch as the shape, the radius, and the depth determine K, each is dependent upon the energy-utilization number, which is a function of the depth ratio.

The N-scaled crater depth Kh

The explosion cavity is destroyed when implosion occurs, so that it is difficult to correlate accurately either the depth of the true crater or the depth of complete rupture with the vertical radius of the explosion cavity (r_V of Fig. 28). The bottom of the explosion cavity before implosion lies somewhere between the bottom of the complete-rupture limit and the bottom of the truecrater limit.

Figures 56-60 summarize the variation of depth of complete rupture with the depth ratio. The shapes of the curves are similar, but the behavior of the material is not independent of charge weight or explosives type. The vertical distance from the center of the charge to the depth of complete rupture is maximum in the region where V/W of the apparent crater is maximum and scouring of the snow is most effective. The distance is minimum in the secondary-fragmentation range at a depth slightly less than the optimum depth where the vortex motion of the snow has its greatest effect upon the limit of complete rupture.

The complete-rupture shape factor Ks

If identical blasts are fired in various materials using a given type of explosive and shape of charge, the shape of the resulting crater varies widely. Various methods of describing the shape of a crater are used, and each has its advantages and disadvantages. Experience has shown that the shape of the crater is an index to the behavior of both the explosive and the material; but the relations are complex because analogous changes may be a result of a change in loading rate, a change from brittle-acting to plastic-acting materials, or a change in energy density.

The crater-shape factor is

$$K_{s} = \frac{V}{\pi r^{2} h}$$

The crater defined by the limit of complete rupture will be trumpet-shaped for K_s values of less than 1/3, hemispherical for values of 2/3. and bowl- or dish-shaped for values greater than 2/3.

Because the shape is irregular in most materials, and because under field conditions such as occur in the Arctic it is difficult to see all of the cracks, considerable dispersion occurs between values of K_s at a given scaled charge depth computed from the above formula. A slight error when determining the average radius of complete rupture unduly affects the crater-shape factor. A cut-and-try method is used here to minimize the difficulties of field measurement. It is based upon the fact that the volume within limits of complete rupture must satisfy the summary curves of the various parameters of all three of the following equations:

 $V_r = K_s \pi r^2 h$ $V_r = WE^3 ABC$ $V_r = KN^3.$

49

「「「「いい」」」というないないできます。

Figures 61-65 summarize the variation in crater shape with the depth ratio. The shape within limits of complete rupture in 1958 surface snew changes from dished to nearly hemispherical as the height of burst decreases, approaching a contact burst. The shape both in 1958 surface snow and trench snow changes moderately as the depth below the surface increases. A local minimum occurs at a depth slightly less than that at which scouring has its greatest effect. The minimum approaches the conical in trench snow which has strength in shear; but the shape is intermediate between hemispherical and conical in lower-density snow. As the depth of charge increases in lowdensity snow so as to approach that at which the vortex motion is best developed, a local maximum occurs and the shape for small-scale blasts is nearly hemispherical. As the scale of the experiment (or the density and strength of the snow at the charge position) increases, the shape at the local maximum is more nearly conical.

The N-scaled complete-rupture radius K_r

The N-scaled complete-rupture radius is measured horizontally at the surface and is a dimensionless number equal to the horizontal radius of complete rupture divided by the critical depth. Because linear dimensions describing limits of complete rupture are dependent upon volume dimensions, and because they must agree with the parameters of the breakage-process equation, it can be shown that the N-scaled complete-rupture radius equals

$$K_{r} = \frac{\sqrt{ABC}}{\pi K_{s} K_{h}}.$$

Accordingly, if values of <u>A</u>, B, C, K_s , and K_h are fixed, as they are in the evaluation procedure adopted here, the analyst is left little freedom when evaluating K_r .

Figures 66-70 summarize the variation in K_r with the depth ratio separately by explosives type for each of the various weights of explosive charge tested in 1958 surface snow and trench snow. The points indicate the dispersion of individual measurements

$$K_r = \frac{r_r}{N}$$

from the solution obtained using values of K_8 , K_h , and A from figures previously presented and values of B as recorded in Table VI.

Inspection of the figures shows that the maximum radius in snow is achieved in the secondary-fragmentation range where K_h is minimum (see Fig. 56-60). Under such conditions, the vortex motion within the snow is well developed and acceleration of the displaced snow is sufficient to destroy the primary fracture pattern. As the material becomes more brittle acting, the maximum value of K_T moves closer to that at optimum depth; and less of the energy of the explosion is required for flowage processes associated with the vortex motion which follows primary fracturing.

A correlation of complete-rupture and extreme-rupture limits

Limits of the true crater and of the apparent crater as defined here for snow bear little direct relation either to energy requirements of the various events that precede venting or to undersnow damage, and thus are eliminated from the following correlation.

01

uter



TITE REPARTS





Figure 62. Crater-shape factor, surface snow, C-4.





Figure 63. Crater-shape factor, surface snow, Coalite 7S.



ちなういと

¥* .

* *

¢

Ĵ

÷



Figure 65. Crater-shape factor, trench snow, Coalite 7S.

Figure 66. $K_r vs \Delta$, surface snow, Atlas 60.



Figure 67. $K_r vs \Delta$, surface snow, C-4.

Figure 68. $K_r vs \Delta$, surface snow, Coalite 7S.

52



According to terminology used here, the extreme-rupture limit relates to a free face at the snow surface and complete rupture ceases to exist if a crater does not exist. Within the range of charge depths greater than critical depth, more of the energy of the explosion is expended for seismic effects and deformation of the snow by compaction than within the primary and secondary fragmentation ranges. Similarly, within the range of charge depth less than that at which maximum scouring occurs, more of the energy of the explosion is expended in the atmosphere and less is available to the snow. Accordingly it scems desirable to confine the present discussion to the fragmentation range.

Figures 71-80 summarize empirically the interrelationships among limits of complete rupture and extreme rupture in snow. Each pair of drawings relates to a given material and includes all of the various weights of charge. As demonstrated in preceding pages, the behavior of the snow is dependent upon the scale of the experiment. For this reason and until a comprehensive analysis of the data is possible, the figures are designated preliminary. The limit of extreme rupture is determined by events that occur within the primaryand the secondary-fragmentation ranges. Extrapolation beyond the fragmentation range is not valid because of considerations of energy partitioning. Similarly, extrapolation of the limits of complete rupture and extreme rupture to charges larger than 40 lb requires the use of the breakage-process equation and is not justified at this stage of the analysis. The figures correlate empirically (using conventional cube-root scaling) the limits of complete rupture and extreme rupture, and illustrate the effect of explosive type. They also illustrate in first approximation the effect of charge depth and type of snow upon the breakage limits.

53

and the second second second

EXPLOSIONS IN SNOW







Figure 73. $C_r/\sqrt[4]{W}$ vs λ_c , surface snow, C-4, complete rupture.

₩¢,







Figure 74. $C_e/\sqrt{W} v \le \lambda_c$, surface snow, C-4, extreme rupture.



Figure 75. Cr/∛W vs λc, surface snow, Coalite 75, complete rupture.







Ltstve 4 : : : • : : :



Figure 76. Ce/∜W vs λc, surface snow, Coalite 7S, extreme rupture.



Figure 78. $C_c/\sqrt[4]{W}$ vs λ_c , trench snow, Atlas 60, extreme rupture.

55

.



Figure 79. $C_r/\sqrt[3]{W} vs \lambda_c$, trench snow, Coalite 75, complete rupture. Figure 80. $C_e/\sqrt[4]{W} vs \lambda_c$, trench snow, Coalite 7S, extreme rupture.

Dimensions of the cavity

It is logical to consider variation in the dimension of an explosion cavity in snow separately in three different ranges:

- a) the secondary cavity where implosion occurs,
- b) the primary cavity, Phase II, where doming occurs,

c) the primary cavity, Phase I, at depths greater than that at which doming begins.

The primary cavity is caused by expansion of the gas bubble and compaction of the snow during the rise to peak pressure. The secondary cavity results when the primary cavity fails from the release of potential energy stored during an interval measurable in milliseconds following the beginning of implosion. The secondary cavity is affected by energy stored during dynamic loading, just as an underground excavation subject only to static loading is affected by energy stored during loading as in nature. Depending upon the material, the length of the unsupported span, the shape of the opening, and the time it is unsupported, failure may occur and proceed in a manner familiar to the mining and construction industries.

Whether a camouflet or a crater forms depends upon the depth ratio. The transition limit between crater formation and camouflet formation is referred to here as the lower limit of the doming range. Although the data are insufficient to pinpoint the transition closer than $0.5 \sqrt[3]{W}$ the transition occurs at Δ 's equal to approximately 0.72 in 1958 surface snow and 0.81 in trench snow. At depth ratios lower than the transition limit, failure proceeds into the primary zone of the fragmentation range, where the volume of snow within limits of complete rupture becomes maximum at optimum explosive weight and the secondary cavity no longer exists.

A.,

Fracturing and isolation of the snow from its surroundings begin at critical depth, as does implosion. Accordingly, the region $0.72 < \Delta < 1.0$ in 1958 surface snow and the region $0.81 < \Delta < 1.0$ in trench snow are affected by implosion. The effect is one in which the primary cavity is destroyed either wholly or in part. The zone is referred to here as the isolation zone and in it the cavity is a secondary rather than a primary one.

Doming of the snow begins at a depth greater than the critical depth. In the region $1.0 < \Delta < 1.23$ the surface is uplifted and deformation of the roof above the primary cavity proceeds beyond the failure stress. A pattern of fracturing develops due to the uplift, and the strength of the primary cavity is reduced. The region is referred to here as the uplift zone and the cavity as the primary cavity, Phase II.

The test program was directed towards cratering aspects of the problem rather than a study of cavity growth, and available data in each of the ranges are insufficient to permit an analysis. To attempt to correlate camouflet limits in a range where a primary cavity occurs with those in another range where a secondary cavity occurs would not be meaningful.

Ranges of similar behavior in snow

Geometric similarity of cratering phenomena need not be confined to dimensions of the crater, but may be extended to other events or phenomena apparent to the senses. For instance, geometric similarity may be applied to a transition limit or a failure event such as the ones which occur at critical depth and optimum depth. Similarly the beginnings of other specific events may be defined as transition limits and related to the depth ratio. In the terminology of this report, early refers to greater depths and late refers to lesser depths; thus the beginning of a given phenomenon is the deepest point at which it is evident.

Figure 81 illustrates the general case for a given type of explosive, a given weight of charge, and a given material (1958 surface snow). Transition



DEPTH RATIO - A

Figure 81. Ranges of similar behavior in 1958 surface snow.

57

anner a solar internation with the second state



Figure 82. Energy-utilization number A $v \le \Delta$ in snow, ice, frozen ground.

limits appear as maxima, minima, and points of inflection on the curves which show V/W vs Δ for the limits of complete rupture and for the limits of the apparent crater.

The effect of materials type upon the relation A vs Δ

Figure 82 shows the relation A vs Δ for 1958 surface snow, trench snow, glacier ice, frozen Churchill till, and frozen Keweenaw silt. The curve for trench snow falls in the region of glacier ice. The curve for frozen Churchill till lies in a region of higher depth ratio (lower energy density) than that for trench snow or ice, and the curve for Keweenaw silt lies in a region of still higher depth ratios.

CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

We may conclude from these experiments that the failure process in snow differs from that in most other materials. Most probably, the phenomenon of implosion and the vortex and scouring motions, recorded so clearly here, have not been recognized previously in explosions research.

-58

Sala and a state of the second s

It is recommended that the study be continued so as to supplement the available data, especially in the following areas:

- a) the primary cavity, Phase I
- b) the primary cavity, Phase II
- c) the secondary cavity.

The cratering and cavity data should be extended to HE blasts with one type of explosive in the range not less than 250, 1000 and 4000 lb of explosive. The tests should be fully instrumented and conducted so as to determine each of the transition points of Figure 81.

A preliminary analysis of the available instrumentation data, including seismic measurements and flyrock-travel measurements should be made in advance of the large-scale blasts. The preliminary analysis should be directed toward a correlation of instrumentation and cratering effects and used to plan both of the above phases of the tests.

LITERATURE CITED

- Bader, H.; Haefeli, R.; Bucher, E.; Neher, J.; Eckel O.; Thams, Chr.; and Niggli, P. (1939) Der Schnee und seine Metamorphose (Snow <u>and its metamorphism</u>). Beiträge zur Geologie der Schweiz, Geotechnische Serie, Hydrologie, Lieferung 3. U.S. Army Snow, Ice and Permafrost Research Establishment Translation 14, 1954, 313 p.
- Bender, J.A. (1957) Air permeability of snow, USA SIPRE Research Report 37, 19 p.

Bentley, Pomeroy, and Dorman (1957) Seismic measurements on the Greenland Ice Cap. Part I: Studies at 76°59' N 56°05'W, Lamont Geological Observatory (Columbia University), New York.

Butkovich, T.R. (1956) Strength studies of high-density snow, USA SIPRE Research Report 18, 19 p.

Cole, R.H. (1948) <u>Underwater explosions</u>. Princeton, N.J.: Princeton University Press, 437 p.

Livingston, C.W. (1956) Excavations in frozen ground, Part I: Explosion tests in Keweenaw silt, USA SIPRE Report 30, 97 p.

> (1960a) Application of the Livingston crater theory to blasts in loess and clay, Waterways Experiment Station, Corps of Engineers, U.S. Army, 80 p.

> > (1960b) Explosions in ice, USA SIPRE Technical Report 75.

Nakaya, Ukichiro (1959) Visco-elastic properties of snow and ice in the Greenland Ice Cap. USA SIPRE Research Report 46, 29 p. おおおいろうない うちょうちょう ちょうちょう しょうちょう しょうちょう しょうちょう しょうちょう
APPENDIX: CRATER DATA

	Data sheets
Apparent-crater dimensions	El -E10
True-crater dimensions	F1 -F10
Complete-rupture dimensions	G1 -G10
Extreme-rupture dimensions	H1 -H10
Extreme-rupture dimensions (camouflet and doming range)	H11
Camouflet dimensions	II -II0
Crater coefficients, apparent crater	
A60, surface blasts	J1 -J5
A60, trench blasts	J6 -J7
C4, surface blasts	J8 -J12
C7S, surface blasts	J13-J18
C7S, trench blasts	J19-J20
Crater coefficients, true crater and camouflet	
A60, surface blasts	Kl -K5
A60, trench blasts	K6 -K7
C4, surface blasts	K8 -K12
C7S, surface blasts	K13-K18
C7S, trench blasts	K19-K20
Crater coefficients, complete rupture	
A60, surface blasts	L1 -L5
A60, trench blasts	L6 -L7
C4, surface blasts	L8 -L12
C7S, surface blasts	L13-L18
C7S, trench blasts	L19-L20
Crater coefficients, extreme rupture	
A60, surface blasts	M1 -M5
A60, trench blasts	M6 -M7
C4, surface blasts	M8 -M12
C7S, surface blasts	M13-M18
C7S, trench blasts	M19-M20

17

61

and a substant of the second o

						APCABE	T CRAT						
		: :						8-50	led Gr	Lor			
Bule Reber	Clorge Curre Bepth. 7:	Cherge Keigi Lis Explosive Ty	=	•	1. Pi	tedius, fr	8 1001 810101 8 1001 810101	.! .	1 - 1	.	*.1 72 ³	3 4 3	Lip Bolght PL
	1.00	1.0 78	6.00	0.17	1.40	3.05	3.70	0.23	0.51	9.62	23.64	23.64	0.10
2	2.00		6.00	0.33	0.87	2.80	3.55	0.145	0.47	8.59	12.82	12.02	0.00
24	2.00	• •	6.00	0.33	0.50	3.00	3.64	0.003	0.50	0.61	7.39	7.20	0.00
	3.00	!	6.00	0.50	0.68	2.03	4.10	0.11	0.47	9.68	7.11	7.11	0.00
•	3.95		6.00	0.66	1.27	1.46	4.36	0.21	0.24	0.73	2.97	2.97	0.00
5	4.85		6.00	0.01									
•	6.00		6.00	1.00									
1	0.00		6.00	0.00	0.74	1.74	1.74	0.12	0.29	0.29	3.4	3.46	0.30
•	+1.00		6.00	+0.17	0.20	3.57	3.71	0.033	0.593	0.62	4.61.	4,61	0.10
	1.36	2.5460	9.93	0.14	2.50	4.76	4.95	0.25	0.46	0.50	94.60	37.04	0.00
91/2	0.00		9.93	0.00	1.79	2.99	2.99	0.17	0.30	0.30	21.69		0.20
10	2.80		9.93	0.28	1.07	5.06	5.80	0.11	0.51	0.58	51.75	20.70	0.10
11	5.30		9.93	0.53	1.12	4.76	7.00	0.11	0.48	0.71	32.20	12.91	0.10
12	6.76	• •	9.93	0.68								!	

1						APPARE	T CRAS	ER					
							•	H-S	coled C	ater			
Noie Runber	Charge Depth, Ft	Charge Neigh Lbs Explosive Tj	8	7	8 opti. 7t b	Radius, Pt ra	Slast Distan Ft c _a	73 27. 14 14 14 14	и <mark>я</mark> ж и ч	к	Velume. Ft ³ Y	H 2	Lip Height Ft
121/2	7.17	5.0 460	12.48	0.57	1.00	5.90	9.38	0.080	Q.47	0.75	56.74	11.35	0.20
13	9.11	2:5 *	9.93	0.82	0.48	1.05	8.19	0.048	0.11	0.82	0.68	0.27	0.25
14.		2.5 *	9.93	0.99					_				
141/2	12.34	5:0 *	12.48	0.99									
15	2.20	10.0 *	15.70	0.14	 .			-	ļ	1		·	
158	2.20	10.0 *	15.70	0.14	2.97	7.29	7.60	0.19	0.46	0.48	253.76	25.38	0.10
16	4.30	10.0 *	15.70	0.27				<u> </u>			L	ļ	
168	4.40	10.0 "	15.70	0.28	2.40	0.05	9.80	0.15	0.56	0.62	258.18	25.82	0.00
Lin_	8.10	10.0 *	15.70	0.52				ļ					
111/2	11.50	20.0 *	19.78	0.59					 		 	 	
10	10.80	10.0 "	15.70	0.69	 		 	 		 	┣		
/2	12.90	10.0 -	15.70	0.82			 -			<u> </u>			<u> </u>
Ľ.	15.10	10.0 *	15.70	0.96							_	<u> </u>	
191/2	19.48	20.0 *	19.78	0.98	l			l		<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>

62

Contraction in

						AP74861	T CRAT	T#					
		: :					÷	8-50	1 od Gri	ter			
Bole Burber	Charge Bepth. Ft	Charge Keig Lbs Explosive T	8	•	1	teliw. P.	51411 01414 F1 6.	• • • •	, - 	י ר י י	4 - F - F - F - F - F - F - F - F - F -	1	Lip Beight Ft
20 /	22.60		15.70	1.44						- -			
<u>81</u>	3.32	40.0 -	24.97	0.14	3.46	10.90	11.40	0.14	0.44	0.46_	\$92.67	14.82	.00
211/2	0.00	40.0 "_	24.97	0.00	4.20	0.10	8.10	0.17	0.32	0.32	356.58	<u>.,,1</u>	0.90
22_	6.80	40.0 "_	24.97	0.27	2.40	13.25	14.90	0.099	0.53	0.60_	470.01	11.11	0.00
23	12.47	40.0 -	24.97	0.50	0.70	9.50	15.80	0.031	. <u></u>	0.63	106.64	2.67	0.00
231/2	23.00	160.0	39.64	0.58				L	L	<u>_</u>			
26	20.57	40.0 *	24.97	0.02	L					L			
29	24.07	10.0 -	24.97	0.96							L		
30	_1,30	2.5 64	8.43	0.15	2.60	5.25	5.33	0.31	0.62	0.63	97.76	35.10	_0.00
301/2	0,00	8.5 -	1.4	0.90	1.90	2.99	2.90	.	L		23.43	_9.37_	0.50
31	2.70	2.5 .	8.43	0.30	0.94	5.06	5.83	0.11	0.60	0.69	32.39	12.96	0.00
32	4.00		8,43	0.47	J.71	3.76	5.50	0.004	0.45	0.65	11.20	4.51	0.15
33	\$,30	2.5 .	8.42	0.63	1.22	5.60	1.10	0.14	0.66	0.92	44.67	17.07	e.10_
34	6.60	2.5 *	0.43	0.11	0.60	8.78	6.62	0.071	0.33	0.79	0.67	3.47	0.10

						APPAREN	T CRAT	ER					
Bolo Ruber	Charge Depth. Ft	Cherge Keight. Lbb Explosive Type	Z	ধ	Bopth. Tt b	Rodine. Fr Fa	Slant Distance Ft 6.	к», = <mark>"</mark> "	в _r . = <mark>т</mark> в	Кс. = <mark>с</mark>	Yolumo, Pt ³ Y	>1 =	Lip Beight Pi
341/2	6.22	C4 5.0	10.60	0.59	1.40	4.45		0.13_	0.42	.0.73	49.52	9.90	0,10
35	. 8.00	2.5	8.43	0.95									
251/2	. 10.14	5.0	10.60	.0.96									
36	2,16	10.01	13,33	0,16	2.50	6.30	6.66	0,12	0,47_	0.50	193.26	19.33	0,70
37_	4.40	10.0	13.33	0.33	_1.20_	7.45	. 8_66	0.090	0,56	. 9.6 5.	.97.67	, <i>دو</i>	J.20.
38	. 8.31	10.0	13.33	0.62		. 6.22	10.48	0.14	0.47	0.79	112.23	11.22	_0.00
381/2	9,48	20.0	16.00	0,56						.			
39	.10.70	10.0	13.33_	0.80									
40	.12.71.	10.0	13,33	0.95									· ··· · -
401/2	.16.27	20.0	16.80.	.0.97_									
42	. 3.37.	40.0	21.20	_0.16.	.	10.21	10.72	0.15	0.48	_0.51_	552.28	13.61	0.20
421/2	0.00	40.0.	21.20	_0.00_	_3.90_	.7.99_	-2.99 .	0.18_	.0.38	_0.38	376.57	9.41	.0.40.
42	6,82	40.0	21.20	0.32	1.53	12.00	rarer -	0.072	0.57	0.65	521.71	13.04	0,10
4	11.37	40.0	21.20	0.54	0.92	11.20	15.89	0.013	0.53	0.75	106.51	4.66	a.a.

63

A SUCCESSION AND A SUCC

į

						APPABEI	T CRAT	68					
Role Humber	Charge Depth. Ft	Clorge Hoight. Lbs Explosive 7790	=	•	Bopch. 71 b	Lediu. Ti Ta	51461 Distance Fi ca	س ه: •	د تا	. ,	Yelme. Pi ³ Y	543	Lip Bolghi Fi
461/2	19,55	140_0	33.67	0,58_		· •		 					
46.	29.67	40,0	_21.20	0.98		ļ							
_ <u>50</u> _	33	-2,5	6	.0.16	2.07	4.57	4.79.	0.25	. 0,56		28.30	22.35	_0.10_
31	2.45	2,5	8.16	0,30	0.86	4.45	3.06	0.11	0.55	0,62	33.00	13.20	0.00
2	5,13	2,5	8.16	0.63	2.04	3.08	6.07	0.25_	0.31	_0.74	29.64	11.07	0,40
.921/2		- 5.0	10.26	0.55					L				
34	6.33	78 2.5		_0.78					L				
		75	8.16						<u> </u>				
- 541/2	. 9,47	7S	10.26	0.92			L			L			
is.	0.00	75 2.5		_0.00	_1.18	2.55_	2.55	.0.14	0.31	0.31	10.74	4.30	0.20
_ هذا	2.20	10,0	- 12.90	0.17	2.64	6.09	6,48	0,20	0.47	0.50	100.02	12.00	0.30
	. 4.45	75	_12.90		1.30	8.09	S.21	0.10	0.63	0.71	46.50	14.65	0.00
9.	Q. 14	75 10.0	12.90	0.63	1.32	7.15	10.88	0.10	0,55	0.84	12.31	11.23	0,00
-981/2	9.33	20.0	16.26	0.57	l						<u> </u>		ا <u>ب ن</u>

						APPARE	NT CRAT	22					
dele Runber	Charge Depth. 71	Charge Height. Lis Expissive Type	-	4	Jopid. Te b	Rodind. Fr Fa	51000 Distance 71 40] 		Volumo, Pt ³ T	7	Lip Boight 71
59	12,54	78	12.90	0.97									
591/2	21.23		. 16.26	1.31		ļ							
60	10.84	10.0	12.90	0.84			ļ				ļ		
63	3,45	40.0	20.52	0.17	3.80	.9.84.	10.41	0,19	Q.49_	0.51	510.71	12.77	0.50
631/2	. 000	40.0	.20.52	0,00	. 3.28	. 7.58	7.54	0.16_	0.37	0.37	291.17	7.28	0, 30
64	6.35	-: "	_20.52	0.34_	1.84.	12.23	14.03	0,000	0.60	0.68	<u>377.71</u>	9,44	0 <u>.00</u>
65	12.85	40.0	20.52	0.63	2.47	9.80	16.21	0.12	0.48	0.79	230.85	5.77	0.15
651/2	18.90	. 160.0.	20. 52	0.92							ļ		
67	20.65		20.51	1.01	_							• •	
701	.1.36	2.3	8,43	0.17	1,83_	. 4.45	4.63_	0.21	0.33	0.55	22.64	۰.06	0. <u>00</u> _
71T	. 2.66.	2.5	. 8,43	.0, 32 _	.2.00	_£.2*	7.00	.0.24	0.74	0.83	81.0	3:40	0. <u>00</u>
727	5.38		_8.43	_Q, 64 _	1,98	6.21	- 1 . 24	0.22	0.74	0.98	83.89	33.36	ა.თ
73T	6.86	2.5	8,43	_0.81								1	
74T _	8.11	2.5	_ 8,43	_0.97							L	_	

States ----

	1					-	T CRAT	5 1					
Kole Ruber	Cherye Cherye Bepth. Fi	Charge Belght. Lbs Explesive Type	-	•	8044. Fi	14, 14, 11 2,	51001 Blattage F1 6.	• ₂ . • ¥	и <mark>Т</mark> .	•• - <mark>ب</mark> ه	Volumo, Ft ³ Y	H a	Lip Bright Pt
75T	9.51	A60 _ 2.5	8,43	1.13									
76T	2.20	10.0	13.33	0.17	2.10	.5.80	6.25_	0.15.	0.44	0.47	177.43	17.74	0.30_
771	4.30	10.0	13.33	0.32	1.68	_6.60	.1.6	.0.13	0.50.		101.89	10.19	0.10
78T	8.60	10.0	13.33	0,65	-								
79T	10.75	10.0	13.33	0.80				↓				• ·	
807	12.95	10.0	13.33	0.97				 	 -			·• ·· ·	
81 <u>,</u> T	5.40	10.0	13.33	0.40	1.48	7.10	0.95	0.11	0.53	_0.67	111.78	11.18	0.00_
82T	3.20	10.0	13.33	0.24	1.38	5.05	.6.03	0.10	.0.38	. 0.45	48.67	4.87	0.10
90T	1.58_	.2.5	6.53	0,24	.1,58	_5.05_	5.35_	0,24	_0.78	0,83.	63.79	25.52	0,00
917.	2.48	2.5	6.53	0.38	2.00	.4.36	5.18	0.31	0.66	0.79	51.78	20.71	0.00_
921.	5.38	2.5	.6.53	0.83			 	<u> </u>	ļ	 	} '		-
9 3 T	6.78	. C.5	6.53	1.04			┣	 	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	 		
94T	8.18	2.5	6.53	1.25						ļ			
96T	2.24	10 <u>.</u> 0	10.32	0.21	1.45	5.40	5.85	0.14	0.53	0.56	82.99	8.30	0.20

						APPAREN	T CRAT	F R					
Kole Ruber	Charge Depid. F:	Charge Height. Lbs Explosive Type	Ħ	٩	309th. Ft	Rodiuc, Pt Ta	Slant Distance Ft 4.	د⊿. = أ	د <mark>ت</mark> ه	••••••	Yelme, 71 ³ Y	212	Lip Height 7 t
97 T	4.34	75 10.0 75	10.32	0.43	2.20	5.95	.7.40	_0.21	0.58	. 0.71.	147.44	14.74	0.15_
98T	8.64	10.0	10.32	O.86									
99T	9,74	10.0	10.32	0.95								!	
1007	5.44	10.0	10.32	.0.53	1.48	_5.30	7.55	0.14	0.51	Q. 74	79.65	7.97	0.10
1017	3.29	10.0	10.32	0.33	1.65	_4.50	5.58	مده	Q_44	0.54	46.55	_ 4.56	0.20
200	4.08	2.5	9.93	_0.41	_0.37 _	_ 5 . 35	6.75	_0.037	Q. 54	_0.68_	_13.98	_ 5.50	0.00 _
201	6.46	. 10.0	15.70	.D.41	.0.82.	9.00	<u>11.10</u>	0.002	0.37	Q.71	102.05	10.95	0.00
202	6.46	10.0	12.90	0.50	_1.48.	5.30	9.60	-0.11	0.41	0.74	83,01	8.30	0.00
210	4.08	2,5	8.43	0.48	-								
211_	6.46	10.0	13.33	0.48	2.12	. 6.65	_9.36	0.16	0.50	_0.70	111.18	11.12	0.00
212	10.26	40,0	21.20	0.48	_1.70		12.15	0.000	0.53	0.71	453.34	11.34	0.00
220	4.08	2.5	8,16.	_0.50							 		-
220R	4.08	2.5	8.16	0.50					L			į	-
222	10.26	40.0	20.32	0.30	1.06	0.95	14.30	0.052	0.40	0.70	177.47	4.31	0.30

65

The a well the fact of the of the second

ALL 1. 1444

						APPABEN	T CRAT	st.		يرجد الي يستريب			
Kolo Rusbor	Charge Depth. Ft	G barge 4eight. Lbe Explosive 3790	-	٩	0.014. 71.	Aadiua, Et Fa	Slatt Blattate Fi 6g	s _a , = <mark>1</mark> ,	۵ _۲ <mark>ت</mark> ه	۶ <mark>د</mark>	Yelimo, 71 ³ Y	>i 2	Lip Neight Fi
2301	A.01.	2.2	8.43	9.48.	1.30_	.4.15	6,19	_0.15_	.0.50	0.73	59.14	23.66	_0.20_
231T .	6.46_	0.0	13.33	_0.48 _	2.70_	7.32		0.20	- 0.55	.0.74_	155.80	15.58	0.00
232 -	10.26	A60	. 24.97	0.41	2.44	11.70	15.58	0.098	_0.47_	0.62	426.77	10.67	0. 30 _
240T	.4.07	2.5	6.53	0.63	.0.73 .	_3.56	5_45.	0.11.	_0.55	0.84.	98.07.	37.23	C. 20_
241T	.6.46	10.0	10.32	0.63	1.42	7.52	.9.98	.0.14	0.73	-0.96_	. 106.78	10.66	0.20_
260	+2.15	:0.0	13.33	+9.16	1	Í					;		
270	+1.08	10.0	13.33	+0.08	.1.68 _		4.46	0.14	. 0.32	0.33	49.47		.0.30
270R	+1.08	_10.0_	13.33	+0.08 .		 	ļ	ļ			i		
271 _	+1.08	_10 <u>.0</u>	.15.20	+0.07	1.85 _	4.44	.4.58 .	_0.12	0.28	0.29		3.69	0 . 30 _
272	+1.08	_ 10.0	.12.90	+0,08	1.20	_3.52	3.71_	0.093	_0.27_	_0.29_	_18.22	1.82	0.20
280	0.00	10.0	.13.33	0.00.			L	L				!	
281	0.00	1 A60	15.70	0.00	2.64	5.00	.5.00_	_0.17	0.32	0.32	106.67	_10.67	C.50_
282	0.00	10.5	12.90	0.00	2.22	.4.87.	4.87 _	0.17	0.38	0,38_	_80.01	e.00	0.60_
200	_2.15	10.0	13.33	. o.16.	2.83	6.94	1.29	الع.عد	0.52	0.55	233.64	23. 3 €	c.20_

						APPAREN	T CRAT	C 8					
		ht. Type						H-Se	lad Gro	ter			
Kele Kumber	Charge Depth. Ft	Charge Well Lbs Explesive 1	æ	٩	1	tediue. Fr	5 1 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4	ala 1		رم ا ید بر بر	Yel m e. 72	2	Lip Neight Fr
291	2.15	10.075	12.90	0.17	2.52	6.62	6.99	_0.20	0.51	0.54	194.11		0.30
292	. 2.15	10.0	15.70	0.14	3.10	7.85	8.14	0.20	0.50	0.52	313.75	31.38	0.30
293	1.71	5.064	10.60	0.16	2.60	5.95	_6.19	0.25	0.56	0.58	163.08	32.62	0.10
294	1.71	5.075	10.26	0.17	2.12	5.20	5.48	0.21	0.51	0.53	104.47	20.89	0.40
295	1.71	5.0460	12.48	0.14	2.36	5.06	5.37	0.19	0.41	0.43	117.74	23.55	.0.30
296	3.42	40.04	21.20	0. <u>1</u> 6		 			l				
297	3.42	40.0	20.52	0.17						L			
298 _	3.42	40.0	24.97	0.14					ļ	ļ		-	
				-									
				-					<u> </u>				
				·					 -	<u> </u>	 '	1	
		- -		•	•				<u> </u>	ļ	<u> </u> '		
	-	-									+	i	
	L	<u> </u>				l	L	l	1	L		1	10

NO GRAT

						TREE	CRA TER		ہ بودہ حک تیجونٹی م				
Blact M	٩	Charge Meight (15) Explosive Type	Charud Bepik	Creter Bepth b (FL)	Creter Bodius r (FL)	5 1011 01310100 10 810 (71)	Vol me V (FL ³	2	•	8	H-Scol		K = C/H T H-Scoled Siest Bistonce
1	0.17	1.078	1.00	2.12	3.68	3.92	32.99	32.99	6.00	6.00	0.35	0.61	0.65
2	0.33	1.9 *	2.00	2.99	2.00	3.4	47.11	<u>a.11</u>	6.0	6.00	0.40	0.47	0.57
24	0.33	1.0 •	2.00	2.90	3.00	3.64	44.81	44.33	6.00	6.00	0.40	0.50	0.64
3	0.50	1.0 7	3.00	4.00	2.00	4.92	62.58	62.50	6.00	6.00	0.67	0.47	0.82
	9,66	1.0 -	3.95	5.40	2.10	5.05	73.32	73.32	6.00	6.50	0.90	0.35	0.90
	0.01	1.0 *	4.85						6.00	6.00		 +	
•	1.00	1.0 *	6.50						6.00	6.00		1	
1	9.99	1.9 "	0.00	1.00	1.95	2.19	6.04	6.04	6.00	6.00	0.17	0.32	0.36
	¢0.17	1.0 -	+1.00	0.24	3.70	3.72	4.61	4.61	6.00	6.00	0.04	0.62	0.62
•	0.14	2.5	1.36		4.00	5.01	123.45	49.30	7.30	9.93	0.34	0.48	0.59
91/2	0.00	2.5 *	0.00	2.02	3.35	3.92	36.10	14.44	7.30	9.93	0.20	0.34	0.40
10	0.26	2.5 *	2.00	4.40	5.10	6.75	226.16	90.46	7.30	9.93	0.44	0.51	0.68
11	0.53	2.5 *	5.30	6.70	4.80	8.19	240.44	96.18	7.30	9.93	0.67	0.40	0.82
12	0.66	2.5 *	6.76	.36	5.72	10.64	736.28	294.51	7.30	9.93	0.84	0.58	1.07
						-				•			1-1+

						TRUE	GRATEN						
Ī					:	:					N-Scal	es Crat	r g
Blest No	٩	Charge Weig (Lapiosive T	Cherge Depti dc (F1)	Creter Depti A (FL)	Creter Redi	Slant Dista to Rig C ₁ (Ft)	Volume V (Ft ³)	R / h	ui	2	N-500104 N-500104 Dopth	L = r/N N-scaled Radius	K = C N M-Scaled Slant Dista
121/2	0.57	5.0	1.17	9.66	6.06	<u>11</u> .39	611.63	122.53	7.30	12.40	0.77	0.49	0.11
18	0.82	2.5 *	0.11						7.30	9.93			
14		2.5 *	9.61			<u> </u>			7.39	9.93	1	 	•
141/2	0.99	5.0 -	12.34						7.30	12.40		•	• • • • •
15	0-14	10.0 -	2.20						7.30	15.70			1
158	0.14	10.0 -	2.20	• 6.33	7.74	10.03	556.55	55.66	7.30	15.70	0.40	0.49	0.64
16	0.27	10.0 2	4.30]	•				7.30	15.70	1		1
168	0.28	10.0 -	4.40	6.88	8.84	1.19	890.02	A9.00	7.30	15.70	0.44	0.56	0.71
17	0,52	10.0 "	8.10	10.47	8.26	13.32	992.40	99.24	7.30	15.70	0.6L	0.53	0.85
171/2	_0.59	20.0 *	11.50	-					7.30	<u>1</u> 9.78	ļ	4	1
10	0.49	10.0 *	10.80	1	1	}	Ļ		7.30	15.70	+		.
101/2	0.02	10.0 *	12.90		•	┢	╞		7.30	15.70	ļ		
19	0.96	10.0 *	15.10		1	-	<u> </u>		7.30	15.70	 	+	
191/2	0.90	20.0 -	19.40			<u> </u>	<u> </u>		1.30	19.78		1	<u> </u>

67

きょく

AFFENDIX

						THUE	CHATER						
				_		:					R-Scal	ed Cres	<u>•r - 5</u>
Blast No	٩	Charge Weigh	Cherge Depth d _c (ft)	Crster Bepth h (Ft)	Crater Badiw r (Ft)	Slant Distanto Biston to Big (Ft)	Volwae √ (Ft ³)	R/A	10	=	L = L/H H-Scolod Bopth	L = r/H N-Scaled Redius	K = C/N N-Scoled Slant Dista
20	1.44	A60 10.0	22.60		-				7.30	15.20	 		
21	0.14	40.0 *	3.32	7.42	11.30	13.53	1516.01	\$7.90	7.30	24.97	0.30	0.45	0.54
211/2	0.00	40.0 *	0.00	4.82	8.60	9.87	474.49	11.00	7.30	24.97	0.19	0.36	0.40
22	0.27	40.0 *	6.80	10.15	13.22	16.67	2165.50	54.14	7,30	24.97	0.41	0.53	
23	0.50	40.0 *	12.47	16.56	10.30	19.53	2843.50	71.09	7.30	24.97	0.66	0.41	0.78
231/2	0.58	160.00	23.00						7.30	39.64		ļ +	
26	0.82	40.0 *	20.57						7.30	24.97			
29	0.96	40.0 -	24.07						7.30	24.97			
30	0.15	2.5	1.30	4.10	5.20	6.51	133.90	53.56	6.20	0.43	0.0	0.62	0.77
301/2	0.00	2.5 *	0.00	1.90	2.98	3.54	22.43	9.27	6,20	1.4	0.23	0.35	9.42
31	0.33	2.5 *	2.70	3.90	5.10	7.55	162.73	65.09	6.20	8.43	0.45	0.60	0.90
32	0.47	2.5 *	4.00	5.28	8.20	6.77	215.44	86.18	6:20	8.43	0.63	0.50	0.00
33	0.63	2.5 *	5.30	6.15	5.09	1.99	174.40	69.84	6.20	8.43	0.73	0.60	0.95
34	0.71	2.5 -	6.00	7.75	2.95	8.45	177.51	71.00	6.20	0.43	0.98	0.35	1.00

						THEL	CHATER		_				
						3					H-Scel	d Graz	er y
Blast No	٩	Caarye Weiyl caarye Weiyl bapleative T	Cherye Depti d (F1)	Creter Depti h (Ft)	Creter Radi r (Ft)	slant Dista to Rig (FL)	Yoluae V (Ft ³)	P/A	•••	=	K = 1/H H = 5ce 1 ed B e p th	K = r/N N-Scaled Radius	K = C/M M-Scaled Slant Dista
341/2	0.59	64 5.0	6.22	8.00	4.61	9.20	244.67	45.73	6.20	10.40	9.75	0,42_	0.07
35 -	0.95	2.5 *	8.00						6.20	_0.4			1
351/2	0.96	[5.0 " ,	10.14		ĺ	•	_		4.20	19.60		<u> </u>	
36	0.15	10.0"	2.16	<u>. 4.00</u>	6.4	. 8.07	317.22	\$1.72		13.33	0.36	0.0	0.61
37	0.33	10.0"	_ 4.40	6.60	7.47	7.85	106.06	60.69	6.30	18.33	0.40		0,74
30	0.62	10.0"	8.31	11.4	6.21	13.06	753.79	75,30	6.20	13,35	0.86	0.47	0.90
381/2	0.56	20.0	9.40						6.20	16.80	L		L
39	0.80	10.0	10.70					-	6.29	13.33		L	ļ
40	0:95	10.0	12.71						6.20	13.53			L
401/2	0.97	20.0"	16.27			<u> </u>			6.20	16.00			L
42	0.16	40.0"	3.37	7.22	10.42	12.66	1220.32	30 .51	6.20	21.20	0.34	0.49	0.60
421/2	0.00	40.0"	0.00	5.00	0.24	10.57	569.64	14.24	6.20	21.20	0.27	0.39	0.50
43	0.32	40.0"	6.82	9.60	12.09	15.43	1744.22	43.61	6.20	21.20	0.45	0.57	0.73
44	0.54	40.0"	11.37	14.03	13.20	21.00	1736.02	49.42	6.20	21.20	0. 55	0.62	0.97

		يوننون والتي مد				TRUE	CRATER						
		- 1			•						K-Seel	d Cret	er :
Bleet Re	4	Cherge Weigs * (15) Explosive Ty	Cherye Bepth d _c (Ft)	Crutet Bepik h (Ft)	Crater Radiu r (Ft)	stest Biston to Big to C _t (F.)	Yelwer Y (Fi ³)	a/a	•	æ	# # 0.911	L = ://f R-scalei Eadlus	K = C /R M-Scaled Slant Distan
441/2	0.50	160.84	19.55			└			6.30	33.67			
. 46	0.98	40.0 *	20.67		L	L			6.20	21.30			
50	9.36	2.5 75	1.88	2.14	1.50	5,57	99.35	8. 11	<u></u>	20,30	0.20_	10.00_	9.00
\$1	8.30	2.8 *	2.00	4.18	4.67	6.12	123.61	17.44			9.51		9.15
82	0.63	2.5 *	5.18	6.76	3.12	7.45	166.64	66.66	6.00	0,16	0.83	10.38	0.91
521/2	0.55	5.0 *	5.65						6.00	10.26		ļ	ļ
54	0.78	2.5 *	6.33	0.90	2.09	2.31	2.53	1.01	6.00	0.16	0.12	0.36	0.20
50	9.39.	2.5 *	7.30		1			L	6.00	9.16	\perp		L
541/2	0.92	5.0 *	9.47						6.00	10.26		1	<u> </u>
55	0.00	2.5 *	0.00	1.56	3.22	3.58	20.04	8.62	6.00	0.16	0.19	0.39	0.44
56	0.17	10.0	2.20	4.52	6.95	8.30	457.27	45.78	6.00	12.90	0.35	0.54	0.64
87	0.34	10.0"	4.45	5.92	8.09	9.96	501.44	50.14	6.00	12.90	0.45	0.63	0.77
50	0.63	10.0*	0.14	10.00	6.19	12.10	E05.20	80.52	6.00	12.90	0.01	0.48	0.94
581/2	0.57	20.0"	9.33		l				6.00	16.36			
													F-5

		·····				TRUE	CHATER						
					•	5	1				H-Scal	d Crat	r 5
Blast No	٩	Charge Haigh (1b) Eaplosive Ty	Cherve Depth d _c (Ft)	Creter Depth h (Ft)	Creter Radiu r (Ft)	Sient Disterto Right (Ft)	Voluce V (Ft ³)	R/ h	•	2	N = N/N N = Sceled Depth	k = ./N N-Scaled Radius	K = C / W M ^c scaled Slamt Dista
59	0.97	10.075	12.54						6.00	12.90			
39 1/2	1.31	20.075	21.23]			6.00	16.26			
60	0.84	10.075	10.84			[6.00	12.90			
63	0.17	40.075	3.45	7.88	9.00	12.59	1101.30	29.53	6.00	20.52	0.38	0.48	0.61
63 1/2	0.00	40.075	0.00	4.80	7.69	9.07	422.69	10.57	6.00	20.52	J.23	0.37	0.44
64	0.34	40.075	6195	9.08	12.24	15.21	2188.37	54.71	6.00	20.52	0.44	0.70	0.74
65	0.63	40.075	12.85	16.42	14.44	21.90	3018.01	75.45	6.00	20.52	0.80	0.70	1.07
65 1/2	0.92	160.075	18.90	-		-			6.00	20.52			
67	1.01	40.078	20.65						6.00	20.52		-	
70 T	0.17	2.546	1.36	1.60	4.34	4.67	68.86	19.54	4.20	8.43	0.30	0.52	0.55
71 7	0.32	2.546	2.66	3.80	5.95	7.06	112.00	45.12	6.20	0.43	0.45	0.71	0.84
72 T	0.64	2.546	5.30	6.88	5.77	8.94	246.47	98.59	6.20	8.43	0,02	0.68	1.06
73 7	0.81	2.546	6.86		_	Į			6.20	0.43			
74 2	L.97	2.546	8.11						6.20	8.43			

69

and the second s

2

ŝ

						TEUE	CRATER						
		- 1			•	:					H-Scol	d Crete	1
Blist Re	٩	Clistge Keigh (1b) K (piesite Ty	Cherge Bepth 4.(71)	(.reter Bepth h (Ft)	;rotof Rodiu r (ft)	start Distan to Rig (Ft)	relane V (F1 ³)	N/A	••	Z	L = 1/1 1.500 100	L = :/H H-Scaled Eading	K_sched R_sched Slaat Distan
75 T	1.13	2.5460	9.51						6.20	1.4	i		
76 T	0.17	10.0460	2.20	2.90	5.82	6.50	220.40	22.05	6.20	13.33	0.22	0.44	0.40
TT 3-	0.32	10.0460	4.30	6.10	7.62	9.75	393.71	39.37	6.20	13.53	0.46	0.58	0.73
78 2	0.65	10.0460	8.60	10.91	5.82	12.37	069.19	166.92	6.20	13.53	0.82	0.44	0.93
79 2	0.00	10.0460	10.75		 				7.30	13.33	I		
H T	9.97	10.0460	12.95						7.30	13.34			
01 T	0.40	10.0460	5.40	7.47	7.00	10.44	476.22	47.62	7.30	13.33	0.56	9.53	0.78
82 T	0.24	10.0460	8.20	5.67	6.74	8.32	446.57	-1.66	6.20	13.33	0.43	0.51	0.66
90 T	0.24	2.5380	1.50	2.64	5.47	6.00	106.37	42.15	4.80	1.53	0.40	0.84	0.94
91 T	0.30	2.575	2.48	3.06	4.41	5.56	104.25	41.30	4.80	6.53	0.47	0.68	0.85
92 T		2.585	5.36			L			4.80	6.53	 		
97 7	1.94	2.575	6,78	·					4.80	6.53	 		
94 7	1.25_	2.575	0.18				 		4.80	6.53	L		
96 T	0.21	10.075	2.24	3.64	5.95	6.99	185.43	18.54	4.80	10.32	0.68	0.30	لعبعه

						THUE	CRATER						
				1		:					N-Scal	ed Crat	¢r 🖁
Blest No	٩	Cherge Weigh " (1b) Explosive Ty	Charge Depth d (ft)	Crater Bepth A (Ft)	Creter Radiu r (Ft)	Slant Distanto Rig to Rig	Volume V (Ft ³)	R/A	4	£	A = A/N N-Sceled Dopth	L = 1/N N-Scaled Radius	K = C /N N-Scaled Slamt Distan
97 I	0.43	10.075	4.34	6.02	6.73	9.04	407.94	40.79	4.86	10.32	0.59	0.45	0.88
98 T	0.86	10.075	8.64						4.80	10.32			[
99 T	0.95	10.075	9.74	<u> </u>		<u> </u>			6.00	10.32			
1007	0.53	10.075	5.44	7.66	6.12	9.81	411.96	41.20	6.00	10.32	0.74	0.59	0.95
1017	8.33	10.075	8.29	4.85	6.36	7697	347.48	34.77	6.00	10.32	0.45	0.61	0.78
200	0.41	2.5460	4.08	5.44	4.87	7.30	186.96	74.78	7.30	9.93	0.55	0.49	0.74
201	0.41	10.0460	4.46	9.06	7.51	11.77	839.64	83.96	7.80	15.70	0.58	0.48	0.75
202	0.50	10.078	6.46	0.40	7.14	11.09	825.98	\$2.70	6.00	12.90	0.66	0.55	0.86
210	0.48	2.564	4.00	L					6.20	8.43			ļ
211	•.#	10.004	6.40	0.00	7.54	11.20	983.85	98.38	6.20	13.33	0.63	0.57	0.85
212	0.46	40.9 ^{C4}	10.26	13.10	11.17	17.30	1773.07	44.35	6.20	21.29	0.62	0.53	0.62
220	0.50	2.578	4.00	5.76	5.01	P.64	196.44	78.56	6,00	0.16	9.71	0.61	9.94
22.08	0.50	2.575	4.00	L	L	ļ	L		6.90	0.16		ļ	ļ
2::2	0.50	10.075	10.26	14.84	13.60	20.14	\$462.73	61.57	6.00	20.52	0.72	0.66	0.90

N.

70

						THUE	CHATER]
					•	2					N-Scel	d Crot	
Blast No	٩	Charge Weigh . (12) Explosive 73	Charge Bepth 4.(71)	Cratar Berth	Crater Redit	Start Blater to Rig (Ft)	Yoluce V (F1 ³)	a/a	u	æ	L = 1/8 1-5caled Bepth	L = 1/A A-scaled Badino	K = C / H H-Scaled Siant Distan
2307	1.46	2.5460	4.97	4.83	4.67	6.21	154.76	61.90	6.30	8.43	0.57	0.55	0.74
2817		0.040	6.46	8.66	8.64	11.54	741.84	74.18	6.20	13.33	0.65	0.50	0.07
232	0.41	10.0460	10.26	13.50	11.74	17.91	2847.25	71.18	7.30	24.97	0.54	0.47	0.72
240T	0.63	2.578	4.01	5.22	4.80	1.01	145.67	50.27	4.00	6.53	0.90	0.74	1.09
2417	0.65	0.0 ⁷⁵	6.46	8.74	7.53_	11.59	767.64	76.76	4.90	10.32	.0.85	e.13	1.18
260	+0.16	0.0 ^{C4}	+2.15						6.30	13.33		••••	
270	+8.85	0.064	+1.00	1.06	4.35	4.75	49.47	4.95	6.20	13.33	0.14	0.32	0.35
2702	+0.00	0.064	+1.00						6.20	13.33			
271	+0.00	0.0440	+1.00	0.93	4.50.	4.59	\$6.92	\$69	7.30	15.70	0.059	0.29	0.29
272	+0.00	0.0	+1.00	1.30	3.66	3,32	19.52	1.82	6.00	12.90	9.10	0.24	0.26
200	0.00	0.064	0.00						6.20	13.33			
201	0.00	0.0460	9.00	3.80	5.90		160.30	.16.99	7.2	15.70	0.24	0.37	0.44
		8.0 ⁷⁵		-2.54	4.12	5.54		8.86	6.00	12.90	0.20	0.30	0.43
290	0.16	10.064	2.15	5.28	Y.07	8.65	460.42	46.04	6.20	13.33	0.20	0.53	0.66
													7-9

						THUE	CHATER						
1 1		- 2]				1	T			R-Scel	ed Crale	<u> </u>
Bless M	٩	Cherge Meigh (1b) Explosive Ty	Cberge Bepth 4 _c (Ft)	Creter Bepth h (Ft)	Crater Redie r (Ft)	Slant Distan 30 Rin (F1)	Volume 1 (Ft ³)	*/*	دي	æ	b = b/R Misceled Depth	Ar ar/M N-Scaled Hadius	MC H C / M M-Scaled Vlast Dista
291	9.17	107.0	-8-15	4.46	6.72	8.09	383.67	.38.37	<u>6.09</u>	12.90	0.35.	0.52	. <u>0.63</u>
292	0.14	10460	2.15	4.63	6.32	9.51	527.17	52.72	7.30	15.70	0.29	0.53	0.61
293	0.16	8.64	1.71	4.34	5.96	7.36	258.99	51.60	6.30	10.60	0.41	0.56	0.69
274	0.17	5 70	1.71	4.39	5.30	6.87	204.31	40.66	6.00	10.26	0.43	0.52	0.67
275	0.14	5460	<u>i.n</u>	4.96	5.43	7.37	255.32	51.06	7.30	12.45	0.40	0,44	0.59
296	0.16	4004	8.42		 				6.20	21.20		+	-
297	0.1.1	40 To	8.42			1		1	6.00	20.52	:	1	
290	8.14		3.43	1		1		1	7.30	24.97		+	• • -
L	 	J	Ļ	+ -	ļ	ł		1	ł	ł		-	-
ļ	<u>_</u>	÷	 	.	1	1	1	I	: †		ł		
	 .	<u> </u>	↓	ļ	.			ł	•		1	-	-
L	1	1	L		L	1 .	.L) f				+
		1	1		1						4	1	1
	1	T -	1 -		Ī					1			

				CONFLETE	-	6				·····			
						•	,		N->cə	+d Ger	plete A	is; Lure	
4		•	8.919.01	Compileto Reptero Bodise.	8 1011 8 1011 9 101000 0		,	Critical Boyth. #	r a	4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4		•11 i	
1	1.00	0.17	3.24	3.67	3.00	50.72	50.72	6.00	216.00	0.54	0.61	0.23	
2	2.00	0,33	4.00	3.00	3.60	62.00	62.00	6.00	216.00	0.67	0.50	9.29	
24	2.00	0,35	3.66	3.17	3.75	84.45	84.45	6.00	216.00	0.61	9.53	9.39	
3	3.00	0.50	4.10	2.80	4.10	85.63	85.63	6.00	216.00	0.70	0.47	9.49	
	3,95		i.#	9.07	5.00	92.69	92.69	6.00	214.00	0.91	0.51	9.43	
8	4.05	0.01					İ	.6.00	216.00	T			
•	6.00	1.00					Ì	6.00	216.00		,	1	
7	0.00	0.00	1.70	1.95	1.95	9.10	9.10	6.00	216.00	0.30	0.33	0.04	
•	01.00	•0.17						6.00	216.00		1		
•	1.36	0.14	4.33	5.52	5.69	103.54	01.42	9.93	979.18	0.44	0.56	0.21	
210			3.25	4.13	4.12	112.30	44.95	9.93	1979.15	0.33	8.42	6.11	
10	2.80	e.20	5.30	5.75	6.40	27.47	170.99	9.93	979.15	0,54	0.54	0.44	
	5.30	0.52	0.90	6.11	8.09	\$37.29	214.92	9.93	979.15	0.87	0.62	9.55	
12	6.76	0.68	9.72	5.59	9.03	53.21	261.28	9.93	979.15	0.98	0.60	0.67	
				<u> </u>	L								-

			ç	OMPLETE	ROPTUR	5					· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
									N-Sca	led Cor	plete R	spture	
Bleet No	Cherge Depth fi d _c	٩	Depth of Complete Rupture, ft	Complete Rupture Redius. ft	Slent Distance to Limit. ft	Volume ft3 vr	∎⁄ ² Å	Critical Depth. N f:	C.K.	0c, th <mark>#</mark>	Kođi so Rođi so		i
12 1/2	7.17	0.57	10.75	7.53	10.40	1121.75	224.35	12.40	1943.74	0.86		0.50	
18	9.11	0.82	10.94	4.85	9.45	579.97	231.99	2.93	979.15	1.30	0.49	0.59	
14	9.61	0.99			L			9.93	979.15				
14 1/2	12.34	0.99	L		 		 	12.40	1943.76			! •	
15	2.30	0.14	ļ		 		4	15.70	3869.89			i •	
15 8	2.20	0.14	7.52	0.50	0.%	960.67	96.05	15.70	3869.89		0.55	0.25	
16	4.30	0.27						15.70	3869.89				L
	4.40	0.20	9.00	9,96	10.06	1455.07	145.59	15.70	3869.89	0.57	0.58	0.30	
_ ۲۱	8.10	0.52	11.87	8.84	11.99	1645.24	164.52	15.70	3069.09	0.72	0.56	0.43	
17 1/1	11.50	0.97	L					19.78	7738.89				
10	19.99	9.69	14.26	7.07	18.23	1665.13	166.51	15.70	9947.00	0.91	0.45	0.43	
10 1/2	12.99	0.62		-	 	h		15.70	2049.09			ļ	
19	15.10	0.96		L				15.70	3869.89			İ	
19 1/2	19.48	0.98						19.78	7730.89				ļ

A35

72

大きいたいたいたいかい たいちちゅう シーン・ン

.

•

			5	MILLIT	-	Ľ							
									H-Sco	ed Cos	lete B	sture	
Blast Ro	Charge 00010 11	3	Bept5 "T"	Complete Beptere Redise, _e ft	Sleet Distance to Limit, ft		κ ² /8	Critical Depth. W ft	¢.	•••• }	Rest us 2	.+*. •	
20	\$2.60	1.44	·			L		15.70	3069.01				
21	3.32	0.14	9.50	11.95	12.40	2797.3	69.93	24.97	\$568.8	0.38	0. 48	0.10	
21 1/	0.00	0.00	6.04	9.63	9.63	135.0	23.34	24.97	5548.8	0.24	0.39	` 0,0 6	
22	6.00	0.27	13.12	13.54	15.15	4456.9	111.42	24.97	15560.02	0.53	9.54	0.29	
<u>n</u>	12.47	0.66	17.82	12.00	17.36	4400.41	112.02	¥.17	5568.82	0.71	0.48	0.29	
23 1/	23.00	0.58						39.66	2207.51				
26	20.57	0.82						24.97	5568.82				
29	24.07	0.96						24.97	5568.82				
30	1.30	0.15	5.56	5.70	5.70	203.4	81.39	6.43	599.0	0.4	0.66	0.34	
<u>></u>	0.00	0.00	2.23	4.07	4.11	70.9	28.37	6.43	599.0	0.26	0.40	0.12	
31	2.70	0.33	4.63	5.35	5.99	205.3	114.15	6.43	599.9	0.57	0.65	0.4	
38	4.00	9.67	6.20	4.84	\$.90	27.3	110.90	1.43	599.0	0.74	0.51	9.50	
	5.30	9.63	7.46	6.38	8.22	384.70	153.90	8.43	599.00	0.10	0.16	0.64	
34	6.00	0.73	0.56	4.00	7.26	362.6	145.07	8.43	599.00	1.02	8.40	0.61	
34	6.00	0.73	8.56	4.97	7.26	262.6	145.07	8.43	599.00	1.02	8.40	0.61	

				OBPLETE	B UPT DE	٢							
									N-Sca	led Com	plete R	splure	
Blest No	Charge Depth ft d _c	4	Depth of Complete Rupture, ft	Complete Rupture Redite. fr	Siant Distance to Limit. ft	Velume 2 1 3 V ₂	∎⁄ ⁴ ∧	Criticel Deptà. N fi	e. K	Depth <mark>h</mark> E	Rodius TE	Vel une ^V f	
34 1/	6.22	0.59	9.20	5.61	0.37	667.55	133.51	10.60	1192.02	0.87	0.53	0.56	
35_	8.00	0.95	+					8.43	599.00				
35 1/	10.14	0.96	-					10.60	1191.02				
34	2.16	0.16	5.71	6.68	7.02	581.83	58.12	13.33	2368.59	0.43	0.50	0.25	
37	4.40	0.33	7.76	7.52	0.71	835.16	03.52	13.33	2368.59	0.58	0.56	0.35	
38 .	6.31	0.62	12.64	6.25	10.39	864.67	86.47	13.33	2268.59	0.95	6.47	0.37	
30 1/		0.56			L			16.80	4761.65				
39	10.70	9.80						13.33	2368.59	_			
.40	12.71	0.95	-					13.33	2368.59				
49 1/	16.27	0.97						16.00	4741.63				
42	3.37	0.16	9.43	11.83	18.19	221.42	73.04	21.20	9528.13	0.44	0.56	0.31	
42_1/	0.00	0.00	1 _6.24	0.75	8.75	845.12	21.13	21.20	9528.13	0.29	9.41	0.09	
++	6.82	0.32	13.09	12.10	13.89	515.00	87.90	21.20	9528.13	0.62	0.57	0.37	
44	11.37	0.54	17,53	11.32	16.04	611.73	90.29	21.20	9528.13	0.83	0.53	0.38	

73

そうながなった。 古田の愛がなるないないにないった そうごうまち いました し

.•

			COSP	LATE SO	PTUES								
									N-Sco	ed Con	lete 2	pture	
Biest Re	Cherge Bopth ft de	4	Depth of Complete Rupture, ft	Complete Reptere Bedies. ft	51811 51816 61818866 10 Lisit. ft	Values fi ³ V _E	¶∕ ² λ	Criticei Bepth. H Ít	? =	Bepth R	Redies FL	7.1 mo 1.5	
44 1/	19.55	0.50						33.47	0170.65				
*	20.67	0.90			L			21.20	9520.13				
50	1.33	0.16	4.60	4.69	4.00	161.70	66.66	8.16	543.3	0.50	0.57	0.30	
\$1	2.40	0.30	5.27	4.46	5.10	213.65	85.46	0.16	543.34	0.65	0.55	0.39	• • • • • •
\$2	5.13	6.63			L			8.16	543.34			L	
ja 1/1	5.65	0.55				L		10.26	1000.00				
54	6.33	0.78						8.16	543.3				
54 3	7.38	0.90						0.16	543.3				
54 1/ 1	9.47	0.92			L			10.36	1000.00				
	e.ee		1.00	3.36_		33.62	13.45	0.16	\$43.3				
56	2.30	0.17		6.99	1.39	683.70	60.37	12.90	2140.6	<u>.</u>	0.54	9, 32	
	4.45			8.86	9.21	991.01	99.10	12.90	2146.6	0.62	0.62	0.66	
	0.14	0.63	11.54	6.00	10.66	1000.47	100.05	12.90	2146.6	0.09	0.53	9.47	
50 1/2	9.33	0.57						16.26	4298.9				L

				COMP	LETE NO	PTURE								
					Ī		[N-Sco	ed Con	lete R	pture	
	Blast No	Cherge Bepth ft	4	Complete Rupture	Couplete Rupture Redius, fr	Siant Distance to Limit. ft	velune f t ³ v ₇	₩/ ² λ	Griticel Depth. N ft	7	Depth Nr	Bodius R ^L		
		12.54	<u>0.</u> 97	4	L				12.90	2146.69		·		
59	1/2	21.23	1.31	∗					16.26	4290.94				
••		10.04	9.9 4	14. <u>5</u> 5	8.67	12.23	1235.0	123.50	12.90	2146.64	1.18	0.44	0.58	
63		3.45	<u>0.17</u>	9.56	11.62	12.12	2550.0	63.76	20.52	8640.34	0.47	0.57	0.30	
62	1/2	.1,10	. 	5.00	.1.16.	7.14_	699.2	17.47	20.52	8440.34	9.30	0.30	0.00	
64_		6.95	. 9.34	11.00	12.24	14.00	3155.6	78.09	20.52		0.50	0.60	0.37	
65		12.85	0.63	17.07	10.51	16.60	3605.8	90.15	20.52	8640.34	0.87	0.51	0.42	
6.5	1/2	10.90	0.92	· -					20.52	8640.34				
67	j	26.65	1.01	•					20.52	8640.34				
70	T	. J.36.	. 0.17	4.94.	4.10	1.32	100.0	42.54	0.42	399.00	9.4	9.49	9.10	
n	τ.		9.33	\$,67	5.92	6,51	. 299.9		9.43		9.67	9.71	9.34	
12	1				6.32		348.1	1.24.26		599.50	9.87	0.76	9. 57	
13	Ţ	6.86	.0.01						8.43	599.00				
11	1	0.11	0.97						8.43					

85¢

74

Same and the second second

APPENDIX

			CONP		PTURE								
									H-540	ed Coe	lete B	plure	
8100 F	Charge Beg il fri	٩	Bopth of Complete Rupture _{kr}	Complete Eupture Rediuc, ft	slont Biotones to Linit. ft	reimo Ei ³ r _r	م/* ۵	Critical Bopth. R Ft	7				
75 T	9.51	1.18						8.43	599.00				
74.2	2.20	0.17	6.42	7.75	8.96	642.31	64.24	13.55	2368.59	0.46	0.50	0.20	
11 1	4.30	0.32	8.26	7.62	0.75	712.10	71.22	13.33	2 340.59	0 63	0.55	0.29	
70 1	0.60	0.65	11.67	9.99	13.10	1781.10	170.12	13.33	2368.59	0.87	0.76	0.75	
<u>n i</u>	\$9.75	0.30						13.33	3000.31				
30 7-	12.95	0.97						13.33	2360.59				
EL T	5.40	0.40	9.22	7.85	9.53	791.71	79.17	13.33	2366.5	0.70	0.59	0.33	
82 T	3.20	0.24	7.79	8.37	0.96	1124.69	112.47	18.33	2368.59	0.59	0.63	6.47	
90 T	1.50	0.24	4.32	5.49	5.71	142.85	\$7.13	6.53	278.45	A.66	0.84	0.51	
21 1	2.40	0.30	5.00	4.67	5,29	139.11	\$8.24	6.53	270.45	0.76	0.71	0.47	
92 7	5.30	0.83						6.53	270.45		ļ		
9.1	6.78	1.94	ļ					6.53	278.48		 		
<u>94 T</u>	0.10	1.25	<u> </u>					6.53	278.45		ļ		
96 T	2.24	0.21	6.05	5.93	6.34	450.71	45.00	10.32	1099.10	0.59	0.50	0.41	

			CONF	LETE BU	PTURE								
			<u> </u>						N-Sce	ed Com	leto fi	pture	
Blast #0	Charge Beeth fr	4	Depth of Complete Expture, ft	Complete Reptere Redius. ft	Slast Distance to Limit. ft	Yolune [13 Yr	n∕*	Criticei Depth. W ft	n E	Depth <mark>h</mark> f	206115 T	5	
97 T	4.34	0.43	7.72	6.77	8.04	515.73	\$1.57	10.32	1099.1	0.75	0.6	0.47	
	8.64	0.06						10.32	1099.1				
	9.74-	L 0.95						10.19	1002.1				
1007	5.44	0.53	9.00	7.50	9.26	869.69	86:97	10.52	1099.1	0.88	0.73	0.80	
101T	3.29	0.33	6.59	7.17	7.89	621.35	62.14	10.32	1099.1	0.64	0.90	0.57	
200	4.00	0.41	6.13	5.38	6.75	\$54.11	141.64	9.93	979.1	0.62	0.54	0.36	
201	6.46	0.41	9.93	8.96	16.95	406.93	140.69	15.90	3869.89	0.63	0.57	0.36	
202	6.46	0.50	9.60	7.20	9.73	1045.78	104.58	12.50	2146.69	0.75	0.56	0.49	
210	4.00	0.4						0.43	599.00				
211	6.4	0.40	9.32	8.02	10.30	116.11	111.61	13.34	2 240.59	5.19	0.69	9.47	-
212	10.26	<u></u>	14.52	h	11.17	441.00	101.4	21229	9520.13	9.62	0.54	0.42	L
729_	4.90	0.50	- 6.40	L B.OL		295.56	118.22	8.16	543.3	0.78		0.54	
2202	4.00	0.50	L	↓	ļ			0.16	543.3				
222	10.26	0.50	14.27	11.03	15.06	\$545.55	88.64	20.52	8640.34	0.70	0.54	0.41	
													G- 8

75

の後期に、日本の時代の日本の日本のまたとう。

ç

			C007							<u></u>			
									8-500	led Coo	lete B	p ture	
Blact No		4	Depth of Complete Reptare _h	Complete Bupture Bedius. ft	51081 81010860 10 Lisit, ft	rol	∎∕* a	Criticei Depth. N ft	9 2	Bopth <mark>h</mark> E	teelus 🚰		
230T	4.07	0.48	\$.56	4.72	6.23	217.27	86.91	8.43	599.00	0.66	0.57	0.30	
2917	6.46	9.40	9.95	9.69	11.65	1324.83	132.40	13.33	2368.59	0.74	0.73	0.55	
202	10.36	0.44	15.85	11.95	15.75	3003.70	97.09	24.97	1 5568 . 0	0.63	0.46	0.25	
249T	4.07	9.63	6.00	4.99	6.44	181.68	72.63	6.53	278.4	6 0.94	0.76	0.64	
2417	6.6	9.63	9.87	7.51	9.96	830.59	63.96	10.32	1099.10	0.96	9.73	0.76	
369	+2.15	+0.16				Ŀ		13.33	2368.59				
270	+1.00	+0.00	3.36	5.86	5.96	201.00	20.19	13.33	2368.59	0.25	0.44	0.01	
2796	+1.00	+0.00						13.33	2 268.59				
371	+1.00	+0.01						15.70	3869.89				
272	+1.66	+8.00	2.55	4.57	4.70	66.61	6.66	12.90	2146.67	0.20	0.35	9.63	
200	0.00	0.00						13.33	2 368 . 59				
281	9.90	9.00	4.78	6.59	6.59	379.72	37.87	15.70	3869.89	0.30	.0,42	0.10	
202	0.00	0.00	4.01	4.96	4.96	212.53	21.25	12.90	2146.69	0.31	0.36	0.10	
290	2.15	0.16	6.77	7.10	7.50	657.13	65.71	13.33	2368.59	0.51	0.54	0.24	

1				ONPLETE	E UPT DE	<u> </u>							
									8-500	Led Geo	lete E	pture	
	Charge Bepth ft d _c	٩	Depth of Complete Rupture. ft	Complete Bupture Bediue, rft	Slant Bistanso ti Limit, ft	4 0 1 110 0 7 1 110 0 7 1 110 0	a/ ² a	Gritiaal Depth. N ft	C.H.		T uibe	- † 1 - 1 - 1	
291	2.15	0.17	6.74	7.13	7.45	665.82	66.58	12.90	2146.67	0.52	0.55	0.31	
292	2.15	0.14	7.17	9.59	9.83	1136.42	113.64	15.70	3869.89	0.46	0.61	0.29	
293	1.71	0.16	5.40	7.18	7.37	511.42	102.28	10.60	1191.02	0.51	0.68	0.43	
294	1.71	0.17	5.23	5.51	5.77	325.10	65. 6 4	10.26	1060.05	0.51	0.54	0.30	
295	1.71	0.14	5.38	6.29	6.52	424.39	84.88	12.48	1943.76	0.43	0.50	0.22	
296	3.42	0.16						21.20	9528.13				
297	3.42	0.17						20.52	6640.36				
298	3.42	0.14						24.971	8568.82				
										_ _			
ļ	ļ												

76

Bren him with the bird and their a birt.

t

NOTCHING &

1

			SX TOS III	ROPTOR	1							
								H-Se	ied Es	trene B	pture	
Blass &		4		11 1000 L	Biant Distante Lisit, ft	raluae fi ³ Ve	\$ Critted Bopth. B	ری	-	- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -	- 1 - - 	
	1.00	0.17					6.00	216.00				
2	2.00	0.33					6.00	216.00				
24	2.00	0.33					6.00	216.00				
3	3.00	0.50					6.00	216.00				
•	3.95	0.66					6.00	216.00			ļ	
5	4.85	0.81					6.00	216.00			1	
•	5.00	1.00					6.00	216.00				
7	0.00	0.00					6.00	216.00				
•	+1.00	+0.17					6.00	216.00				
,	1.36	0.14					9.95	979.15				
91/2	0.00	0.00					9.93	979.15				
10	2.00	0.26					9.93	979.15				
11	5.30	0.53					9.93	979.15				
12	6.76	0.66					9.93	979.15				

			E . TRE NE	RUPTUR	e								
1	T]		N->c	led Ex	Lrei ⁻ B	pture	
Blast No	Cherye Depti: ft d _c	٩	Bepth of Extreme Euplurent	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	Siant D.stance tu Licit, ft	Vulune f1 ³ te	۴./å	Critical Deptn. N ft	e z	Depth <mark>ne</mark>	Radius T	Aolume Tolume	
121/2	7.17	0.57	11.10	0.23	19.92	1559.01	311.80	_12.48	1943.76	0.89	. 0.66	0.80	
13	0.11	0.82	10.94	4.88	9.46	579.97	231.99	9.93	979.15	1.10	0.49	0 <u>.59</u>	
14	9.61	0,10	12.33	5.32	10.96	897.15	368.86	9.93	979.15	1.24	0.54	0.92	
141/2	12.34	0.99		[]				12.48	1943.76			 	•
15	2.20	0.14						15.70	2042.99				
158	2.20	0.14	9.01	8.50	8.70	1509.03	150.90	15.70	3869.89	0.57	0.54	0.39	
16	4.30	0.27					L	15.70	2469.89	-			
168	4.40	0.28	9.00	9.98	10.91	2167.70	216.70	15.70	\$869.89	0.57	0.64	0.56	
17	0.10	0.52				L		15.70	8869.89		+		
171/2	11.50	0.59		1 .		L	4	19.78	1738.89				
1.	10.00	0.69	15.01	9.79	13.22	2479.50	249.85	15.70		يە. ل	0.56	0.70	╞
191/2	12.90	9.82	16.66	9.75	1.16.12	8785.95	378.60	1.15.70		1.06	0.67	0.98	
	15.10	0.96			1.		ļ	15.70	2069.09	_	↓	<u> </u>	┟────
191/2	19.48	0.98				1		19.78	1730.84	<u> </u>	1	<u> </u>	<u> </u>

77

-	-	
7		
	0	

Savatorium: ---

				EGPTUE	6								
									8-50	led Es	trees 2	pture	
Bleet Ro	Chorge Bopin Ti	٩			Slant Bistance to Limit, ft	• * • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	•	Critical Bopth. N ft	œ.		an ite	* ******	
20	22.60	1.44	.					15.70	3849.89				
21	3.32	0.14						24.97	5548.82				
211/2	0.00	0.00	6.23	10.72	10.72	1765.5	44.16	24.97	5568.82	0.25	0.43	0.11	
22	6.80	0.27						24.97	5560.82				
23	12.47	0.50						24.97	5560.02				
231/2	23.00	0.58						39.64	2207.51				
26	20.57	0.82						24.97	5568.82				
29	24.07	0.96						24.97	5540.82				
30	1.30	0.15						8.43	599.3				
301/2	0.00	0.00	3.10	5.99	5.99	201.67	. 67	8.43	599.98	9.37	0.71	9.34	
31	2.70	0.33		L				0.43	599.0			L	
32	4.90	9.47	ļ	L				8.43	509.00			ļ	
33	5.30	0.63						6.43	599.00				
34	6.00	0.71						8.43	599.00				

			ENTREME	RUPTUR	E								
									N-36	aled Ex	treor E	pture	
Blast No	Cherye Bepth ft d	٩	Bepth of Extreme Bupture	france Rubiure Rubiure Rubiure I	Stant Distance tu Licit, ft	Yulune fi ³ Ye	₩/°	Criticei Depth. R fi	би В	Depth <mark>Re</mark>	Redius <mark>rc</mark>	Aoj mus Aoj mus	
341/2	6.22	0.39	10.12	7.62	9.84	1957.07	211.41	_ 10.60	1191.0	0.95	9.72	0.89	
35	8.00	0.95	10.37	4.01	0.95	412.73	165.07		599.0	1.23	0.40	0.69	
351/2	10.14	0.96	L			L		10.60	1191.0				
36	2.16	0.16	6.26	8.66	0.93	1101.18	110.13	13.33	2368.5	0.47	0.65	0.46	
37	4.40	0.33	_7.75	<u>.</u>		243.51	_124.35		2364.5	9.58		Q. 51	
24	e.2)	9.62	12.60	6.50	10.00	1278.05	1272.01	13.33	2368,51	. 0. 93.	0.49	0.54	
361/2	9.48	0.56						16.80	4741.6				
39	19.70	0.00	15.65	8.94	13,38	1927.44	293.74	13.23	2368.5	1.17.		_1.24	
40	12.71	0.95	16.34	6.65	14.34	1026.47	182.65	13.33	2369.51	1.23	0.50	0.11	
60 1/2	16.27		19.57	. 1.75_	18.47.	1181.27	209.34		47.41.6		Q.52	0.86	
	2.37		_		L			21.20	9528.13			 	
421/2	0.00	0.00	1.27	10.35	10.35	2200.31	32.2	21.20	9528.1	0.34	0.49	0.14	
43	6.82	0.32	14.17	13.31	14.96	6136.75	153.42	21.20	9528.1	0.67	0.63	0.64	
44	11.37	0.54						21.20	9528.1				

ŧ.

.

				EUP TUR	٤								
									H-50	ied Sa	tress &	plure	
8100 F	66679 80915 71	٩	Bopth of Extreme Eupture	•	Sleat Distance tu Limit. fl	rites ".	n/**	Criticel Bepth. H ft	٩.	1	The second	- T = 	
44 1/2	19.55	0.56						33.67	6170.6				
46	20.67	0.96	25.96	12.43	24.65	1110.2	277.9	21.20	1528.1	1.22		1.17	
50	1.33	0.16	L		L				543.3				
51	2.4	0.30							543.3			 	
52	5.13								543.3			! +	
52_1/2	5.05	9.55	. . .					10.26	1000.0			 	
54	6.33	0.78	Ļ					0.16	543.3			 	
H.	7.30	0.90		–					543.3				
54_1/ 2	9.57	0.92	12.00	5.87	11.14		277.94	10.26	1000.0	1.25	9.57	1.29	┝
56			l		 			8.15	543.34	L			
56	2.20	0.17		L	L	L		12.90	2146.69				
57	4.45	0.34	ļ		ļ			12.90	2146.61	L			
58	0.14	0.63	L					12.90	2146.6			L	
50 1/2	9.33	0.57	<u> </u>					16.76	4298.9	L		<u> </u>	ليسيلا

			E . KE 4E	R. 5.26.83									
	• • •			I				1	N-5'	led Ex	treme #	plure	
	6. 81. 6 8ept. ft	4	1000 - 11 - 10 1000 - 11 - 10 1000 - 11 - 10 1000 - 11 - 10 1000 - 10 1000 - 10 1000 - 10 1000 - 10 1000 - 10 1000 - 10 1000 - 10 1000 - 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 1		S.BR: D.stance tu Licit. ft	V. aur. 5 1 3 4	* ^*	C.itical Dept N	?	Dept'	Radius <mark>"E</mark>	- 1 - 2 	
59	12.54	0.97	15.66	7.47	14.59	2197.90	219.79	12.90	2146.69	1.23	0.58	1.02	
591/2	21.23	1.31	•		-	2124.09	106.20	16.26	4298.94		•	. 0.49	
60	10.84	0.84	•.			į l		12.90	2146.69	-		ł •	
63	3.45 .	0.17	•			! :		20.52	8640.36		•.		
631/2	0.00	0.00	. 6.00	10.53	10.53	1487.41	37.19	20.52	\$640,36	Q.29	0,51	0,17	
64	6.95 .	0.34	13.68	14.08	15.70	5854.74	146.37	20.52	8640.36	0.67	0.69	, 0.68	
65	. 12.85	0.63	. 18.07	13.19	18.41	\$142.86	153.57	20.52	6640,36	0.68	, 0.64	0.71	
651/2	18.90	0.92				1	r	20.52	8640.36	•	•	•	
67	. 20.65 .	1.01	25.56	9.54	22.75	9134.25	228,36	20.52	6640.36	1,25	0,46	1,05	
701	1.36	0.17			,			8.43	599.08		•		
717	2.66	0.32					1 \$	8.43	, 599.08	•	t	-	-
721	5.381	0.64	•		•			8.43	599.08		· 		
73T	6.86	0.81							599.0		_	<u> </u>	
74T	B.11	0.97	11.19	5.60	9.86	1055.72	342.29	8.43	599.00	1.33	ممما	1.42	

APPENDI	X
---------	---

	••••••••		E '68.90	k"P"Le	L								
ļ	F 7		• !						N-20	ied Ba	treae B	s, sure	1
R 1001	6281.5.6 6.6.1.5.6 7.1.5.6	٩	Bepth of Entreme Estreme	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	S.BRE D.stance tu Livit. fe	r. 1 mo r. 3 v.	n/**	C.iticel Bept	92		9 2 7 7 7 7 8 8 7 7 8	> 47 	-
79 I	9.51	1.13	· · · · ·		•• •••	\$39.30	135.75	8.43	599.00		•	0.57	•
76 <u>T</u>	2.20	0.17	6.90		8.95	1075.21	107.52	13.33	2368.59	0.52	0.65	•.46	
77.1	4,30	0.32		•	•			13.33	2368.59			• •	•
78 T	8.60	0.65	11.70	12.56	15.22	3381.68	338.17	13.33	2368.59	0.89	0.94	1.42	
79. T	10,75	0.00	15,15	11.93	16.06	4196.98	419.70	13.33	2368.59	1.13	9.90	1.76	
₿ <u>0</u> Т	12.95	0.97	16.55	11.64	17.41	5055.69	505.57	13.33	2368.59	1.24	0.87	2.14	
<u>01 T</u>	5,40	0.40	9,44	11.18	12.42	2507.84	280.78	13.33	2368.59	0.71	0.84	1.06	
32.T.	3,20	0.24	. 8.10	10.87	11.33	2517.19	251.72	13.33	2368.54	0.61	0.81	1.06	÷
90 T	1.58	0.24	••		•	ب - ا	b	6.53	278.45			•	•
.91.7	2,4	0,38	۲۰,	<u> </u>	!	↓	•	6.53	278,45		•	•	• -
_92_T _	2.30	_ 0.43	7.98	. 5.12	7.85	501.44	200.58	. 6.51	.278.45.	. 1.21		.1.79.	*
92.7.	6.78	1.04	9.01	5.56	8.77	699.52	279.81	6.53	278.45	1.38	9.85	. 2.52	•
94 T	8.18	1.	 _		۱ ۱	201.02	114.73	6.53	278.45		¦ •	1.03	÷
96 T	2.24	0.21	6.58	7.23	7.57	867.95	86.80	10.32	1099.10	0.64	0.70	0.78	1
												H •	• 7

			_		,			N-2:	led Es	szc. i l	IL, Lire	-1
U.as. N	د د د	• ــــ	Derti of Entere K. tere K. tere	2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2		•	C itlei Vept . M .f	n <u>r</u>	Dept. H	Kasius T	> 1 2	
97 I	4.34	0.43	8.25	8.98 9.9	7 1145.55	114.56	10.32	1099.10	0.80	0.88	1.00	
98 T	. 8.64	0.86	.12.00	10.81 13.8	4 2120.90	212.09	10.32	1099.10	1.16	1.05	1.93	
99 T	. 9.74	0.95	13.30	9.25 13.4	3 36 10.00	361.00	10.32	1099.10	1.29	0.90	3.28	
1 00 T	5.44	0.53	9.18	•.68 11.1	0 2705.92	270.59	10.32	1059.10	0.89	0.94	2.46	-
101T	3.29	0.33	8.22	11.14 11.5	2 2499.46	249.95	10.32	1099.10	0.80	1.08	2.26	
200	. 4.08	0.41		! .			9.93	979.15				
201	. 6.46	0.41					15.70	3869.89				-
202	. 6.46	0.50		:			12.90	2146.69				
210	4,08	0.48		ł			8,43	599.0 ¢				-
211	. 6.48	0.45	9.86	8.57,10.7	3 . 1966.8\$	156.68	13.33	2368.59	0.74	0.64	0.66	÷
212	.10.26	0.48	. 8.11	14,00,17.3	5 ; 7504.4\$	187.61	21.20	9528.13	0,38	0.66	0.79	
220	4.08	0.50		Ι) • •		8_16	543.34		•		
220R	. 4.08	0.50		!	· .		8.16	543.34			1	;
222	10.26	0.50	14.43	14.03 17.3	B 5674.19	141.85	20.52	8640.36	0.70	0.68	0.66	1

	•		£ .+L *1		12								
			1		1				N-30	led Ka	treve B	opture	1
		٥			2		a/a a	Critical Bept - N	n <u>e</u>		teetus 76	• † 2	; i
230 T	4.07	0.48	5.56	. 5.68	6.99	393.09	157.24	. 8.47	599.0	0.66	0.67	0.65	* ·
231 T	. 6.46 .	0.49	10.26	10.94	12.50	2561.31	256.13	13.33	2368.5	 77	0.83	1.08	• •
832	10.26	0.41	17.52	14.60	17.84	,6912.50	172.81	24.97	10000700	0.70	0.58	0.44	
240 T	4.07	0.63	6.26	7.67	. L.U	750.16	300.06	6.53	278.4	0.96	1.18	2.69	
141 T	6.46	0.63	10.27	8.75	10.88	,1 800, 04	180.00	10.5	1099.10	1.00	0.85	1.64	
60	. •2.15	+0.16						13.33	2368.59)			
70	+1.08	+0.08	3.73	9.29	9.35	529.06	52.91	13.33	2368.59	0.28	0.70	0.22	•
70 R	+1.08	+0.08	4.50	6.62	6.71	, 227.92	22.79	10.90	2368.55).		•• ·-	•
271	+1.08	+9.07	4.50	6.62	6.71	. 277.92	22.79	15.70	3869.89	0.29	0.42	0.06	+ •
272	. +1.08	+0.08	2.92	, 6.3 7	. 6.46	, 224.22	22.42	12.90	2146.6	0.23	0.49	0.10	; • •
200	0.00	0 ,0 0		•	•		: .	. 13.3 <u>3</u>	2368.5	2		•	,
281	. 0 .00 .	0.00	. 5.50	8.64	. 8.64	707.16	70.72	15.70	3869.8	0.35	0.55	0.18	
292	, 0.00	0.00		!	•			18.90	2164.6	<u> </u>	! •		
290	2.15	0,16	7,38	8,47	8.74	18		13.33	2368.5	0.55	0.64	0.50	<u> </u>

			ENTREME	RUPTUR	Ł								
									N-Sc	iled Ex	trese #	pture	
Blast No	Cherye Depth Zt d	٩	Bepth of Entreme Rupturen ft	LL LL L	Stont Distance to Lie It, ft	ه ۲۰ اسه ۲۰ ۲	*	Criticel Bept . N Í	e z	Depth Ne	2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	
291 292	2.15	0.17	,	ļ	•		-	12.90	2146.69 3869.89		+	 ++ ++	
293	1.71	0.16		-				10.60	1191.02			 	
294 295	1.71	0.17		<u>↓</u>				10.20	1943.76		·	++	
296	3.42	0.16	4 -	ł	ł	- ·		21.20	9520. <u>13</u>				
297 298	3.42	0.17	<u> </u>	<u> </u>				20.52	15568.82		+	+	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
					 	-						+	
		⊧ ↓	 	+ 	-	+			+ 			†	
			<u> </u>	}	+			+	+		+		
				<u></u>	1	<u></u>							

81

のない。その修行な諸常的作用になる。

			ENTREME	RUPTUR	£								
						_			N-Sc	led Ka	treas B	splure	
Bleet No	Chery¢ Bepth ⁶ c	4	Bopth of Latrono	17	Stant Distance tu Limit. ft	Vulune El ³ Ve	R/*A	Criticei Bopth. H ft	¢=		Redius 7	. †	
_			4.32				\$2.45	- 6.00-	_ 216			9.24	
•	6.00	1.00	7.29		4.7	74	74.45	6.00	216	_1,21			
LL LL	6.76	0.60	9.12	. 5.99	.9.03	683	261.29	9.98	. 979	_0.99	9.60		
_19	.15.19.	0.96	10,52		11.8	. 2.715	271.40	18.70	3,879			•.79 .	
20	- 22.60	1.44	26.4		, 13.65	•	• -	. 18.70	. 2.670	. 1.60	• -		-
_24	.20.57	0.82	27.04	12.01	. 24.23	.401	. 210.02	. 24.97	. 15.569	1.09	. 9.51	0.54	
.29	24.07	-9 -96			. 24.4	10.630	265.95	. 24.97	. 15.569	1,21	• •••		
.548.		.0.90	. 9.55	Į	. 5.9	123	. 49.24	. 8.16	543	1.17		. 0.23.	
_191/2	21.22	1.31	. 25.90		. 10.2	2.124	, 106.20	. 16.26	4,299	1.60	•	0.49	
. 721		0.81	j 8.94	5.96	9	.621	24859	. 8.43	. 599	. 1.96	9.71	1.02	
781	9.51	1.13		. .	6.22	. 239	135.75	. 0,43	592	1.49			
-941		1.28	10.62		, 	207	114.73	6.53	278		م	1.03	
			_	 				ļ	 •	•	<u> </u>	╄	·
L	l	L	<u> </u>	I	<u> </u>		l		1	 	I	<u></u>	31 - 9 8

82

Manager Street and Street

ž

ιου παρατικά τα διάστο τη της της Τ

Nor

			CANOD	7167									
	[·	Γ	1		, -			-	· · · ·	1-84	led Con	117	1
Bleet #0	Cherje Cherje ft f	<	Terticel) r	Redius of de fi (Nerisontal)	Y	₽/ ⁹ ₽	Beriane Vidth <mark>v</mark>	Critical Bepth. R	6 2	."] 	. 4		80110 841. 801914 10 801. 81414
1	1.00	0.17	1-42			1		6.00	216.00	0.19		; 4	
2	2.00	0.33	0.90			1 1		6.00	216.00	0.15	 		
24	2.00	0.33	0.90					6.00	216.00	0.15			
3	3.00	0.50	1.00	[6.00	216.00	0.17		1 •	
4	3.95	0.66	1.45			[6.09	216.00	0.24		L	
5	4.85	0.81	1.13	1.01	23.39	23.39	4.10	6.00	216.00	0.19	0.17	0.48	0.80
•	6.00	1.00	1.30	1.70	48.93	48.93	4.16	6.00	216.00	0.22	0.30	0.23	1.02
7	0.00	0.00	1.00	Ι.	Ι.			6.00	216.00	0.17			
•	+1.00	+0.17	1.24					6.00	216.00	0.21		·	
•	1.36	0.14	2.00		. .			9.93	979.15	0.20	- 	 _	
• 1/2	0.00	0.00	2.02	i	ļ		 	9.93	979.15	0.20	L	L	
10	2.80	0.20	1.60				L	9.93	979.15	9.16	L	ļ	ļ
<u> </u>	5.30	0.53	1.40	l	L	<u> </u>		9.93	979.15	0.14			
12	6.76	0.68	1.60					9.93	979.15	0.16		1	

(CANO	UFLET									
				L L						N-S	aled C	vity	
	ې ۲	4	c	at d	>"		-z		" ₂ "	. ¶£	> "x	Max. to 14th
liast -	Charge Depth ft		Radius Fr (Verti	Radius ft (Horiz:	Ye)	Ve,	Kextee Bidth	Critic Depth.	2	Vort. Redius	Horis. Redice	Cavity Vol.	Ratio Height Nax. W
12 1/2	7.17	0.57	2.49					12.48	1943.76	0.20			
13	8.11	0.82	2.09	2.19	143.35	57.34	6.62	9.93	979.15	0.21	0.22	0.15	1.04
14	9.61	0.99	1.72	1.91	127.40	50.96	5.90	9.93	979.15	0.17	0.19	0.13	1.25
14.1/2	12.34	0.99						12.48	1943.76				
15	2.20	0.14						15.70	3869.89			L	
15.8	2.20	0,14	4.13	İ				15.70	3869.89	0.26			
16	4.30	0.27						15.70	3849.89				
10 8	4.40	0.28	2.48					15.70	3869.89	0.16			
17	8.10	0.52	2.37					15.70	3869.89	0.15			
17.1/2	11.58	0.59						19.78	7738.05		ļ		Ļ
	10.80	0.69	2.00	3.79	436.97	43.79	9.50	15.70	3869.81	0.10	0.24	0.11	1.00
10.1/2	12.90	0.82	2.31	3.57	376.29	37.43	2.36	15.70	3869.85	0.15	0.23	0.10	0.01
1.9	15.10	0.96	2.64	3.51	380.26	38.03	10.06	15.70	3869.81	0.17	0.22	0.10	0.84
19 1/2	19.40	0.98						19.78	7730.01				<u> </u>

83

ŝ

۶,

APPENDIX

•

		<u> </u>	CABOD	141									
					г —		Ţ	Γ		8-Sci	led Con	i Ly	4
81001 80	630730 80913 71 6	•	Redies ft (Yerticel) 7	804140 01 6 (K. risostal)	7 . 3 . 4 .		852 jaus 1101 k	Critical Bopth. H ft	е. Ж	70:1: 80:01:0:		.T.	Botto Bon. Roight to Bor. Nidth
20	22.60	1.44_	2.66	2.64	94.00	9.41	6.00	15.76	3049.01	0.57	9.17		1.18
31	3.32	0.14	4.10		 		! •	84.97	5040.03	9.14		 	
21 1/2	0.00	•		• • • •			_	24.97	5640.00	0.19	 		
zz '	6.80	0.27	1.35		Ĺ _			24.97	5566.03	0.13		1	
22	12.47	0.50	4.01	i				84.97	3640.93	9.16	L		
23 1/1	23.00	9.50						37.64	3287.51		} ▲		
*	30.57	0.82	6.51	4.49	833.15	20.83	11.40	24.97	5560.07	0.26	0.10	0.50	1.87
89	24.07	0.96	3.80	4.87	835.16	20.00	13.04	24.97	3640.07	9.15	9.20	0.50	9.03
30	1.30	0.15	2.80		[L	8.43	\$19.00	0.33	Í		
20 1/1		9.99	1.90						599.00	.2.23	ļ		
81	2.70		1.20				L	1.42	200.00			L	
	4.00	0.67						8.43	599.00	0.15		L	
32	5.30	0.63	0.85					8.4	599.00	0.10			
н	6.00	0.71	1.75					0.43	599.00	0.23			

			CABOD	FLET									
										H-S ci	led Car	ity	
Blast No	Cherge Cherge ft ft dc	٩	Redius ft (Vertics1)	Redius at ft (Norigente	Yelune. Y _c Fc ³	¥ c/#	80×10×6	Critical Bepth. N ft	n =	Yert. Redius F			20110 202. 201911 10 202. 21411
34 1/	6.22	0.59	1.76					10.60	1291.0	0.17) 	; •	
35	8.00	0.95	1.88	1.96	63.30	25.35	5.10	8.43	599.0	0.22	0.23	0.11	1.12
35 V/	10.14	0.96						10.60	1191.0		•		
*	2.16	0.16	2.64	_				13.33	2360.5	0.20	l	 	
31	4.40	0.33	2.00		 			13.33	2360.5	0.15		 	
30	0.31	0.62	3.10					13.33	2368.5	0.23	·	¦ ∳	
30 1/3	9.40	0.56		L				16.00	4741.6				
39	10.70	0.00	2.44	3.05	240.36	24.04	7.74	13.33	2368.5	0. <u>21</u>	0.29	0.10	1.06
40	12.71	0.95	2.02	3.25	171.19	17.10	7.50	13.33	2368.5	0.21	0.24	0.07	0.85
40 1/	16.37	0,97	3 17	-1.12	375.40	10.77	. 9. 14	16.00	474 <u>1.6</u>	<u>0.15</u>	0.19	0.06	1.01
62	3.37	.	2.05	·				21.20	9478.1	0.10			
42 1/	0.00	0.00	5.00				ļ	21.20	9528.1	9.17	İ	<u>.</u>	
43	6.02	0.32	2.70				L	21.29	9528.1	0.13		L	
44	11.37	0.54	2.66				L	21.20	9528.1	0.12]		Ļ

 $\beta_{\rm NI}$

			CANOU	FLET	· · ,		,						
	}			* . .						H-5ce	100 Car	117	
B1001 No	6 4 4 7 3 4 8 6 9 7 9 6 7 6 8 6 8 6 8 6 8 6 8 6 8 6 8 6 8 6 8 6 8	4	Redius ft (Vertical)	Radius at d ft (Nerizental	v)	• [−] [−]	," ,,"	Critical Depth. R ft	n =	Votin de		Coulty V.	Roight Bon. Roight to Ron. Width
441/2	19.55	0.50						33.67	8178.6		' l		
	20.67	0.90	3.90	8.74	403.27	10.00	11.60	21.20	9529.1	0.19	0.27	0.04	0.62
50	1.33	0.16	1.01				_	8.16	\$43.3	0.22			
51	2.40	0.30	1.70		• - ·			8.16	543.3	0.22			
52	5.13	0.68	1.63				4	8,16	543.3	<u>9.29</u>	+		
521/2	5.65	0.65	•					10.36	1000.0				
54 -	6.33	0.78	1.45	2.4	197.84	79.14	7.61	8.16	543.3	0.18	0.30	0.36	0.90
54 .8	7.50	0.90	1.62	2.13	17.00	81.16	5.54	0.16	543.3	0.20	0.26	0.14	0.92
\$41/2	9.47		2.02	.2.45	12.63	16.55	0.0	10.26	1000.0	0.20	0.21	•.•	0.96
	0.10	0,00	1.56					0.16	545.3	0.19	·	L	
	2.30	0.17	2.32	 				12.90	2146.6	0.78	4	 	
<u>-81</u>	4.45		1.87					12.90	2146.6	• • • • • •		<u> </u>	
<u></u>	8.14	0.63	2.36	ļ				12.90	2146.6	0.10	4	 	
B1/2	9.33	0.57	<u> </u>					10.20	4254.5		1	<u> </u>	
	•	, .	CANOU	FLET	•	•		ł	•	N-S	ciled Če	a i cy	•
Blest ho	Cherje Cherje fr d	ব	Redius ft (Verticel) r,	Radius et d _c ft (Nerisentel):	- Volume, 1 F c ³	, ×, ∞,	Hextmut Hidth W	Critical Dept. N ft	. 	Vert. Wettes	Noris. Redius T	Covity V.	Hetto Hetto Hetto Hetto Hetto Hetto
59	· · 12.54	0.97	1.89	1.37	163.24	16.32	1.76	. 12.90	2146.6	9 0.15	. 0.18	. 0.00	0.82
59 1/2	1 21.23	1.31	. 3.40	3.45	_143.50	7.10) 7.36	16.26		4 0.23	0.23	.03	0.93
60	. 10.84	0.84	2.17	2.03	170.71	17.01	6.28	12.90	2146.6	9 0.17	0.22	0.08	1.46
63	3.45	0.17	4.37		1	1		20.52		6 0.21		•	•
63 1/2	0.00	0.00	4.80		•	•		20.52	6640.3	6 <u> _</u> 0.33	↓	- +	1
64	6.95	0.34	2.13		t +	•	, ,	20.52	8640.3	6 0.10	, l		
65	12.85	0.63	3.57		•	1	1	20.52		6 0.17	ri	: • +	
65 1/2	18.90	. 0.92			•			20.52	8640.3	€ , + <i>2</i>	•	, •	
67	20.65	1.01	3.81	4.77	481.46	12.0	11.32	20.52	. 8640.3	6 0.19	i 0.23	0.06	0.66
707	.1.36	. 0.17	. 0.38			• •		. 8.43	1 599. 0	ei 0.04	L .	-	ł
7 I T	2.66	0.32	1 1.14	1	1	1 t	ł	. 0.43	599.0	0.13		-+	
72 T	5.38	0.64	1.50	ł	+	ł	-	8.43	599.0	0.10			·
73 T	. 6.86	0.01	1.50	2.10	44.04	17.6	2 5.04	0.43	599.0	0.10	0.25	0.01	0.75
		0.97	2.26	1.74	20.85	8.3	4 3.52	8.43	599.0	8 0.21	1 0.2j	0.01	1.13

85

調査

			CARODI	1.61									
			,							R-3 4	led Ger	117	
8) set		٩	Redius ft (Varticel) r	Redies et de fi (Berisseuri)	Yeiwe. Ye ye ³	a∕ ^a ∧		Critical 600th. 8	7 2	1001	10110- 10110- 10110-	-T=	80110 81. Bolgh: to Box. Tidth
18.2	9.51	1.13	1.52		21.01		. 3.4 2 .		599.00	0.12	.0.20		1.95
76.2	2.20	9.17	0.70					12.32	2360.59		L		
nı	4.20	0.32	1.00				L	13.32	2368.51	0.14			L
78 2	9.60	0.65	2.31			L		13.33	22 <u>68.5</u> 9	0.17	; •		<u> </u>
79.7	10.75	0.00		. 4.18.	277.97	27.90		12.22	2368.55	0.24	يعبو ا	<u></u>	9.94.
90 I	12-95	Q.97.	2.97	. 2.14.	120.59	13.96	\$.1 9	: , _ 13,32	2360.51	.0.21	9.21.	0.05	0.00
01 T	5.40	0.40	2.07					13.33	2368.51	0.16		•	
82 T	1.20	9,24	2.47				L	12.32	2349.51	0.19		L	
101	1.58	9.34	1.06	L				6.53	278.4	0.16		ļ	l
91 2	_2.40 _	0.30	0.60	L			L	6.53	278.45	0.09			
21	5.20	0.02	1.35	1.27	11.00	4.42	2.70	6.53	270.45	9.21	0.20	0.04	1.19
.91.1	6.78	1.04	1.40	1.44	2.64	3.86	2.00	6.50	270.4	0.21	0.23	0.04	0.94
94 2	8.18	1.25	1.40	1.40	12.75	5.10	3.00	6.53	270.4	0.23	0.23	0.04	0.91
96 T	2.24	0.21	1.40		1			10.32	1099.10	0.14			

			CANOU	FLET									
			م							N-Sci	led Car	ily	 1
Blest No	6.9136 6.9136 6.6136	٩	Kadius ft (Vertical) r	Redius et d _c ft (H. rizuntel)	Volure. V F13	*c∕.	Meximum Mexim	Critical Derth. N ft	8 2	Vert. Kedius <mark>r</mark>		Vol.	
97 T	, 1 4.34 '	0.43	1.60					10.32	1099.10	0.16	:		• • • • •
98 T	. 8.64	0.36	2,07	3.00	182.46	18.25	7.30	10.32	1099.10	0.20	0.29	0.16	0.94
99 T	9.74	0.95	. 2.49	2.40	132.54	13.25	6.86	10.32	,1099,10		0.24	0.12	0.95
100 T	5.44	0.53	2.22					10.32	1099.10	0.21			
101 T	3.29	0.33	1.51					10,32	1099.10	0.15			
200	4.08	0.41	1.36,					9.93	979.15	0.14			
201	6.46	0.41	2.60					15.70	3867.89	0.17			
202	6.46	0.50	2.02					12.90	2146.69	0.16			
210	1 4.00	0.40		•				8.43	599.08				
211	6.46	0.40	1.90	; ,				13.33	2368.59	0.14			
212	10.26	0.48	2.92	1				21.20	9528.13	0.14		•	•
220	4.00	0.50	1.68	٠,			•	. 8.16	599.08	. 0.22			ļ
220 8	4.00	0.50	•	•	ļ			. 0.16	599.00	• •		L .	• • - •
222	10.26	0.50	4.58	1	، مــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــ		• •	; 20.52	#640.36	0.22			
				<u></u>								يستكروا استرائه	1-0

86

85.

t

			CANON	7LET	+		• •					•	
			<u>م</u>		!		i			H-8c	les Con	117	1
Bless Re	C30730 6918 ft 4 _c	٩	Redies fr (Versical)	Redies of C f: (Burisontol)	Velmo. V.	* / *	Rozia #145h #	Critico Desth. H ft	و، ۳	Rodius -		-T=	801941 10 801941 10 801. 10
230_T	4.07	•.•		ļ			1	1.4	599.00	 ,	(
81 7	6.46	0.40	3, 20		i	t • -		13.33	2340.91	0.17			! {
232	10.26	0.41	3.24]	i			24.97	3568.83	0.13			
240 T	4.07	0.63	. 1.14	İ	I			. 6.53	278.45	0.17			
241 T	6.46	0.63	. 2.30		φ	 •-		40BR	1099,10	0.2	• •	•	•
260	+2.15	• • . 16			•	•	1	: 13.33	2368.59		•	•	•
270	•1.00	+0.00	2.96		•	:	1	13.33	2360.57	0.22			; 1
270 B	+1.00	+0.4		1	· ·		!	13.13	2368.59	-	•		i •
871	+1.08	••••	2.01		ļ	4	÷	15.70	3869.89	0.13	÷		
272	+1.00	+0.08	2.38	1	i		1	12.90	2146.49	0.18	4	ł	1.
200	· 0.00	0.00	•	ļ	1	Į	4 -	13.37	2368.59		 	 _	ļ
201	0.00_	. 2.90.			, ↓ ≪ ·			15.79	2869.89	0.24	ļ	ļ	
202	•.••		3.54				ļ	12.90	2146.69	0.20	Ļ	ļ	
290	2.15	0.16	3.00	۱ ا		! 		13.33	2368.59	0.23			

			CADOU	PLET									
							T			H-Se	led Cov	117	
Blacs Bo			2041 m ft (Verticel) -		7	م رم ب		Critical Bopth. N ft	ę.			. T .	tetle Max. Beight to Ber. Width
291	2.15	0.17	2.51					12.90	2146.64	0.18			
272	2.15	0.14	2.40					15.70	3069.81	0.16			
293	1.71	0.16	2.63					19.60	1191.01	0.25			
294	1.71	0.17	2.60	1				10.36	1000.01	8.26			
295	1.71	0.14	3.25				[12.40	2943.76	0.26	[L
296	5.42	0.16					L	\$1.20	9528.15				
297	3.42	0.17			Ĺ			20.52	6649.34				
396	3.42	0.14		[84.97	15548.01				
L	L			<u> </u>		L	ļ	L					ļ
L	 			ļ	ļ	ļ	ļ	ļ				ļ	
I	 		<u> </u>	ļ	 	ļ	Į	ļ					ļ
ļ	L			<u> </u>			 						ļ
					L	.							
						{							

87

. ·



1958 Surfees

5 7.3				3 1943.	76							C1.0	
			•	CEA1	LE COEF	FICIENT	5AP PA	ENT CM	TER			_	•
Blast No.	Cherge Depth fi d _c	8•ptb #atie ∆	Apperent Crater		Shape A = 4	taer y Utilization	Aver Crete	Avparent Crate	Apperent Steet Ofsteete				1
295_	. 1.71	- 9-14.	23.55	9.061	. 0.42	•	0.41	9,19	10.43	-	+	• •	
.12 1/		0.57	. 11.35	0.029 .	0.52	÷ -	0.47	i en a	. 0.75	-	•. •		· • -
. 14 1/2	12.34	0.92			i •	•	•.		•	-	÷		
							-		:				J-,

_____J-2

•

88

Stanichteranaikiter ann

.

1960 Surface

£ 7.3)		1	15.70 3 3069.		La.a.L	30.444				6	1.0	
				CRAT		IC 16 # TH			K 4				
ż	_•		4	- 41		. 	5 .¶=	5 _ - 1_					
		4 • • • • •								-	' ! 	!	
	+1.00	. +0.07	3.69	0.010	0.32		0.20	0.12	0.29		, L		
201			10.67	0.078	0.\$1		0.32	0.17	0.32				
202	9.16	0.14	31.36		0.57	•	0.60	0.20	0.87		• •		
						•				•	•		
		· •.14	98.36		+ - '0.61	1 1	. 0.46	, 0.10	• •		• +-		
••••			1					1 *** *			• •- ·	• •-	
•••••				1	1		1	† · ·	• •	•	,		
					μ. Ψ•99	†		1_V±19	<u><u><u><u>u</u></u></u></u>		•	+-	
			1.19.52		9.52	-			1 Dati 1		•		
11	- 8.19 -		1		+ -	+ -			<u>}</u>	• ·			
14 , .	10.00		† ·	-	-	- 1		•	1		††		
141/2	12.99 .	0.82	+	<u></u>	+ -	+			÷		├ ───┼		
19	18-10			<u> </u>	<u> </u>	┢	┢	┿	 -		┟ ────┤		
M	22.60		<u> </u>	╂───	┨────	┟	<u> </u>		<u> </u>	<u> </u>	┝──┤		
	L	L	L	L		L	_	L	L	l	1l		

1958 Surface

<u> </u>			N	19.70 3 7738.0	B¶	20.0Lb		8	C 1.0
1				CBAT	ER COEF	FICIENTS-	APPARENT	CRATER	
Blast Bo.	Cherge Bepth ft d _c	Bopth Batio A	Apperent Crater y B	.n.	54 ps	011194 A			
17 1/2	11.5	0.89							t
19_1/2		0.94				┿╌╶╴┿╴ ╵	+ -		J-4

.

1960 Sarfees

				24.97			14.AAA				
. 6. 7.8			Ĩ	15.54				9		 61	
				CRAT		1 IC 384720		MY CAL		 	
8 lost M .	Cberge Aepth Et de	Boptt Botio A	Aprosos 101010 101010		1000 - 1000	8:1:1%	8001001 Croto	••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••			
21 1/2			8.91		0.41		0.22	0.17	0.32		
21	3.32	9.14	14.82	9.930	9.44		0.44	9.14	9.44		
290	3.42	0.14									
22	6.00	9.27	11.77	0.30	0.34		0.53	0.099	9.60		
222	10.26	0.41	18.47	9.027	9.41		9.47	9.020	0.62		
22	18.47	9.50	2.67	9.997	9.45		9.29	0.031	9.63		
24	30.57										
29	24.97	9.96				Í					
					I						7-5

Treach Blasts

2.	8	Lbe	

B 6.5			n N	8.43 9 599.6							: 1.0	
				CRAT		/ IC 18 HTS		MT CM	B #			
Blass No.	Gberge Bestb ft de	8.916 8.010 8.010		- 1		6.11 24 19.0 A 40	Contract Crator Legius	0 0 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1	Sturt Distance E H			
282	1.36	9.17	9.66	0.037	0.20		0.53	0.21	C.55			
717	2.66	0.32	32.40	0.14	0.33		0.74	0.34	0.83			
2307	4.07	0.40	23.66	0.096	0.84		0.50	0.15	0.73			
727	5.30	0.64	33.56	0.14	0.37		0.74	0.22	0.98	-		
227			ļ									
		0.97	L	ļ				L		 		
782		1.13										
	<u> </u>		L									J-6

90

٠,

¢

						Trees	. Sleets	I			
				13.33		19.6		_			
6 6.3				- 1340.	<u> </u>					 61.0	
•				CRAT		IC IS ITS		SAT CAN		 	
i	•	•	<u>د</u> م	-11	-	••••					
91001			Apere	40 T MA		8:118 A.				 	_
762	2.20	e.17	17.15	9.975			0.44	0.15	8.07	 	
827	1.20		4.02	0.021			e.2	0.10	9.45	 	
112	4.30	0.32	10.19	9.942			6.50	0.13	0.59	 	
617	-		1.1.10	9.917			0.53	en	9.67	 	
2312	4.44	9.49	18.80	0.045	0.34		0.55	0.20	0.74	 	
182		0.65		_						 	
191	10.75	0.00									
	12.95	0.97									
										 	1.7

						1796 38	279 4 8					
			H	0.43		القبة	ðø <u></u> 6 <u>e</u> 4	-				
6 6.2				- 599.0	•						61.0	
CEATES COUPPICIENTSAPPARENT CAATE												
				-42		: -1 °	5 .==					
lest R.	• • • • • • •											
		<u></u>	40	>	<u> </u>		•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	49	<u><n< u=""></n<></u>			
x 1/1		9.90_	. • . • • • • • •	0.039	.0,.47	<u></u>	0.14	0.23	0.34			
H	1.89	0.15	35.10	0.15	0.39	L	0.62	0.31	0.63			
81	2.70	0.33	12.96	0.054	2.43		0.60	0.11	0.69			
32	4.00	0.47	4.51	0.019	0.36		0.45	0.084	0.65		i	
210	4.98	0.40	T		F	[T	
11	3.30	0.63	17.07	0.075	0.37		0.66	0.14	0.92			
H		0.71	3.41	9,914	2.60			9.971	9.19 .			
st	.99	9.25	÷ .	- 1			l				+	
		_	.	L	I	L	ł	1				3-8

مجرد با دیاسها معاطی

-

3-9

ロステンジンジ

1758 Surface Bad she and 10.60 . C 1.0 2 . 8 6.2 CSA TER COLTIC APPARENT CIATER ŝ last Re Cle 32.62 293 0.56 0.25 9,16 0.14 9,59 1.71 0.56 34 1/2 6.22 0.59 9,90 0.042 0.57 0.42 0.13 0.72 35 1/2 10.14 0.96

1958 Surface

N_ 13.33 10.0Lbs_C-A												
<u> </u>	2		8	2368.	59					C 1.0	_	
1	L	•		CRA1	ER COEF	IC ISN'T		ENT CEA	1 .3			
		4		-42			5.4×		55, 4 =			
	Cherse Ch	4 0 4 - 4 - 4 - 4 - 4 -	40 40									
260	+2.15	+0.16.				 ▲ .						
270_	±1.98	+0.05	4.95	0.021	0.45		0.32	0.14	0.33			
2708	+1.00	+0.08										
280	0.00	0.00			,		-	·				
290	2.15	0.16	23.35	0.099	0.55		0.52	0.91	0.55		-1	
36	2.16	0.16	19.33	0.082	0.62		0.47	0.10	0.40		•	
37	4.40	0.33	6. 77	0.041	0.47		0 84	0.000			1	
	4.44	0.40	- 200	0.047			0.30	0.070	V.03		1	
4.1.4		.9.92	11-12	0.041	Q.20		9.39	0.10	9.19	·····	-	
. 30		0,42	31-87	Q <u>.0</u> 47	0.51		0 <u>.47</u> _	<u> 94</u> .	0.79	···+	-	
- 22	10.10	. 0,00		-							-	
	18-10	9_95			-						4	
L	İ				·					J-10		

92

í.

\$**1**575

.



					19	56 S urf							
				21.30		<u></u>	34 <u>6-4</u>						
8 6.	1			3 9520.	18	_					C	1.0	
	CRATER CORPFIC IENTEAPPARENT CRATES												
Blast B .	Charge Dapih It d	Bopil Boilo A	Apparont Crator	1 .		1 +-	1 1.	Apperont Crotor	Apperent Grater Slant Distance E 2				
42 1/2	0.00	0.00	9.41		0.40		0.30	0.10	0.30				
42	8.37	6.16	13.01	0.050	0.54		0.40	0.15	0.51				
296	3.42	0.16											
4	6.82	0.32	13.04	0.066	0.75		0.57	0.0T2	0.65				
212	10.26	0.4	11.24	9.948	9.60		0.53	9.999	9.71				
44	11.87	0.84	4.66	0.020	0.51	L	0.5\$	0.043	0.75				
	20.67	0.98											
					l							1-1	2

93

いたい、「「「「「「「「」」」」」」

<u>ب</u>







A),

1958 Surface

94

Analderia Sur

Service a statement



1958 Surface

E 6.	0		N	12.90 3 2146.4	59	لهمه	.08 <u>75</u> _				¢ 1.	0
	1			CHATE	A COLF	FIC LENTS		RENT CRA	75.8			
			•	,							· •	•••••
t No.		ر د ب	۲. ۲. ۳.	±۲، م ۳	4	12.1		لا["م ت'ي' ما م عراب		1	ł	
818	Char Dept	Ne V Ne V	AP.0	· ·	е 4	Ener Clark		10	A			
272	+ 2.08	+0.08	. 1,82	. 800.0	0.37		.0.27	. 0.093	10.29			÷
282	0.00	0.00	. 8.00	0.937	0.48		0.38	0.17	0.38			
291	2.15	0.17	19.41	0.090	0.56		0.51	. 0.20	.0.54 .		·	· .+ ·
56	2.20	0.17	. 19.00	0.084	0.62		.0.47	. 0.20	.0.50	¢	•	*
57	4.45	0.34	14.65	0.068 .	0.57		.0.63	0.10	.0.71 .	•		
202	÷ •.4• .	0.50	8.30	0.039 .	0.44	•	.0.41	. 0.11	. 0.74 🐰	•,		
58	8.14	0.63	11.23	0.052	0.53	l	0.55	0.10	0.84			
60	10.84	0.84	•			•	•		, er	•		i •
59	12.54	0.97	!			l	1			•		ļ
	1		ł]						J-16

95

「「「「「「」」



				•		•••						
£ 6.0			3			C 1.0						
GRATER COEFFICIENTSAPPARENT CRATER												
Blest Ko.	Charge Oepth ft Depth Depth	Katio Aliparat Craterat				8	Apparent Greter Depth = H	Appress Crates Sient Bistence A = H				
63 1/2	0.00 0	.00 7.20	0.034	0.42	. 1	0.37		Q.37	-	ļ	• -	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
297 _	3.42_0			- •	- •	-	} • -		-	1.	•	:
63	3,45 0	.17 _ 12.7	r 0.059	0.44 .	:	0.48	. 0.]9	0.51		i	*	
<u>44</u> _		.34 . 9.4	0.044 1	0.44		0.60	0.040	0.60	_ _		• -	* -
222_	12.26 . 0	.50 .4.3	0.020	0.52	- •	0.48	0.053	0,70		1	•	
65	12.05 0	.63 : 5.7	7 0.027	0.31	•	0.48	0.12	0.79			•	+ -
. 67	20.45 1			ļ	•		•				•	! ∔ -
		1	1	1	ļ							J-18

3150

758 Surfaae
MARKING &



Trench Blests

			R	10.8	2	تا مالا	30 <u>75</u>	-				
8 4.	•			1000	.10						61.0	
				CRAT		1C 18 HTS		ENT CRAT	K #			
				-42		5.9 °	5 .¶=		Crotor Crotor B			;
		••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••		re i une K. =		C			Leperon Leperon		ı	L
.947	3.11	9.81	6.30	Q.Q 76	9.63	• 	0.53	. 0.14	g.84		• • •	
LIGHT _	2.29	0.33		.9.943	0.44_		9.44	- Qado	9.84		•	,
977	4.34		14-14	\$1.0	0.60	ł	9,54		9.II.			
.1997	8,44.	↓. ♥,\$8_	.1.97	0.072	. 0.41_		9.51	0J4_	- 9 .74	• •	+	•• •
2412			19.60	9.996	. 9.42 .	.	.0.73	- 0.14_	8.96	•	• •	
	9,44	2.66			ł	- 1			·	•, -•	• •	+
997	9.74	0.95			↓		+	÷	[• • • • •	• •	+	+
L	L	1	1	l		L	l	1	I.	• - •	•	. J.~20.

97

And the state of the second

あえよ

				- 1 ³ 11	9.15								
£ 7.3				× 9.	93		arfeee					c 1.0.	,
			GL	ITER CO	771G1 0	15 799	CLATER	-	BOOTLET				
Blest he.	Charge Beptb fi ⁶	0.911 0.110 1.1	True Creter H H	-1+× 	54440	At - 71	True Crater Redius r K - H	Bepth B	True Crater Stant Bistance A	Fortical Constitut	20012000000000000000000000000000000000	K-Scoled Ban.	ravity Shape Polices
9.1/2			14.44	9.94	0.51		0.24	0.30	0.40	0.30			
•	1.86	0.14		0.18			0.40	0.34	0.89	0.20		1	
10	2.00	0.20	. 90.46				9.51	9.44	9.69	9.16		1	
200	4.00.		14 70		9.46	• •	9.49	0.55	0.74	9.14			<u> </u>
u		. 	96.18	8.24		i ·		. 9.47		 9. 14	.	.	
1,2	6.76	. 0.60	294.51	0.74	0.05	! •	0.50	0.84	1.07	. 0.16	•		•
13	• <u>.</u> 11	. 0.82	57.34	0.15	!	•		•	•	e.2 1	0.22	0.67	1.00
14	9.61		, 50_96	0.13				•	⊷	0.17	. 0.19	. <u>9.8</u> 9	1.25
	1	·	-			•							K-1

E 7.3				N″ 19 ∖ 12.	43.76	1958 5.	rface	B				C 1.0	
			CRA	TEE COE	PPICIEN	18TRUE	ÇRATER	AND CA	0071.57				
Blast °o.	Charge Depth ft d _c	Uepth Natio A	frue Crater	1 0 1 m 1 1 m	×иере V N = K 2 N = 2 N	A t = V	True Crater Radius	lrue Crater Veptu t = 1	Frue Crater . Slant Distance . K	Vertical Manueller	amoutiet	tarit, span	eight to Span
295	1.71	0.14	51.06	.0.13	0.54		0.44	_0.40	0.59	0.26	1	• -	•
12_1/2	1.17	0.57	122.33	0.31	0.55		9.49	Lev		. 25 29.	•	•	• ·
14_1/2	.12.34	0.99				 			+	•	i •		+
		 	L		 _	•	L		۱	.	-		. K- 2

10.0 Lbs_660													
7.8				N" 3	869.89 5.70	1958 Su	25440					1.0	
			CRA		771¢18#	TST286	GRATE	-	POTIST				
ilast 'o.	Cherge Ti best	Bepc F		l'at ure r	Shepe V		Kadine Kadine	Irw trater Depth h	True (raier Viant Distance	intital intellet		Calcoled Var.	Catity Suape any to Spa Katies
271	1.06		1. 3.69		9.62		0.29	: 0.059	i 0.29	. 0.13			-
201	£.90.		16.03		0.40	· ·	.0.17	. 0.24	0.44	0.24			
171	2.15		. 52.72	0-14	. 0.52		0.53	0.29	0.61	0.16	•		
16	2.20	. 0,14		L				•					
18	2,20	. 0.14	. 55,64	0.14	0.47		6.49	0.40	. 0.64	0.26			
16.	4.30	0.27	•		•								
168	4.40	0.28	89.00	0.23	0.53		0.55	0.44	0.71	0.16			
201	6.46	0.41	83.96	0.22	0.52		0.48	0.58	0.75	0.17			
17	8.10	0.52	, 99.24	0.26	0.44		0.53	0.67	0.85	0.15			
. 18	10.00	9.69	43.70	0.11	1	•				, 0,15	0.24	0.61	1.00
18 1/3	12.90-	10.02	137.63	Q.10	ł	i •			· ·	. 0.15	. 0,23	0,60	. 0.81
19	15.10	%	38.03		l • -	ł .	·	•	···	. 0.17	0.22	_0.64	.0.84
20	2,2 60	1.44	9.41	0.02	l ↓ 	ł		ب		9,17	- 0.17		.1.12 .
	L		J	L	<u>.</u>			- <u>i</u>					<u></u>



99

the second second second second second second

.

۰.

•

. . . **.**

- -

	15.560.08													
£ 7.2				¥ 24.	22	1968.6		<u>R</u>				۲ 		
last %o.		•		.:1%. ! !										
	UAN			>	#			P.0	<u></u>	20	7.0	<u> </u>		
.81 1/1	9_9R						0.24			i. 0-12	• •	•		
81		Bald.	37.90			 	-		- 	. 0.16	۰.	<u>م</u> .		
	3.42	0.14	L	I		L				• -	•	• ••	• • •	
22	6.00	0.27	54.14	0.14	0.22			1			• • •		. .	
222	10.24	. 0.41	71.18	0.10	0.49		9.41		9.72			-	_	
23	12.47	0.50	u.ø	0.15	.0.52		9.41	10.66	2.10	9.36			•	
26	20.57	0.82	20.83				<u> </u>	1		1 8.26	. 0.18	. 9.56	. 1. 87	
. 21_	24.02		20.83				ļ			-0.15	. 0.30	. 0.53		
	L	1		L	1 _		1		┛╴ ──	1	-		. K. S	

-Las_Lo	*
---------	---

				•		ملا.							
				- N ^a 591	.06								
				•	19	Treach	Atante	8				٩	
<u> </u>		_											- 1
			CRAS	TER .CORF	TICIENT	57898	CRATER	MB CN	OUFLET				
dlast No.	Charge Bepth ft d _c	Uepth Retio	frue Crater	Volume 1.	Snepe I	Rinergi Rission Ar - Lu	11111111111111111111111111111111111111	Ucptis Laice	Stant Distance No + 51	Vertical Cauouflet r + ci · · ·	(amouflet -		
701	_L.24	Q.32	19,54	0.20	0.49		0.52	.0.20	Q.55	0.04.	¦		
2201			- 61.92	. 9.24 .	9.41		0.55	. 12.9.	+ 0.IL .	. e.e.	• •		
721 721	5,20	0.64	90.39	.0.41 .0.07	0.34	<u>↓</u>	- 2.10		1.9 % .	0.10	0.28	.9.49 .	Q.75
747		0.97.	-	0.01	-					0.27	. 0.21.	9.41	للمل
75 7	9.81			80.9		4		ļ- <i></i>	·	0.19	. 0.20		1-05 K-6
·	L	1	•	• •					-				

MARTANES

				n ³ 23	68.57	18.	a_Lbs_A						
E 6.9				1.15		Tiane	Blacks						
			CRA		TICION	S7906	CRATER		OUTLET				
31est "e.	Charge Depth ft	4 0	True Crater L	Veluee	1		Redien Creter Redien w	Depta Crater	Stent Crater Stant Bistonce	toriical casufiat b _{c1} • 1	tissta????? *	Tests Parker.	
76t .	2.20	9.17	22.95	0,10	6.72	Ì	0.44		9.60	.0.05			
627.	3.20	9.24	44.66	9.29	0.55	l L	0.51			0.19			
111	4.20	0.32	29.27	0.16	9.36	[9.50	9.46	9.11	0.14			
817	5.00	9.40	47.62	0.20	0.39		9.53	9.56	0.70	0.16	L		<u></u>
2312	4.46	1.4	14.10		9.47	L		8.65	9.87	0.17			
191	3.40	9.65	196.92	. 2.46.	.0.92		9.44	1	0.92	9.17_			·
797	10.75	9.90	27.98	0.11				İ		0.24	0.31		
101 .	12.95.	9.97	13.06	.9.95		[0.21	9.21	0.51	
]]]]]	L.		ĺ.]]		K-7

						فعک	<u> </u>	<u> </u>					
£ 6.2				N ³ 59	9.08 43	1958 Sul	<u>face</u>	<u>6</u>				1.0	
			C	ATER CO		NTSTRU	E CRATE	R AND C	<u>anou flet</u>				
dlast te.	Charge Depth ft	Depth Ratio A	True Crater V H	Kol ume	Snape 1		Radius r Provins r	Ucri - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 -	Sian. Uistan.r	Lert.cal Centret f, '-	(arizontal cantitut	Covicy of Ass.	Recios and
20. 1/1	0.00	0.00	9.37	_0.94	0.44		0,35	0.23	0.42	0.23		i • -	
19	1.20	0.15	52.56	0.22	0.40		9.63	0.49	0.77	Q.33	,		
<u>81.</u>	2.70	0.33	45.09	0.27	0.40	1	0.60	. 0.46	0.90	0.14	,		·- -
12	4.00	0.47	66.10	0.36	Q.73	1	0.50	0.63	. 0.80	. 0.15		•	•
210	4.00	9.48					↓		6	•			
23	5.30	0.63	69.04	0.29	0.35		0.60	0.73	0.95	0.10			ï.
34	6.00	0.71	71.00	0.30	0.82		0.35	. 0.93	1.09	0.21			,
15	00.8	0.95	25.35	0.11	ł	ļ	•		ŧ	0.22	0.23	. 0.60	. 1, 12
		}	1		İ		1		i				, K-8

2.5 fbs C4

101

いまたになるのであっていたとうできまし、

ł



				W 23	68.39								
E 4.3						1966	Sectore					C 1.0	
	Ĺ		ÇR		1771C18	TSTB	CRATE	R AND CI	HOOTLES			.	
•				. †?:			.1.		Distance		. -1 ,	Speaker.	
31.051				1 - T		4111 V			8195 8195			1.50	
240	8.15	9.16	1 	-		.	ļ		ļ	<u> </u>		 +	•
270	1.00	. 0.06	4.95	0.02	0.45	, 	0.32		0.35	0.22			
2708_	1.00	0.08			•`		•			• -		- -	-
200	. 9.90	. 0,90	•	•		•			• -	.			•
299 .		9.16	. 46.24	0.19	<u>0</u> ,56	• -	0.53	0.39	0.66	.0.23			
34	2.16	. 0.16	. \$1.72	0.13	. 0.50	•	0.49	0.36	0.61	0.20			•
1.		. 0.33	. 60, 69	0.26	. 0.54	•	0.56	0.48	0.74	0.15			•
211	i 6.46	. Q.48	, 98.38	0.42	. 0.66		.0.5/	0.63	0.85	0.14			
30	. 8.31	, D.62	. 75.38	9.32	. 0. <u></u> 55	•	0.47	0.86	0.98	0.23	•		
129	10.70	. 0.80	. 24.04	0.10	ł		•	•		.0.21	. 0.29	0.50	1.06
40	12.70	. 0.95	. 17-19	0.07	1	•		•		.0.21	0.24	0.57	. 0.85 K-10

					s .		20.	Lips_C	.					
	5.6.2				N" 47 16.	41.43 19	.1958.1	intlasa.	8					
				CRA	THE COL	TICIUM	STRO	CRATER	AND CA	HOTLET				
	Blast Ko.	Charge Bapth	0.911 8.011 8	Irue Crater K	1 ol une v h	Snepe V. h. = V.	A 1 2 4 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Radius Crater	Uspil: "	Staat Bisterce bistate Bisterce be t	Kerijei Caestiei K _{cv} - 1	Camouflet	V-Scoled Kor.	1014119 51 890 1014110 590 10105
	30.1/1		0.56				• • • • •				-	_		·
1		16.27	0.97	19.77		ļ	i +				عبو	. 9.12		. 1.91
I	í		ł		1	Į	}		I					K-U

102

ないないないないないないないで、ころ、、うつ、、

•

				x ³ +5	28.53	4	T (r? 7	4					
1 6.2				<u>\</u>		1950.5	ziece_					c 1.0	
			CIL4		VIGI	15T90	CRATE	-	11.11000				
atost No.	Cherye Dept b Ci 3 C	8 8 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	True Crater 	. 1 2 	1 2 2 2 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1		True Crotor Redias	1760 (*8107 1891 * *	51401 015101.0 51401 015101.0 1 c - 51	Vortice? Coonflot h	Conceptiel A ch · SA	K. Sculed Kon.	
42 1/2		2.99	14,84		0,46	т ·	0.39	0.27	0.50	9.37			
48	2.27	9.16	30.51	0.13		°. 	2.49] ↓_ 9.48	9.10		ļ	
294	1.4		1			•	:	•	 +	; •			
41		9.32	43.61	0.18	0,46	• • -	, 0.57	0,43	. 0.7.2.	0.13	, +		
212	10.26		44.35	0.19	9.34	4	. 9.53	0.62	. 0.92	0.14	• • • • • • •	.	
44	11.37	0.54	. 43.42	0.18	0.19	•	0.62	0.65	0.99	0.13	•		+
4.	20.67	0.96	10.00	0.04	•	•				0.19	0.27	0.55	0.82
				}	•	:	1 1	· -	•				K-12

				•		Log_Los_	75					
				N ³ 216	5.00 14	58 Surface	ß			<u>, c</u>	1.0	
<u> </u>			CRA		FFICIEN	TSTRUE CRATE		HOUFLES				
dlest to.	Ctharge Depth fi	0	true Conter		Anape L		lept's et	leue (riier ·lant liitanue k - ^c i	Vertical Canueflet r	21120 21121 21212 212 21		reiti Siane sight to Apar antio Santa antio Santa antio Santa
•	1.00	0.17	4.61	0.02	0.49	. 0.62	0.04	0.42	0.21	• 4		••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••
1.	0.00		. 4.04	0.03	0.51	0,37	<u>, 0.17</u>	0.36	0,17	, ,		
1	1.90	. 0. 17	32.99	0.15	. 0.39	0.61	0.35	" J.,65	. 0.19	•		
a .	2.00	0.33	47,11	0.22	0.66	0.47	. 0.48	. 0.57	0.15	ļ	•	
24	2.00	0.33	44.31	0.21	. 0.55	. 0.50	0.40	, 0,61	0.15	, ,	. –	÷-
,	3.00	. 0.50	62.58	0.29	0.64	0.47	0.67	0.82	0.17	Ŷ	•, -	
	1.05	10.44	73.32	0.34	0.98	0.35	0.90	0.98	.0.24			•
	4.85	10.81	23.39	0.11	!		1		0.19	. 0.17_	0.60	Q.80
]]	4.00	1.00	48.93	0.23				1	0.22	0.30	0.69	1.02
1		1.00			•				1		ί.	K-13

103

:

-

				n ³ 54	8.34	.2.4		<u>78.</u>					
6 .	0					1958 Sarf	160	3				(1-3	
				TER COL	PP1C18N	1 <u>8</u> 1804	ÇJATEL	, aņd , Çi	NÎGO <u>r</u> îri	!-, <u>.</u>		•	
.1.4.1 . 0.	Charye Uepih fi d	22010 22010 20110		V n 1	here A A T			Jruc Craice Nepili A	frue frater slant Distance k - C			Lity Span	
55	. 0.00				0.39		0,39		. 0,44	. 9.19	*_	*********	
50	1.33_			- 0.17	0.44	·				. 0.22			
51	. 2.40_	0.30	49.44	9.23	9.47	-	9.58	. 4.51	9.75		_ .	•	
220	4.08		78.56	0.36	0.43	1	0.41	. 0.71	0.94			.	
2208	4.08	0.5 11.											
52	. 5.13	0 .63		0.31	0.81	; •	0.38	. 0.43	. 0.91	0.20	• • •		
_54	<u>6.33</u>	0.78	79,14	0.36				• -		0.18	0.30	0.96	0 90
.548. .	. 7.38	0 . 90	. 31.16	0.14		•		÷ •	- 4-	0,20	. 0.26	<u>. 9.4</u> 8	. 0.92
-	• •	•		1.				•	•		•		. K-14

			N ³ 1080.	05	·····	(a_		
1 6.0			10.26	1958	Suzface_	8		(1.0
[CRAT	RE CORFFIC	IENTS	GRATER	AND CANOUFLET		
41 		↓ • • •	V 01 uno V 01 uno V 1 uno			Siant Distant		V-Scaled Lar. Cavity Spage A w S Cavity Suspe
294	1.71 0.	17 40.86	0.19 0	.53	0.52		0.26	
541/2	9.47 Q.	92 18.53	0.29				9.20	0,62 0,96 K-15
1		4	1 _ 1	أن		• ·	in marine man	

5.0 1: 3 75

104



20.0Lbs 75

4999 94

				· •		1050						C 1.0	
E.0.0				· 10		1440						<u> </u>	
			C14	TRE COR	FEIGIOUI	țs T 201	L CRATER	, AMB. CA	POULLET_		r	f	
81 0 61 Xe.	Charge Bepth ft de	Dopth Natio	й 1 2 3 1 2 3 1 2 3 1 2 3 1 2 3 1 2 3 1 2 3 1 2 3 1 2 3 1 2 3 1 2 3 1 2 3 1 2 3 1 2 3 1 2 3 1 2 3 3 1 2 3 3 1 2 3 3 1 2 3 3 1 2 3 3 1 2 3 3 3 3	-T	2	1.112.01		Depth	Stant Distance No • ^{C1}	herticel Cemouflet h _{c1} • 1	Cortzontel Costzontel Act		Cavity Shape Perght to Span Ratios - 10
<u>50 1/2</u> 59 1/2		0.87	7.10	0.03		•				0.21_	0.21	0.45	0.93
									4	•	<u> </u>	<u></u>	K-17

. b s	

				H ⁻ H	60.36							. 1.0	
F A.A					¥	1 1980	<u> </u>						
			<u>CRA</u>	TER COL	I ICI CHI	<u></u>	CRATER	AND CAL	HOUFLET	r			
)]est %e.	Cherge Bepch fi	Depti Batio	True Crater L H	101 1 - 1 1 2	Shape L	A	True Crater Radius T	Dent' b Dent' b b - 1	Siant Distance	terticel Cemouflet ^k ci • *	Concerter Concerter A c Th	Cevity Spent	
6 3 . 1/1	. 1.50_		19.57	.0.23	0.47		0_37	.0.23	0.44	0.23.			
297	3.42	0.17		<u> </u>			L	4		4	l		
42	3.45	0.12	29.53	0.14	0.49	.	. 0.48	0.34	.0.61.	0.21	}	 	
44	A. 05	0.34	54.71	0.25	0.51	<u> </u>	0.00	0.44	0.74	0.10	l	÷	•
222	10.26	1.0.00	61.57	0.29	0.29		0.66	0.12	0.98	0.22	 		
<u></u>	12.05	هده ا	75.48		.0.29	 -	9.79	0.80	1.07	11.0	-	ļ	+
47	20.85	1.01	12.04	0.06	L	1	1		1 .	فتنقر	0.22	. Q.55_	
	1		T	T]			1	1			1	K-15

				N ³ 27	8.45	2.1	<u> </u> Lbs	78.					
E 4.8				× 6.	53	tzenek i	llests					C 1.0	
			CRATI		ICIENTS	TRUE			WFLET				
Blast No.	Cherge Uepih St. d	Net h	Tree Creter	volene K = 1 X	Shape Y A = T = Z = L	A	True Creter Redius T	True Creter Verte A	Slant Distance K =	Vertical Cenerical K. • ^r	Castantel ^I beb • Na	A-Sceled Hex. Cavity Spen	
907	1.50	0.24	42.15	0.37	0.42		0.84	0.40	0.94	0.16			
917	2.40	0.30	41.30	0.39	0.50		0.68	0.67	0.85	0.09			
2497	4.07	0.63	: 58.27	0.53	0.39		0.74	0.80	1.09	0.17			
927	5.38	0.83	4.42	0.04						0.21	0.20	9.61	1.19
927	6.78	1.04	3.66	0.04				İ		0.21	0.28	0.44	0.94
947	8.10	1.25	5.10	0.04						0.23	0.74	9.46	2.91
													K-19

E 4.8				N3 10	99.10 32	Treas	llaste	8				<u>(1.0</u>	
_			CRA	TER COE	FFICIEN	TSTRUE	CRATE	AND C	HOUFLET				
	Charge Contra Lepita C	Verth Retio		Volume V	N, N, N, N, N, N, N, N, N, N, N, N, N, N			liter traffer	frue Crater Man Urstance	teriscal Canonifet F.		Cavity Span	Havity Stape Herbit to Span Hattes a f
967	2.24	2.21	118.54	9.18	0.46	• *	0.58	. 0.35	1 2.68	0.14	i 	; +	ļ
1917.	3.29	0.33	1 ,77.	0.31	2.57	÷	_Q.61	. 0.47		0.15_		, •	÷
971	4.34	0.43	40.79	9.37	0.48		0.65	0.59	L 9.98	0.16	<u> </u>	;	1
1007	5.44	1 0.53	41.20	0.37	0.46	Ī	0.59	0.74	0.95	0.21			
2417	6.46	0.63	16.76	0.70	.0.49	<u> </u>	0.73		1.1.13	0.22		•••	
98T	9.64	0.06	18.25	Q.16	1			• •	•	• • 3 0	. 2	• • • • • •	9.94
99T	9.74	0.95	13.25	0.12					1	0.24	0.24	0.66	0.95
			T	1				1					K-20

10-0-11-75

t.

87	<u>.</u>			11 ⁸ 979. # 9.91	15	2.5.4					<u> </u>	1.0	
	L		.	CRAT		FICIENT	COMPL	ETE AUP	TURE				
9 i a s Bo.	Charge Boy th Fr	Depth Bacio L	••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	ан та • • • •	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	61112	Complete Rupture Boolus Ar a r	Con	Complete Rupture Jien Bieteze C	500104 Charge Popth - 4 ₆ / ³ /T	54104 51411 Distance Cr/3/8		
9 1/2	8.98	0.00	44.95	9.11	. 9.65		0.42	9.33	0.42	0.00	3.91		
•	1.26	.Q.14	81.42	9.21	6.49	0.34	0.56	0.41	, Q.57	1.00_	4.16		
16	2.80	0.28	70.99	0.44	0.77	0.12	.0.59 _	0.54		2.06	4.67		
200	4.08	، باللمالي .	41.64	P.36	9.64	0.60	.0.54_	0.62	0.60	3.00	4.96	;;	
	5.30	0.54	214.92	0.55	.0.53	0.91	0.62			3.93_	5.91		
18	6.16	0.68	\$61.28	0.67	0.60 _	1.10	0.60		0.91	4.97	4.64	·	
13	0.11	9.02	231.99	0.59	0.72	0.90	0.49	1.10	0.95	5.98	6.94		
14	9.61	2.99				ļ			i •	7.08			
		 	Ļ			L	ł	: 	: •		L	L	-1

			1	1 ³ 1943	.76	5.0_L	A40						
<u> </u>	7.3		والمراجع والمراجع	H 12.	46 1	958 Sur	<u>(ace</u>				<u> </u>	1.0	
				CRAT	ER COEF	FICIENT	SCONPL	ETE RUP	TURL	•			
Blast No.	Cherge Bepth f:	Depth Retio	Conplete Rupture	Volume R =	Share "	Utilize tion	Eupture Bedius	Con.lete Rupture Depth Bh = hr	Complete Rupture Slaat Distance C _T	Secled Cherge Bepth - 4_/ ³ /9	84414 81411 8144400 Cr/3/F		
295	1.71	0.14		.0.22	0.44	0.43	0,50		0.52 -	1.00	3.00.		
12.1/2	7.17	0.57	24.35.	0.50	0.59	1.18.	.9.60	0.86	2.83	4.20_	6.06		
14.1/2	12.34	0.99		<u> </u> 		 - 			╡╴	1.23 -			• ···
L	ļ		<u> </u>	L		↓ ┿╼ ╼-	↓	; }	-	↓			L- <u>2</u>

107

「「「「「「「」」」

..........

10.0LLs_440 3067.87 C 1.0 . COMPLETE BUTTELE TER COEPFICIENT CKA ł ġ Bleet 871 301 21.07 2.10 0.5 1.4 6,90 0.42 1 0.69 292 112.44 5.56 0.61 9.44 . 35. 2.20 0.14 r 158 2.30 0.14 0.35 9.55 0.56 0.55 0.49 4.05 . 96.05 0.54 16 4.20 0.27 2.00 2.05 4.67 16 0.20 145.59 0.63 0.50 0.28 0.86 0.64 391 6 41 17 8.10 0.52 :164.52 0.45 0.59 1.65 0.56 . 8.71 10 10.00 j 0.67 0.74 1.01 .844.55 0.43 . ۰. 43 5 10 1/2 12.90 9.88 .1 . 1 _ L-3 . .



108

Mar aver C. They'

ł



				H ⁸ 5	99.08	2 <u>.5.</u> L	Ls_A60				
Ł (5.2			H .	.43	Tressb	Blasts	B			C1.0
	L			C	NATER CO	EFFICIENT	SCOMPL	LTE BUP	TUKŁ		
Biast No.	Charge Depth ft d	Depth Ratio	Contrate Keptere Ke	Volure V			Complete Eupture Rodius Ar = M ^T	Com, lete Kupture Depth B = A	Complete Rupture Slant Distance Cr h = M	Secled Charge Bopth A 4. ^A A Kecled Slat	•~~4
707	1.36	. 0.17	42.53	0.	78 0.5	1 . 0.31	0.40	_0.48	Q.52	1.00 3,2	2
717	2,66	0,32	01.16		34 . 0.3	3 0.59	1. 9.71	0.67	0.77	1.95 4.1	7
2301	4.07	0.48	86.91	0.	36 0.5	6 0.63	0.57	0.66	0.74	3.00 4.5	•
727	5.36	0.64	138.86	0.	57 0.3	7 0.94	0.76	0.87	0.99	3.95 6.1	
747	A.11	0.97		1 • • •		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		+ + * * * * * *		8.97	h 3 + +
			• 1 •	1	; †		<u>↓</u>	↑ · -	+ - 	† #∩≭ ⊑ † +	+ L-6

109

ŝ

ź

.

					. 50	18.8						
				H 19.3	\$	Tressb	Blants	8			¢1.	•
				CHA T	LE LUEI	FIGILNT	SLONPL	ETE BUP	TUNE			
	Charge Bepth ft d _c	Depth Eatle	Confilete Kuptete Kuptete	Volune * *	5112, e 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	Utilitie V	Complete Rupture Rodius Ar = F	Cer, lete Rupture Bopth An = Ar	Complete Suptate Clatance C	Bopth Charge	300104 31011 C. //	-
767	2.20		64.24	_0.20	0.53	. 9.37			9.40	1.92	3.12.	1
	3.30	0.24	. 112.47	0.42				. 9.59		1.49		
111	4.30	8.32	71.22		_L.47	1.0.41				2.02	4.09	
AIT	5.40			0.33	9.44	0.45	. 0.59	0.70	. 0,72_	2.50	4.46	
2117	4.4	. 9.44	. 122.40	. 0.55	_0.45	0.76	-0.73	. 9.14	· U.SZ.	3.02	. 5.39	
742	8.69	0.65	178.12	9.75	.0.49	1.1.82	0,76	. 0,07	. 9.97			
	•		••••••		•			• •		1		L-7

Stratistic states of the



				** ****	. 69	10-0r	Ls_ <u>CA</u> _					
<u> </u>	6.2			H 13.3	3 195	8.Sarfa	v				¢1.	0
	L	.		CLAT	EN LUEF	FICIENT	COHPI	LETE HUP	TLAL	<u></u>	·	
66 No.		ρth ka tio Δ				$\mathbf{A} = \frac{\mathbf{v}_{1}}{\mathbf{v}_{0}}$	r, lete pture Rodius b, = r	Lite Barre B		104 Charge	73/1 	1
	535	<u> </u>	02 Ux	· · · ·	ñ	يدم تندر	يد د	133 198 -	0.43			·
260	2.15	0.16_	• •	L	• -	•	•	; • -	1.	1.00	•	
270	1.00	0.08	20.19	_Q.Q.	. 9.57.	. 0.16	.Q.44	Q.25	. 0.45	0.50		
279R	L 1.99_	0.00 .	• • · •		• •	ı ◆		•	•	. 0.50_		
209	0.00	. 9.99_	l		·		* - • ~ -			Lo.00_		
290	2.15	0.16	.65.71	0.2E	0.60	0.53	0.54	. 9.51	. 0.56	1.00	_3.47	
34	2.16	· 0.16_	. 59.12		9.73	.9.47	0.50		0.52	1.00	. 3.29	-
37	4.40	0.13	83.52	0.35	0.61	0.67	0.56	0.58	0.65	2.05	4.03	
211	6.46	. 9,40	111.61	0.47	0.59	. 0.90	0.60	. 0.70	9,11	3.00	.4.17	
3	4.31	0.62	. 96 . 47	0,37	0.56	9.70	0.47	0,95	0.78	3.86	: 4.64	
40	12.70	9.95	• -						+		++	
1	1				I	1	1		,	1	+ I	11.10

111

APPEND:X

90 مع_دناي #³ 4741.43 # 16.00 6 6.2 C 1.0 196 rf CRATER COEFFICIANTS -COMPLETE BUPTULE 5 : 8 : e e t . **M1/2** 9.54 \$.40.1 2.42 **m**/2 16.27 0.97 6.91 • ŧ L-1

				# ³ 9530	.13	CAL L	•• <u>_</u> ••					
8	6.2			8 21.3	1	te beri	905				6 1	
				CBA?	LE LOEF	FICIENT	5CONPL	ETE RUP	TUKE			
Blast Ro.	Cherge Beptà f L d _c	Depti. Netle A	Kentete Kentete Kentete	Yelmie K = 1 H	Shepe y	0111110 1108	Complete Rupture Rodius Ar - T	Con. lote Repture Bopth B = Br	Coaplete Buyture Stont Distance Cr	Lairt Charte	belled Blant Bistone C ₂ /AAF	
41/2			21.13		9.54			_9.29	.9.41		2.54	
42	3.37	0.16	73.04	0.31	0.70	0.72	1 0.54	0.44		0.96	ا مه د	
296	3.42	9.16	•							1.00		
43	6.22	0.32	87.90	0.37	9.58	8.87	0.57	9.62		1.99	4.09	!
212	10.36	0.4	101.48	0.41	9.67	1.01	0.54			3.00	3.47	
4	11.87	0.54	99.29		0.51		9.53		9.76	3.22	4.71	
46	20.67	0.98	•							6.05		
								•				 L-12

				-		اساهما	1						
	6.0			N° 216. N 6.0	.00	58 Surf					<u>c</u> 1	.0	
				CRAT	ER COEF	FICILNT	SCONPL	ETE EUP	TURE				
Bleet No.	Charge Bepth fi d	Depth Betle A	Complete Repture Y	Yelme K = ^V f	Shape Yr	5111120 1100	Complete Rupture Redius Ar = 7	Contro to Reptero	Complete Eupture Slost Bistonce C _r B _c = T	Sector Charge	84144 81411 8141944 54/7		
•	1.00	0.17								1.00			
<u> </u>	0.00	0.00	9.10	0.04	<u> </u>	0.10	0.33		0.33	0.90	1.90		\bot
1	1.00	0.17	\$0.72	0.23	0.37	0.53	0.61	0.54	0.63	1.00	3.70		
2	2.00	0.33	62.00	0.29	0.55	0.65	0.50	0.67	0.60	2.00	3.60		ļ
24	1.00	0.33	84.45	0.39	0.73	0.89	0.53	0.61	0.63	2.00	3.70		
;	2.00	0.50,	85.63	0.40	0.83	0.90	0.47	0.70	0.60	3.00	4.00		_
4	3.95	0.66	92.69	0.43	.9.57	0.90	0.51	0.91		3.95	4.98		ļ
_													L-13

ч.). Т

5



		1	1 ³ 1080	.05	S.O_L	•• <u>78</u>						
•			H 10.2	6 19	58 Surf					C 1	.0	
			CRAT	TE COEF	FICIENT	SCOMPL	ETE BUP	TURE				
Charge Depth ft d _c	Depth Retie A	Complete Rupture Y		Shepo K. = Y. K. = K. K.	511112	Complete Rupture Redius A _T = T	Complete Repters Bopth R	Compiete Rupture Stant Distance Cr Ac a M	Seeled Charge Depth A. 4./ ³ /T	800104 81001 Distance C _T / ³ /T		
1.71	0.17	65.04	0.30	0.65		0.54	0.51	0.56	1.00	3.36		
5.65	0.55								3.30			
												L-15
) 5.6 5.6 5.65			1000 1000 10.2 CEAT	H ³ 1060.05 H 10.26 11 CBATES COEF CBATES H ³ 1000.05 H 10.26 <u>1956 Surf</u> CRATES COEFFICIENT CRATES COEF	H 2000.05 H 20.26 1958 Surface CRATES COEFFICIENTSCONFL CRATES COEFFICIENTS	H ³ 1000.05 H 10.26 <u>1956 Surface</u> B CRATES COEPFICIENTSCOMPLETE SUP CRATES COEPFICIENTSCOMPLETE SUP 	N ³ 1080.05 N 10.26 1956 Surface CRATES COEPFICIENTSCOMPLETE SUPTORS CRATES COEPFICIENTSCOMPLETE SUPTORS Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Supt Sup Supt	Image: Constraint of the second of the se	NB 1080.05 H 10.36 1956 Surface B C I CEATES COEFFICIENTSCOMPLETE BUPTORE CEATES COEFFICIENTSCOMPLETE BUPTORE CEATES COEFFICIENTSCOMPLETE BUPTORE CEATES COEFFICIENTSCOMPLETE BUPTORE CEATES COEFFICIENTSCOMPLETE BUPTORE COEFFICIENTSCOMPLETE BUPTORE CEATES COEFFICIENTSCOMPLETE CEATES COEFFICIENTSCOMPLETE CEATES COEFFICIENTSCOMPLETE CEATES COEFFICIENTSCOMPLETE CEATES COEFFICIENTSCOMPLETE CEATES COEFFICIENTSCOMPLETE CEATES COEFFICIENTSCOMPLETE CEATES COEFFICIENTSCOMPLETE CEATES COEFFICIENTSCOMPLETE CEATES COEFFICIENTSCOMPLETE CEATES COEFFICIENTSCOMPLETE CEATES COEFFICIENTSCOMPLETE CEATES COEFFICIENTSCOMPLETE CEATES COEFFICIENTSCOMPLETE CEATES COEFFICIENTSCOMPLETE CEATES COEFFICIENTSCOMPLETE CEATES COEFFICIENTSCOMPLETE CEATES COEFFICIENTSCOMPLETE CEATES COEFFICIENTSCOMPLETE <t< td=""><td>H² 1000.05 H 10.26 1956 Surface B C1.0 CRATES COEFFICIENTSCOMPLETE SUPTORS CRATES COEFFICIENTS</td></t<>	H ² 1000.05 H 10.26 1956 Surface B C1.0 CRATES COEFFICIENTSCOMPLETE SUPTORS CRATES COEFFICIENTS	

113

miles a second

4

のないで、「「「「「」」のないで、

				H ^B 2144		18.8.4	• 71					
	6.9			# 12.90) 191	ê Sarfa	49				C	1.0
				CRAT		FICIENT	COUPL	171 IDP	1946			
Bleet Bo.	Charge Bepth E1 6	Bepth Batte	6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	۲۰۱ سه م ۲۰ - ۲۰ ۳ - ۲۰	1	5:117212. A - 4	Complete Bupture Badlus br = 7	Complete Bupture Bepth by a H	Complete Rupture Sloat Distance Cr Ac = D	Boold Charge Books	500104 51000 2101000 C ₂ / ^A /T	
272	1.00	0.08	4.66	0.03	0.40		0.35	0.20	0.36	0.50	2.16	
282	0.00	0.00	21.25	0,10	0.69	0.30	0.30	0.31	0.36	0.00	2.20	
291	2.15	0.17	66.89	0.31	0.62	0.62	0.55	0.52	0.58	1.00	3.40	
-	2.20		64.37	0.32	0.79	9.64	0.34	0.50	0.57	1.02	3.42	! <u>;</u>
-SZ	4.45	0.24	99.10	9.44	0.61		0.52	0.3	0.71	2.07	4.24	ŧ
202	6.46	0.50	104.58	0.49	9.65	9.99	0.56	0.75	0.75	3.00	4.50	·
		0.62	100.05	9.47	0.50	0.94	0.53	0.89	0.83	3.78	4.96	
-	10.84	0.84	23.50	0.54	0.84	1.16	0.44	1.13	0.95	5.03	5.70	1
	12.54	0.97	L						İ	5.02		
۱ 		ļ				L	ļ					L-16



114

.

Statistic and state state and a state

Million Constant

Ł	6.9			n ³ 844).3 6	1	•_ <u>16</u>				¢ ;	L.Ø	
				CLAT	18 COEP	71C3682		17E 800	1986				
Diest M.	Cberge Beptb ft d _c	Dept) Bette A		-+1= 	19.11	61111	Complete Rupture Badine Pr	Contileto Repturo Bopch P	Campioto Bupiuro Siaut Dictorco C ₂ D ₁ = C	100104 Charge	00104 81010 01110000 05_47		
431/2	0.80		17.47	0.06	0.64	0.19	0.30	0.20	0.30	0.00	2.28		
297	3.42	9.17								1.00			
44	3.45	0.17	63.76	0.20	0.63	8.69	0.57	0.47	0.59	2.75	3.54		
4	6.95	9.34	79.89	0.37	9.56		9.60		9.69	2.03	4.14		
222	18.26	. 0. 50		_0.41		0.95	0.54	_0.70	9.73	1.00	4.90		
44	12.05	0.43	10.15	_0.42			.0.51			8.75	4.94		L
67	20.65	1.01				L		 +		6.05			
]	1		l	İ		L	l	L	<u>L-18</u>



	1.8			n 4.53	I	zessh Bl	asts				C (1.0
				CRAT	LA COLF	FICILNTS	CONPL	ETE EUP	TURE			
Bleet No.	Cherge Bepth ft d _c	Depth Relie D	Complete Rupture	Volume K = Y K ³	Shope Karr ⁴ Karr	Gillfration A = V	Complete Eupture Bodiss La T	Supture Depth	Complete Rupture Sient Distance Cr	300104 Charge 30915 2, - 4, /3/F	500104 51000 Distant Cr/ 3/T	
901	1.50.	.0.24	\$7.13	0.51	0.35	9.71	_9. 94	-0.66_	0.03	1.16	4.22	
211	2.40	0.30	53.24	0.47	0.39	0.66	¥.71_	0.76	0.01	1.82	3.89	
2401_	4.07	0.63	72.65	0.64	0.30	0.91	9.76	0.94	0.99	3.00	4.75	
	1											L-1

10.0 Lbs 75 N³ 1099.10 5 4.0 c 1.0 A 10.32 Treash Blasts 8 CRATER COEFFICIENTS -- COMPLETE RUPTURE Charge Ŀ Blest No. Chergi 0.41, 0.68, 0.48 . 0.58 : 0.59] 96T 45.00 0.61 1.04 . 2,93 2.24 0.21 0.76 1.53 3,45 . 1011 0.33 ا المعد 9.57, 0.58, 0.65 . 0.70 0.64 1.32 0.75 0.78 2.01 3.74 ._ 0.47. 0.46 0.54 0.65 4.84 0.48 51.57 0.00. 0.55 0.91 . 0.73 0.90 2.52 4.32 0.85 8.44 0.52 86.97 . .100T 0.76. 0.48 0.87 0.73 0.96 0.96 . 3.00 . 4.61 _241T 4.46 9.42 83.06 L-20 1

115

LUI LA "3 979.15 \$ 7.5 9.93 . 1950 Surfese CRAME COEFFICIENTS -- E. TREME BOPTH ٨t Ż Creeking Redire ----9 1/2 0.00 0.00 ð.<u>90</u> . 1.14 9.14 .00 10 2.80 0.28 2.94 . **لغد ا** 200 4.08 9.4 95 4.97 9.99 .28 0.67 9.69 0.91 0.89 0.71 1.10 0.95 5.98 231.99 0.49 6.94 0.60 0.82 6.80 1 B-10 -7.00 3.95 0.99 0.92 0.62 0.54 1.24 1.11 0.40 358.86 M



116

「おおちないです

م مساده ومعاوم م

100

				N ³ 380	1.81	10-01							
\$ 7.3				# 15.7	0 14	58 Suzla	<u></u>	8		•	c 1.0		
i				CRAT	TE COLT	AUC 1281	E TKE	BE NUFT	жL • • • • •			-	
iest No.		,µth ∎tie Δ	א לדירי הי הי הי הי הי הי ערי הי הי הי הי הי הי הי הי איר הי הי הי הי הי הי הי הי הי הי הי הי הי	جر الحد بر الحد بر الحد بر الحد		A 40	Afrese Ruptur adius Ruptur		atrese Ruptur Isai Distence L = R	100104 Charge 10010 3, 44 2 ³ 7	colod 31011 0.000 0.000	recting adian	
	<u>u</u> e	<u>.</u> ^ مەر				
11	. 1.00.	9.97	22.79	0.06	0.37	•	0.42	0.29	0.43	0.\$ <u>0</u>		•	.
181	- 0.99		70.72	0.18	0.55	•; -	. 0.55	. Q.35	0.55	0.00	4.09	•	•
292	2.15.	Q. 14					•	• -	•	1.00	•	*****	+
15 .	2.20	0.14						•		1.02	•	* · · ·	
15 8 .	2.20	0,14	150.90.	0.39	0.74	•	. 9.54	. 0.57	0.54		4.99	· +	
16	4.30	0.27							•	2.00	۱ •	! •	
68	4.40	0.26	216.78	0.56	0.77	:	0.64	0.57	9.69	2.05	5.15	1	
201	6.46	0.41	•		•	i •	• ••	•	•	3.00	.	- 8.55	0.54
17	8.10	0.52				i		,	L	3.77	 	9.65	9.61
18	10.80	Ç.49	. 269.85	0.70	. 0.70		0.56		0.89	5.01	وديف	10.2%	0.65
a 1/2	12.90	0.82	378.60	0.98	0.76		0.42	1.06	1.03	6.00	7.52	9.75	0.62
19	15.10	0.94	1 271 . 48	0.70	,	1		1 1.18	0.72	7.02	5.25]	
20	22.60	1.44			+			1.68	0.74	10.50	5.41		
			Å		L	<u> </u>						1	



117

						Agas	مهد٥٤						
6 7.3				H 84.	960.02 97	1928 80	TÍAGA	3			c 1.0		
				CRAT		IC IENTS		E LOPT	M 6				3
1.8.7	cbarga deptà . ft	Jepth Batio A	Latrene Buptare La L	-14 	1		Latrono Rupturo Lodius		Litree Rupture Slaat Bistance L _c = <mark>1</mark>	anied Charge	5	Creeking Badies Ft	R-Seeled Crecking Radice
21 1/2	0.00	0.00	44.16	0.11	0.79		0.43	0.15	0.43	0.00	3.27		0
21	8.81	0.14								9.97			
293	3.42	0.14								1.00			
22	÷.60	0.27								1.99		18.45	0.14
223	10.26	0.41	172.81	0.44	9.69		0.50	0.70	0.71	3.00	8.41		
xa	18.47	0.50			 			ļ		2.67		13.50	Q.14
26	29.57	0.82	210.02	0.54	0.60		0.51	1.08	0.97	6.02	7.02		
29	24.07	0.96	265.98	0.64				1.21	0.90	7.94	1.7.18	15.19	0.60
		<u> </u>										l	M-5

N B	599.08		للمنا	_LI
N	8.43	.		
	CRATER	COE 77	IC IEN	13
				Τ

	 - 14		

				H 977									
8, 6.3	2			N 8.	43 7	treush B	10050				C 1.0		
				CRAT	ER COEF	FIC LENTS		HE EDPT					
· @就 · # # # #	Cherge Depth , fr	Bepth Beile A		-++= 	5 k p c				Latrone Ruptare Signt Distance L = -	Scaled Charge Bepth L _a ³ d _a / ³ / T	500104 51001 Bistagee Co/VT	Creeking Redise Fi	R-Sealed Creekiag Redies
707	1.26	0.17								1.00		5.40	0.44
717	2.66	0.32								1.95		4.95	P.59
EBOT	4.07	9.40	157.24	0.65	0.70		0.07	0.00	0.03	1.00	5.30	4.80	9.57
727	5.20	0.64					-			3.93			an an an an an an an an an an an an an a
797	6.05		240.09	1.03	0.62		0.71	1.00		3.08	ana por contractional designation	1.40	1.00
IAI		0.97	342.29	1.42	0.70		0.66				.	7.15	0.85
78X	9.51	1.12	135.75	0.57	-			1.40	0.74	7.00	.H.	3.70	0.68
						1	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	norme e state i cam	an a san an an an an an an an an an an an an a		in Without		M-6

AP	PENDIX	
----	--------	--

t

				4 ⁸ 256	÷	، الله ال	بير د						
\$6.3				# 18.1	18	reash B					c 1.0		
				CEAT		FIC LENTS	84 28		116				
Blact M.	5141.00 0 4 4 4 1 1 4			-912 1		•••••	Lives Busices			build Charles	5.45 Sint	Graeking Bodina Pi	R-Baaled Crasties Eudise
761	2.20	9.17	197.52	9.44	0.66		9.65	9.52	8.67	1.82	6.22		
821	3.20	9.24	281.72	1.06	0.04		0.81	0.41	0.85	1.49	3.95	6.50	8.49
177	4.20	0.22						L	L	2.00		1.22	0.54
elT_	5.40	9.40	280.78	1.96	9.68			0.71	0.92	2.50	4.65	0.00	2.60
2217			256.13	1.00	8.6T	L	0.83	0.11	0.94	1.00	5.33		
787	8.60	9.65	330.17	1.42	0.50		0.94	0.09	1.14	4.90	7.24	10.42	9.70
707	19.75	0.00	419.70	1.76	0.62		0,90	1.18	1.20	4.99	7.50	9.70	0.73
POT	12.95	9.97	\$95.57	2.14	0.72		0.87	1.54	1.81	6.00	8.20	12.0	1.12
 				}			L	L				I	M-7

				# ³ \$99.	.06	القدق	.us <u>ca</u>				• • •		
<u> </u>				P 8.4		750 Suz	1000				r 1.6		
				CRAT	TH COEF	FIC LENTS		NE 8027	VEE				
liart No.	charge Depth.ft	ocyth Rette A	Entrene Rupture	10 11 10 11 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 1	1, a per 1,	A. = 44	Latrone Rupture Ladius	Latress Bupters	Latrese Rupture blat Distance L = E	bented Charge	00104 81011 0	24444 244444 2444444	
			+ ••• •••			†						<u> </u>	1
	t *•	4142				t			y			+	· +
29	1.1.20		÷							0.96		1	1
21 .	1.1	10.82	1				-			2.03		4.90	0.50
23	4.00	9.47	L			 ♣━		 		1.94			
210	4.00	8.48	l	L .		ļ				1.00			
33	1.10	9.69 _			}	ļ	- 1	-		3.90		5.35	0.63
34	6.00	0.71	ļ			1		· .		4 42			
35		•.•	165.09		. .	ļ	0.4	1.23	1.66	5.07	6.87	5.60	0.66
					Í						1	}	M-8





5 6.3	ł			H ³ 2350 H 13.3	.59 18 19:	58 Surfa		в			c 1.0	ı	
				CRAT	TE COEF	FICIENTS	E THE	-	URE				
. OK 1161	Charge Depth, ft d	Duy th Matto	Extres Repters		and a second sec	Utilization A = 4			Latrene kupture Siant Distance $h = \frac{1}{2}$	Bepth Charge	500104 \$1000 B100000 C_/2/T	Creeking Rodies Pr	N-Seeled Greeking Badine
360	2.15	0.16						· ···	1	1.00			
179	1.00	0.00	\$2.91	0.22		• ·· •	0.70	0.29	<u>0.70</u>	0.50	4.46	•	
2708	1.00	0.00	1		, 	•~~•		• • • •	•	0.50	•	*	i
200	0.00	0.00	↓ ↓						•	0.00	• • • • •	, •	.
190	2.15	. 9.16 .	110,18	9.10		1 4	.0.64	. 9.55_	9.65	1.00	. 1.21.		•-
			110.12				9.65	. 1.47 .	8.67	1.80	i • 4-36		
87	4.40		124.35	0.53			9.46		0.74	3.96	4.40		0.62
211			186.68							3.99	. 5. 01	7.10	
			127.01		9.74		0.47	. 2.25		3.86			
	18.78		293.74	1.14	0.92		9.49.		1.99	4.97	4.27		
	11.70	9.95	192.65				1.10	1.22	1.00	5.90	A. 59	8.30	9.62
				l				i				{	M-10

AL SUBSIDIE

10.0 Lbs C4

ŧ

**** #5· *** * * *





						S.B.BLb	<u></u>						
6 6.0				N° 216 N 6.0	.00	150 Surfe		8			¢1.0		
				CRAT	SE COEF	FIC LENTS-	-E. TRE	NE RUPTI	URE				
Blast Mo.	Cherge Bepth.ft	Devth Refie A	Extreme Rupture		Shape V	0.0197.0110. A. = V.		Entreme Rupturs	Entreme Rupture Siant Distance A. = A	544104 Charge Bopth	500104 51011 Distance C_/ ³ / 1	C100ki 20 71 41 20 71 41 20	N-Sealed Creek ag Redius
	1.00	9.81			1					1.99			
7	0.00	0,00			L			•	•	0.00		•	Í.
1.	1.00	0.17	1	ļ	1			1	Ļ	1.00			L
2	2.00	0.33		ļ	1	!		•	•	2.00		1.30	0.22
24	2.00	. 0.33	1	ļ		÷			•	2.00		•	•
1	3.00	0.50		ļ				•	ļ	3.00	•	•	•
1	3.95	0.66	ļ			!!		•	•	3.95	•	•	ļ
5	4.85	0.01	, 52.45	0.24	i †			. 1.04	0.67	4.85	. 4.15	. 3.15	0.52
•	÷.90	. 1.00	74.45	0.34	1	1 1		, 1-21	0.78	6.00	4.70	, 4.40	0.73
1	1	1	i.	ł	1	1		•				ļ	M-13

				# ³ 545.	34	Lag_L	39 <u>18 </u>						
£ 6.8		_		N 8.14	191	8 Sarfa		8			c 1.0		
				CZAT		FIC LENTS	E. TE	NE BUPT					
Blest Bo.	charge Depth.ft	10% C	Extreme Rupture	Velune he = <mark>1</mark> 3	52000 V	0:11 Pie . 10.	Liteae Aupture Radius L _r = <mark>F</mark>	Gepth Bepters Bepth Be	Extreme Bupture Slant Bistence L _c = ^C L _c = ^C	201104 Churge	Binned Blan Distante C_AT	Creekies Bedies Fr	R-400104 Crobitat Bedite
55							 	[0.00	r]	
50	1.33	0.16			•	Ī				0.97			
51	2.44	0.30						•		1.85			
230	4.96	0.10								3.00		6.10	9.75
2200	4.66									3.90		I L	
	5.13	9.63								3.78			<u> </u>
H	6.33	0.78								4.67		4.05	0.50
540	7.30	9.99	49.34	0.23				1.17	9.72	5.00	4.36	5.00	0.61
								1					M-14

£ 6.	•			H ³ 1000.0 H 10.26	05		5		ci.0	
				CRATER	COEFFICIEN	DE TREI	16 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	ε Γ - τ-	··	
Biest Bo.	charge Bopth , ft	Dey th Retio	Extrent Ruptur	Volune • •				Saled Charge	A 4.47	
294	.1.71	0_17			•			1	.02	6.30
\$41/2	9.47		277.63	1.29.	1.00 .	. 0.57		1.095	. E.J.	6.10 0.59



の行法が意味を見ていてい

				•		الملمة	.)•_ ••.						
\$ 4.6)			8" 276 8 6.\$.45	tress)	10050	9			¢ 1.0		
				CRAT	-	7 X 18 H 21	E. B.	-	nt				
810 C 80.	5hares 50915.11 6	Dopth Batto A	111) frg 0400 1173	-7-		•••••			Latreso Busture Sisat Bistance A. = -	Antion Charge	10104 51011 101000 51011 C_/3/5	1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.	
902	1.50	9.24								1.16		3.75	9.57
917	2.00	0.30								1.82		. 3.20	
2002	4.01	8.63		2.69	0.65		1.10	0.96	1.36	1.90	6.11	4.10	8.63
997		9.99		1.19	0.62		9.88		1.20	3.95	: 	: 	. 1.94
900	6.70	1.01	119.AL	2.52		L	0.85		1.34	4.97	5.40	i 0	
347	0.10	1.25	14.78	1.93				1.62	1.01	6.02	4.86		<u>i</u>
	I							 		ļ		l + .	M-19

				N ³ 109	9.10	10.0.1	.bs <u>7</u> \$						
\$ 4.8				# 10.3	2 T	reach Bl	ests	8			C1.0		
		-		CRAT	ES COEF	FIC LENTS		ME BOPT					
lees No.	barge apah. fr	ep the - e tie - A	utrono Rupturo T						ktrone Rupture leat Statence A. =			esting dise	840104 84110 6110 6110
	<u>ve</u>			×	<u></u>	D		uió	ü 9	ñă î	n ā č	645	x 0 u
96I	2.24	0.11		0,78	0.00	• ·	0 <u>.</u> 70	0.64	0.74	1.04	3.64		
1017	2.29	0.33	249.95	2.26	0.78	 	1.08	0.80	1.13	1.53	5.76		
977	4.34	0.43	114.56	1.03	0.55		0.80	0.00	0.96	2.01	4.46	6.45	0.62
1001	5,44	0.53	270.59	2.46	1.00	L	0.94	0.89	1.06	2.52	5.29	6.05	0.59
2417	6.46	0.63	180,00	1.64	Q.73		0.85	1.00	1.05	3.00	5.04		
98T		9.66 _	212.09	1.93	9.40	 +	1.05	1.16	1.34	4.01	6.59	9.87	0.96
597	9.74	0.95	361.00	3.20			0.90	1.29_	1.30_	4.52	6.64	9.50	0.92
					· •								M-20

Unclassified			
DEVILY GIOLANTEAULA			
Security clocalication of 1110, budy of abarrant and industrial a	NYE VATA • K (Majajian musi be s	n V Alered when the A	evene)i report in classifieds
SAIGINATING ACTIVITY (Cuporere author)		SA. AEPORT SE	CURITY CLASSIFICATION
U.S. Army Cold Regions Research and		Un	classified
Engineering Laboratory, Hanover, N. F	4.	St. CROUP	
		<u>l</u>	
J. REPORT TITLE			
EXPLOSIONS IN SNOW			
EXPLOSIONS IN SNOW			
4 DESCRIPTIVE HOTES (Type of repart and inclusive dates)			
Technical Report			
s. Au fire Ais. (First rapio, aiddle hiltisi, lest name)			
Clifton W. Livingston			
A BEBADT DATE			
May 1968	131		9
B. CONTRACT OR BRANT NO.		REPORT NUM)ER(0)
DA-11-190-ENG-33	T	huinel D	
A. PROJECT NO.	Tec	nnical Rep	ort 83
G.	D. OTHER REPO	RT NO(8) (Any of	her numbers that may Le colgred
4			
10. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT			
This document has been approved for publ	ic release a	and sale; i	ts distribution is
unlimited.			
11. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES	IL S. ATT	WILLITARY ACTI	vity re and Permafrost Re-
	search Es	tablishme	nt (now U.S. Army
	Cold Regi	ons Resea:	rch and Engineering
13 ABSTRACT	Laborator	Y)	
Studies were made to establish means	s of predict	ing and opt	timizing the results
of blasts in snow of the Greenland Ice Cap	A total o	f 141 test	blasts were fired
above and below the snow surface Using th	ree types o	mented for	r mossurement of
air-blast and/or undersnow shock pressu	vere mstru re. Crater	cross sec	tions were then
mapped to beyond the limits of complete r	upture. Al	l crater d	ata are presented in
an Appendix. The change in texture of the	snow was	studied.	Density samples of
the disturbed and undisturbed snow were t	aken.		
The failure process in snow differs fi	rom that in	glacier ic	e, frozen ground,
rock, and certain types of soil. Characte	ristic featu	res of this	failure (referred to
here as "viscous-damping failure") are:	1) damping	of the dist	urbance during the
rise to peak pressure, and 2) substantial	recovery of	stored po	tential energy during
unloading. Both features result because a	air is trapp	ed within t	he voids in snow. The
snow is first compacted and driven outwar	rd as the ga	s ouddle e	in of the compacted
fractured, and expanding zone to ice. Th	e next even	t is imploy	sion and disturbance
of the original cavity. The walls of the p	rimary cavi	ty are dis	placed inward, and
both the zone of skin-surface melting and	the zone of	compactio	on are destroyed. A
sensitively balanced transition condition a	ippears to e	xist at cri	tical depth. The bal-
ance determines under what conditions fra	actures dur	ing the ris	e of pressure and the
outward expansion of the gas bubble prede	ominate ove	r fracture	s formed as a result
		(Cont	.'d)
DD PM 1473 ASPLACES DO PORM 1475 1 JAN 44			
WW INOVASION / J CONCLUSE FOR ARMY OUL.		Unc	lassified
		Securit	y Classification

Security Class // calles						
14 KEY WORDS	LIN	K A	LIN	K 8	LIN	хc
	ROLE	WT	ROLE	WT	ROLE	WT
Greenland-ice cap Snow-failure Abstract (Cont'd) of implosion. Implosion is closely followed by a vortex motion within the snow and scouring action as the gas bubble emerges from the rising column						
defined by the vortex. This scouring motion largely determines the final shape of the apparent crater. Viscous-damping failure differs markedly from shock-type failure, which is characteristic of brittle materials, and from shear-type failure, which is characteristic of more plastic materials. During loading of the snow, a substantial propor- tion of the energy of the explosion is expended to compact and deform the material; during unloading much of the energy expended to compress air in the void 7 is recovered and re-expended in both frac- ture and flow.						
lems presented in the report make it possible, within the range of the experiments, to accurately predict any desired dimensions of the limit of complete rupture. Limits of complete rupture and limits of extreme rupture in snow are correlated empirically using/cube-root scaling as a first approximation. Ranges of similar behavior and transition limits between ranges for blasts with small HE charges in 1958 surface snow are dis- cussed.						
		Un	classif	ied		

\$:<u>`</u>;

日本の行きの方法のないで

Contraction Contraction